
CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET 
CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION AGENDA 

CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET 
601 MAIN STREET 

ELKO NEW MARKET, MINNESOTA 
WEDNESDAY, MAY 22 2019 

 
4:30 PM 

 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Presentations 

 
3. Reports 

 
4. General Discussion 

a. City Vision, Priority Goals, and Identification of Policy Discussion Topics 
i. Review Meeting Goals and Format 

ii. Review Community Vision 
iii. Discuss Issues Impacting Elko New Market, City Operations and Service Delivery 
iv. Review 5-Year Priority Goals 
v. Policy Discussion Topics  

 
5. Reports (Cont’d) 

a. Reports from the Business Agenda may be presented if time permits 
 

6. Adjournment 
 



 STAFF MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: Council Special Meeting – Vision, Goals, Policy Topics and 

Priorities 
MEETING DATE: May 22, 2019 
PREPARED BY: Thomas Terry, City Administrator 
REQUESTED ACTION:  Discussion and direction 
 
COMMUNITY VISION: 

 A mature growing freestanding suburb of the Twin Cities Metropolitan Area, preserving 
historic landmarks and small town character while providing suburban amenities and 
services, as well as full range of employment, housing, business, service, social, 
technology infrastructure and recreational opportunities for citizens and visitors 

 Promote a diverse commercial base including light industrial and facilitating planned 
redevelopment which will be aesthetically pleasing with architectural standards that 
promotes quality development 

 Provide a full range of municipal services to its residents. The City will allocate sufficient 
resources to meet the growing needs of the community 

 A comprehensive park and trails system that will have sufficient facilities, play fields and 
open space to meet the needs of residents 

 An effective and efficient transportation system, including access to the greater 
metropolitan area, transit opportunities, and improved connectivity to the interstate 

 Provide community oriented local government and be financially sound, engaging in 
long-term financial planning to provide municipal services without undue burden on tax 
payers 

5 YEAR GOALS: 
 Diverse tax base, employment opportunities, additional businesses and services, 

promote high quality broad spectrum of residential development 
 Advance “shovel ready” status of areas guided for commercial and industrial 

development 
 Acquisition of land for public purposes, position City to take advantage of land 

acquisition opportunities  
 Enhance quality of life through parks, trails, recreational programming and cultural 

events 
 The development of residential lots and an increase in residential building permit activity 

COMMUNITY ORIENTED LOCAL GOVERNMENT: 
 Community Involvement 
 Organizational Improvement 
 Problem Solving 
 Performance Measurement 
 Professionalism 

  



BACKGROUND 
Annually, the City Council reviews the City’s Vision Statement and Priority Goals. This year the 
process is being enhanced with the Council regarding the priority for policy discussions in the 
upcoming year.  
 
The meeting format itself is intended to be informal, a Work Session in which the Council is 
requested to actively engage and interact in the discussion. The City Administrator and other 
Staff will help organize and facilitate the discussion. However, the Council is expected to lead 
the discussion. In the Work Session, the Council will be asked to: 

 
• Review Community Vision 
• Discuss Issues Impacting Elko New Market, City Operations and Service Delivery 
• Review Priority Goals 
• Identify and Prioritize Policy Discussion Topics 

 
VISION AND GOALS 
The visioning and goal setting process is a precursor to the formal process for the 2019 
Budget. The workshop uses a simple but successful process to assist the City Council in 
identifying and discussing issues that are facing the City of Elko New Market. The process is 
used as a tool to help the Council establish and maintain a common vision and goals that will 
be used to provide a framework for shaping policy, setting priorities and budgeting. 
 
Municipal government provides several basic public services and is responsible for numerous 
regulatory and statutory activities. The scope of local government activities includes, but is not 
limited to public safety, streets and transportation, land use, utilities, parks & recreation, 
environmental protection, licensing & permitting, elections and maintenance of public records. 
Each community must make decisions regarding the administration of city activities and the 
provision of services. However, the City has a finite or limited amount of resources (funding, 
staff time, etc.). Inevitably, the “wants and needs” of the community are greater than the City’s 
ability to meet them all. Ultimately, the Council must make decisions regarding the allocation of 
the City’s limited resources. The process is designed to help the Council focus their decisions 
regarding resource allocation. 
 
As in past years, the discussion will be facilitated by the City Administrator. The workshop 
provides an informal forum to discuss issues that are facing the community and its future. This 
is a “quick and dirty” process that is intended to help the Council develop some consensus 
regarding community vision, issues, goals and priorities. The process is based on the concept 
of starting with “the big picture” and then working towards greater levels of detail. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 
 

Establish 
Goals 

 

Identify Issues 

Develop Community 
Vision 

The overall process involves four steps: (1) develop a common vision for community, (2) 
identify community issues, (3) establish goals, and (4) implementation.  
 
 
 
                                Implementation 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
First, the Council will be asked to discuss its vision for the community. The vision is a mental 
image of the community 20-30 years in the future that is both desirable and feasible. The 
vision is not so much an end product, as a direction in which the community should be moving. 
The discussion will help the Council to develop a consensus on that vision, which will serve as 
the foundation for the rest of the process. The current Vision statement that was adopted by 
the City Council in July of 2011 will serve as the basis for the discussion. 
 
The Council will then be asked to identify the most important issues that are facing the 
community within the next 10 years. For purposes of this discussion, issues are defined as 
problems, pressures, needs and other factors that significantly impact the community. 
Examples of issues may include development trends (up or down), city finances, city staffing 
and personnel, demands for services, city facilities, infrastructure reconstruction aging 
population, mental health, changing demands and expectations in services, etc. The issues 
identified last year have been included for reference. The community vision and issues that are 
identified by the Council will serve as the context or backdrop as the Council develops goals 
and staff prepares action items for implementation.  
 
The Community Oriented Local Government philosophy that was adopted in July of 2017 has 
also been provided for reference. Strengthening the relationship between the philosophy and 
the Vision/Goals has been discussed since the adoption of the Community Oriented Local 
Government philosophy.   



 
The Council will then be asked to establish a number of priority goals, approximately 5-7 in 
total. For the purposes of this process, goals are defined as projects or activities that merit 
special attention and/or focused resources. Goals should be easily defined and measurable for 
progress and/or completion. In addition, the goals should be reasonably achievable within a 1-
5 year time frame. The current adopted goals have been provided for reference. An update on 
the progress of each of the goals over the last year will be presented at the work session. 
 
The goals will be used to provide a framework for shaping policy, setting priorities and 
budgeting. Since action items necessary to achieve the identified goals may require funding, 
this exercise will serve as an excellent lead-in to the City’s annual budget process. 
 
POLICY DISCUSSION TOPICS 
The City Council is being asked to identify policy topics and their relative priority for policy 
discussions in the upcoming year. The intent is to develop of list of discussion items for the 
Council over the coming months for Council education, planning and/or budgeting purposes. 
These discussions may simply be conveyance of information to provide Council with 
information and background in general or as a starting point for further Council discussion and 
possible action items. The intent is not to delve into the topics themselves, but rather identify 
policy topics for discussion at a future meeting.  
 
As a starting point, staff has compiled a list of potential policy discussion topics based on areas 
of common inquiry, past Council discussion or anticipated relevance by staff. The Council may 
certainly add to the list at the meeting.  
 
EDA vs. EDC and Composition - Should the City have an EDA or EDC? What should the 
composition be? In the past, the question of whether Elko New Market should have an 
Economic Development Authority (EDA) or Economic Development Commission (EDC) has 
been asked. The question is again being presented for Council consideration. Regardless of 
which option is chosen, should there be a change in composition (specifically who and how 
many)?. The purpose of this presentation is to outline the similarities and differences between 
and EDA and EDC and provide composition options. 
 
Factors Related to Development - Why doesn’t development occur? What barriers impact 
feasibility of development? The fact is that there are many factors that relate to the feasibility of 
each development or business proposal such as the availability of land, availability of 
infrastructure, and the market. Each of these factors contributes greatly to the overall cost and 
ultimately feasibility of a development. The intent of this presentation is to review in greater 
detail the factors affecting development, the impacts they have, and how they apply in Elko 
New Market. 
 
Funding Infrastructure to Support Development - How do we fund public infrastructure 
necessary to support development? What are the challenges and burdens faced by developers 
and taxpayers? How do we limit or minimize them? The construction of system infrastructure 
(primarily utilities and collector roadways) serving undeveloped land is a major burden for new 
development. Often times, utilities and roadway must be extended to a parcel in order for it to 
be developed. However, if the extension costs are too great due to distance and/or nature of 
improvement, the development desired by a parcel owner/developer may not be viable. This 
presentation will review the challenges and burdens of new development, current City policies 



regarding development fees and extension of public infrastructure, and potential strategies for 
funding public infrastructure. 
 
Interchange Development – Park I-35 and Adelman Property - What are their challenges 
and benefits of development at the interchange? Can anything be done to overcome these 
challenges? There has been much planning work completed, and more in process, to facilitate 
development near the interchange. Great partnerships with the Scott County CDA, local land-
owners and developers have facilitated the completion of wetland investigations, geotechnical 
work, tree inventories, survey work, traffic studies and environmental studies. The largest 
remaining obstacles: extension of utilities to the interchange area, construction of streets and 
utilities into the planned development areas, and replacement of the 
interchange/bridge. Absent a specific user wishing to locate at the sites, there are few 
opportunities for grant funding to facilitate the extension of utilities. The intent of this 
presentation is to review the history and background of Park I-35 and the Adelman Property 
and discuss the barriers and benefits of development at the interchange. 
 
Development Fees – Basis, Comparison and Options for Changes - Can and should the 
City make changes to its development fees?  How do we compare to other area communities? 
Development fees are charged to industrial, commercial, and residential developers in order to 
cover City costs associated with development. Generally they include utility fees (i.e. water, 
storm water, and sewer), building permit fees (i.e. plan review and building inspection), and 
land use permit fees (i.e. park dedication, variances, condition use permits, grading permit, 
etc.). Development fees create an overhead cost for development that impacts the feasibility of 
a project. This presentation will review the City’s development fees, the basis for collecting 
them, how they compare to other area communities, possible adjustments that could be made, 
and the consequences of those adjustments.  
 
Met Council SAC Surcharge - What is the Met Council SAC surcharge? How does it impact 
costs of development? Can the City do anything about them? The Met Council’s Sewer 
Availability Charge (SAC) is a fee charged directly to local governments when a new 
development first connects to the regional wastewater system or a property changes it use to 
create more demand on the system. Local governments, Elko New Market included, pass this 
fee on to the property owners. Unlike other communities in the region, Elko New Market has a 
special surcharge in addition to the regular SAC charge. The intent of this presentation is to 
review the history and purpose of the Met Council SAC surcharge, the impacts it has on 
development and what, if anything, can be done to change it. 
 
Affordable and Workforce Housing - What is affordable and workforce housing? Why is it 
important? What can be done to promote affordable housing? What is the inventory in Elko 
New Market? The availability of affordable housing throughout the City, County, State and 
Nation is becoming an increasingly important topic with more public discussion. The topic and 
the recent release of a research paper published by the Housing Affordability Institute entitled 
Priced Out: The True Cost of Minnesota’s Broken Housing Market has caused even more 
debate and discussion regarding the housing costs in Minnesota. This presentation will provide 
more information on what affordable and workforce housing is, factors that affect their 
availability and what can be done to promote affordable housing in Elko New Market. 
 
Transit - What types of transit services should be provided in Elko New Market? Should the 
City actively pursue a formal transit route? Currently, the only transit service that operates 



within the City limits is Scott County’s Dial-a-Ride. No other regular transit service exists in 
Elko New Market and there are no formal plans with area transit organizations (i.e. MVTA or 
Metro Transit) to expand routes to Elko New Market. However, the City’s Vision Statement 
states that “Elko New Market will have an effective and efficient transportation system, 
including access to the greater metropolitan area, transit opportunities, and improved 
connectivity to the interstate.” Transit will play a long term role in the City’s development, 
connectivity and our residents quality of life. This presentation will include a general 
background on transit and the steps necessary to get transit to Elko New Market. 
 
Secondary Access to Woodcrest Neighborhood - Should the City construct a secondary 
access into the Woodcrest neighborhood? Why is it needed? The access into the Woodcrest 
neighborhood is up a steep hill that gets slick during any snowfall making it difficult and, at 
times, impossible to access the neighborhood. Difficulty accessing the Woodcrest 
neighborhood due to weather conditions presents a public safety issue, if police and fire were 
not able access the neighborhood during an emergency. This presentation will outline why a 
secondary access is needed and how it might be achieved.  
 
Public Facility Maintenance - What is the condition of the City’s core facilities? What does 
that mean for facilities costs? None of the City’s core facilities have seen significant investment 
in regards to maintenance or renovation. With facilities ranging from over 30 years old (City 
Hall) to over 100 years old (Police Department), the need for investment in maintenance 
and/or renovation continues to increase. The Council recently approved architectural services 
for Phase 1 of the Police Department renovation; yet, other facilities (i.e. City Hall, the William 
Street storage shed, and the Church Street garage and archives building) are also in need of 
maintenance/renovations or will be in the future. The intent of this presentation is to provide an 
overview of existing facility conditions, discuss the increasing need for maintenance and/or 
renovation of core facilities in order to keep them viable operating spaces.  
 
Municipal Campus - What is the Municipal Campus? How did this idea come to be? In 2008, 
the City of Elko New Market commissioned a Master Facility Plan. The Plan recommended the 
establishment of a Municipal Campus and identified a number of potential locations. This 
presentation will provide a brief overview of the study and recommendations found within the 
Master Facility Plan and how it might be achieved. 
 
Community Center - Should we build a community center? Where will the funding come 
from? When and where should it be built? A Community Center for Elko New Market has been 
mentioned by residents in each of the last three Community Surveys. In this presentation, Staff 
will share the Community Survey results, as well as information about the components, costs, 
and process of developing a Community Center.  
 
Funding Park Infrastructure - What are the near and long term park needs in Elko New 
Market? How will they be financed? As Elko New Market continues to grow so do the parks 
and recreation needs of the community. Three major needs will be to address issues with 
aging equipment and facilities, repurpose existing parks to meet changing demands, and 
develop new parks to serve the growing population. Funding sources are limited and 
addressing the above needs will place a larger burden on developers, taxpayers, or both. The 
purpose of this presentation is to outline the near and long term parks and recreation needs 
and provide potential financing options to support those needs. 
 



 
Community Park - Does Elko New Market need a Community Park or large athletic complex? 
Where should it be located? What facilities should it include? How much land do we need? 
The need for a Community Park has been a topic of conversation for a number of years and 
most recently as part of the Comprehensive Plan update. The intent of this presentation is to 
provide the Council with information on the park planning definition, including land size, usual 
facilities, and costs. Staff will update you on work done to date on possible locations for a 
Community park, as well as show you some examples from other cities. 
 
Funding Public Works Equipment - Should Public Works continue to purchase used 
equipment? What are the pros and cons of purchasing used versus new equipment? 
Historically, Public Works has purchased good, used equipment when possible. However, due 
to increasing costs, lack of quality inventory in the market and limited access to parts, 
purchasing used equipment may no longer be a sensible option in certain circumstances. This 
presentation will review the factors influencing the decision to purchase new vs. used 
equipment and the cost implications of making the “jump” to new Public Works equipment 
(such as plow trucks). 
 
Financing Fire Department Apparatus - What apparatus needs replacement? How much 
does it cost? How will funding the equipment impact taxpayers? Within the next five years, 
over half of the major fire apparatus will need replaced. Currently, no capital reserves have 
been saved to fund the replacement of major apparatus and a substantial debt service will be 
necessary. The amount of funding needed to finance new apparatus will impact taxpayers in 
both the City and the township within the fire district. This presentation will more specifically 
detail the needs of the Fire Department, the cost of new apparatus, and the impact it will have 
on taxpayers.  
 
Fire Department Recruitment and Retention - What can be done to improve recruitment and 
retention of qualified candidates? How should we prepare for loss of staff? In the era of 
modern fire service, highly qualified candidates are difficult to come by. Changing lifestyle 
trends such as the transient nature of workers, the distance between home and work, and 
increasing demands of family and extracurricular activities, have influenced the number, quality 
and longevity of service for candidates available for recruitment. Although the Fire Department 
currently has the staff necessary to meet call loads, future recruitment and retention is a major 
concern. Currently, 10 of the 28 (36%) Firefighters are fully vested and could retire with full 
pension at any time. An additional 3 (11%), will be fully vested within the next five years. So, 
nearly half of the Department is or will be able to “punch out” and retire from the department 
with full pension within the next five years. The intent of this presentation is to discuss, staffing, 
succession planning, recruitment and retention of firefighters.  
 
Police Department Staffing - What would it take to have 24/7/365 coverage from the Police 
Department? How close are we today? What are the Council’s goals regarding 24/7/365 
coverage? When and how quickly should changes be made? In this presentation, Staff will 
review existing staff levels and discuss staffing changes necessary to increase the Police 
Departments level of service, as well as the cost. 
 
Ordinances 101 - Do you know how to read, understand, and utilize the Elko New Market City 
Code? During this presentation, Staff will discuss how ordinances are structured and provide 



the Council with the information necessary to access, read, interpret, and utilize the City 
ordinances. 
 
Code Enforcement - Should the City change its policy regarding code enforcement? Are our 
ordinances reasonable and/or enforceable? Code enforcement is becoming an increasingly 
important topic in Elko New Market. The volume of calls received at City Hall, reporting 
violations of City Codes, continues to rise. The most recent community survey indicates that 
the community is increasingly expecting higher standards of the properties in their 
communities and neighborhoods. Enforcing the current codes, and changing the culture, 
requires staff and time. This presentation will outline why code enforcement is necessary, 
current code enforcement practices, the potential consequences of various approaches to 
code enforcement and what changes the City may want to make to regulations and how they 
are enforced. 
 
Public Communications - How does and should the City communicate with the public? What 
are the resources required? What resources do we have? Existing outlets of communication 
utilized by the City include: the City website, City Newsletters, the electronic sign in front of 
City Hall, Facebook, and Twitter. Frequency and quality of communications is heavily 
dependent on Staff time and resources. The purpose of this presentation is to provide a brief 
background on public communications and communication outlets used by the City. 
 
 
Please contact the City Administrator with any questions regarding the matter in this 
memorandum (952-461-2710). 
 
 
Attachments: 
Vision Statement, adopted July 28, 2011 
Priority Goals, dated June 28, 2018 
Community Oriented Local Government, adopted April 22, 2010 
2018 Community Survey Summary 



Adopted July 28, 2011 

VISION STATEMENT 
 
The City of Elko New Market has adopted the following vision. This 
future vision of the community is considered both desirable and 
feasible. The vision statement is intended to serve as the foundation 
for decisions regarding goals, policies, and finances. 
 
Elko New Market is envisioned to be a mature growing freestanding 
suburb of the Twin Cities Metropolitan Area. The community will 
preserve its historic landmarks and small town character while 
providing suburban amenities and services. A full range of 
employment, housing, business, service, social, technology 
infrastructure and recreational opportunities will be available for the 
citizens and visitors. 
 
Elko New Market will promote a diverse commercial base, including 
light industrial.  The City will facilitate planned redevelopment. 
Commercial development and redevelopment within the community 
will be aesthetically pleasing with architectural standards that 
promotes quality development.  
 
Elko New Market will provide a full range of municipal services to its 
residents. The City will allocate sufficient resources to meet the 
growing needs of the community.  
 
Elko New Market will have a comprehensive park and trails system. 
The park system will have sufficient facilities, play fields and open 
space to meet the needs of the community’s residents.  
 
The community will have an effective and efficient transportation 
system, including access to the greater metropolitan area, transit 
opportunities, and improved connectivity to the interstate. 
 
Elko New Market will provide community oriented local government 
that promotes community involvement, organizational improvements, 
problem solving, performance measurement and professionalism. 
The City will be financially sound, engaging in long-term financial 
planning to provide municipal services without undue burden on the 
tax payers of the city.   



 Adopted June 28, 2018 

PRIORITY GOALS 
 

• Develop a more diverse tax base, create more local 
employment opportunities and promote additional 
businesses and services within the community.  
 

• Advance the “shovel ready” status of areas guided for 
commercial and industrial development through planning 
and where feasible, the procurement of supporting 
infrastructure. 
 

• The acquisition of land for public purposes, including, but 
not limited to public utilities, library, parks and interchange 
rights-of-way. Position the City to take advantage of 
opportunities to acquire land for public purposes. 
 

• Enhance the quality of life in the community through the 
improvement and expansion of the parks and trails system, 
recreational programming and cultural events. 
 

• Promote high quality residential development, including a 
broad spectrum of housing choices in both type and cost, 
the development of residential lots and an increase in 
residential building permit activity. 



 

COMMUNITY ORIENTED 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT 

 
 
 

 
The City of Elko New Market shall provide Community Oriented Local Government. This 
philosophy guides the City - its Council, Commissions, Staff and other agents in how they 
conduct the business of local government and provide public services. 

 
The Community-Oriented Local Government philosophy is comprised of five key 
components: 

 
1. Community Involvement - The City of Elko New Market will incorporate community 

feedback in making participative, transparent decisions by: 
- Providing more opportunities for the public to have input on decisions that affect 

them. 
- Engaging the public in strategic planning initiatives, both short and long term. 
- Enabling the public to provide input on the effectiveness of public services and 

policies. 
- Working to develop leadership within the community. 

 
2. Organizational Improvements - The City of Elko New Market will strive to elevate the 

level of customer service and service delivery through cost effective use of personnel, 
structure, and information systems by: 

- Developing an organizational climate that promotes innovation, creativity, and a 
customer-centered focus in providing community services, programs and 
projects. 

- Improve public services by reducing barriers between City departments in order 
to provide greater accessibility, flexibility, and efficiency in the delivery of public 
services. 

 
3. Problem Solving - The City of Elko New Market will engage in the  process of proactive 

and systematic examination of identified issues in order to evaluate effective policy 
decisions by: 

- Using available technology to improve the quality and accuracy of data used in 
decisions. 

- Provide the resources to develop and implement the most cost effective 
solutions. 

- Considering the long term costs and benefits in policy decisions. 
- Engaging in long-term financial planning to provide public services without 

undue burden on the tax payers of the city. 
 
4. Performance Measurement - The City of Elko New Market will develop and utilize 

methods for measuring performance to evaluate progress and establish accountability 
for improving public services. 

 
5. Professionalism - The City of Elko New Market will provide local government that is 

characterized by high technical and ethical standards. The City will conduct business 
and present itself in a manner that that promotes public confidence. The City will 
endeavor to recruit, train, and develop cohesive, high quality professional staff that will 
excel in providing public services. 



 
 

 
Page 1 

 

The MORRIS LEATHERMAN Company 

FINDINGS AND IMPLICATIONS 
2018 City of Elko New Market 

 
 
City Demographics: 
 
Elko New Market remains a growing exurban community.  Since the 2015 study, the median 
longevity of adult residents decreased by less than two years to 11.0 years.  This is over five 
years lower than the metro area average, but in line with other exurban areas.  Twenty-three 
percent of the sample report moving to the city during the past five years, while 28% was there 
for over two decades.  Fifty-six percent have school-aged or pre-school children in their 
households.   
 
The median age of respondents is 43.0 years old.  Nineteen percent of the sample is over 55 
years old, while 24% are less than 35 years old.  Women outnumber men by two percent in the 
sample.    
 
 
Quality of Life Issues: 
 
Ninety-eight percent rate their quality of life as either “excellent” or “good;” in fact, 46% see it 
as “excellent.”  Only two percent rate the quality of life lower.  The key differentiating factor for 
quality of life is the “excellent” rating given by residents.  A high 46% deem it “excellent,” 
placing the city well within the top decile of Greater Metropolitan Area suburban and exurban 
communities.  Among exurban communities, Elko New Market’s “excellent rating” is at the top 
of the range.     
 
“Housing,” at 16%, followed by “quiet and peaceful” and “small town feel,” each at 14%, tops 
the list of factors most important in moving to Elko New Market.   “Housing” is particularly 
important to 5-30 year residents and 18-44 year olds; “quiet and peaceful” is a key factor for 
over 30 year residents and 18-24 year olds.  Ten percent point to “closeness to family,” 
especially less than five year residents, and nine percent cite “rural and open space,” very 
important to over 30 year residents and 18-24 year olds.  Together, these top five factors are 
mentioned by 63% of the sample. 
 



 
 

 
Page 2 

At 26%, “small town feel” leads the list of attributes people like most about living in the 
community.  “Quiet and peaceful” and “rural and open spaces” follow at 18% and 12% 
respectively; the latter is especially liked by less than two year residents, empty-nesters, and over 
55 year olds.  “Friendly people” and “nice place to raise children” rank next at 11% and ten 
percent each.  Together these top five factors are posted by 77% of the sample. 
 
The most serious issues facing the city are “lack of businesses,” at 30%, mentioned most often 
by households containing children.  Fourteen percent point to the “need for a grocery store,” 
especially 5-30 year residents, while ten percent each cite “high taxes,” particularly over 20 year 
residents and over 45 year olds, or “too much growth.”  These four issues are posted by 64% of 
the sample.  A “booster” group of six percent, just below the Greater Metropolitan Area norm, 
says there are “no” serious issues facing the community.  “Boosters” have declined by 17% 
during the past three years.      
 
When property taxes are weighed against the quality of city services, 78% rate the value as 
“excellent” or “good,” a six percent increase in three years.  Twenty-two percent, down six 
percent, rate the quality as “only fair” or “poor.”  More negative ratings are posted by over 55 
year olds and men.  The over three-to-one favorable-to-unfavorable ratio reveals a community 
satisfied with the cost of currently-offered city services.  This rating continues to rank within the 
top decile of Greater Metropolitan Area suburban and exurban communities; among exurban 
communities, it places Elko New Market at the top over the past five years. 
 
 
City Services: 
 
In evaluating specific city services, the mean approval rating is 87.5%, placing the city in the top 
quartile of Metropolitan Area suburban and exurban communities.  The mean approval rating 
decreased by 4.5% in the past three years.   As an indicator of more dissatisfaction with city 
services this year, “excellent” ratings decreased by an average of 9.6% since 2015. 
   
Even so, in looking at each individual city service, two services stand out as “best practices” in 
the metro area: “city street repair and maintenance” and “snow plowing.”  Four services are in 
the top decile in comparison to other Metropolitan Area communities: “police protection,” “fire 
protection,” and “park maintenance.   
 

City Service Favorable Unfavorable Decrease in 
“Excellent” Rating 

Police Protection 98% 2% 5% 
Fire Protection 91% 3% 4% 
Park maintenance 91% 7% 13% 
Snow Plowing 86% 14% 11% 



 
 

 
Page 3 

City Service Favorable Unfavorable Decrease in 
“Excellent” Rating 

City-sponsored recreation programs 84% 8% 13% 
City Street Repair and Maintenance 82% 17% 10% 
Code Enforcement 78% 15% 11% 
Mean 87.1% 9.4% 9.6% 
 
Those rating a city services as “only fair” or “poor” were asked for a reason.  Forty percent of 
residents fall into this category.   “Poor street repair” is criticized by 25%.  “Poor snow plowing” 
and “lack of code enforcement” are each cited by 22%.   
 
Seventy-five percent feel the City of Elko New Market does not need to add any further city 
services.  Among the twenty-five percent indicating the city should add services, fifteen percent 
would like to see a “community center.”    
 
 
Public Safety Issues: 
 
A solid 85% rate the amount of police patrolling in their neighborhood as “about the right 
amount.”  Only 12% think the amount is “not enough.”  Eighty percent rate the amount of traffic 
enforcement by the police in their neighborhood as “about the right amount.”  Eighteen percent, 
though, think it is “not enough.”  These combined ratings of police patrolling are among the top 
quartile of communities across the Greater Metropolitan Area.   
 
Forty-one percent, an 11% increase in three years, think the problem of traffic speeding in their 
neighborhood is either “very serious” or “somewhat serious.”  Fifty-nine percent see it as “not 
serious.”  Thirty-nine percent, a 17% increase in three years, view the problem of stop sign 
violations in their neighborhood as either “very serious” or “somewhat serious.”  Sixty percent 
think it is “not too serious” or “not at all serious.”  Both levels of concern are slightly higher than 
other suburban and exurban communities; they arise from the evaluations of over 30 year 
residents and over 55 year olds. 
 
Twenty-six percent think the greatest public safety concern in Elko New Market is “traffic 
speeding,” while 17% see it as “youth crimes and vandalism.”  It is important to note from the 
previous question on the seriousness of traffic speeding; only 13% rate the problem as “very 
serious.”  Although traffic speeding leads the list of public safety concerns, it is a “soft” concern.   
Thirty-seven percent think “none” of the enumerated public safety concerns are a problem in the 
city; double the Greater Metropolitan Area average. 
 
 
 



 
 

 
Page 4 

 
Transportation Issues: 
 
Fifty-five percent commute outside of the city to school or work on a daily basis.  Within this 
group, 78% use Highway 35 for the majority of their commutes, while 11% similarly use 
Highway 13.  Fifteen percent regularly ride public transit, an almost three-fold increase in three 
years.  Frequent users tend to be under 10 year residents, households containing children, 18-34 
year olds, and women.  The typical rider uses public transit five or more days per week.  Among 
non-public transit users, 65% have never ridden this form of transportation. 
 
Next, respondents were asked how likely they would be to use four different potential public 
transit services.  In the table below, the potential service is followed by the percent of residents 
who would be at least “somewhat likely” to use it and the market projection of service users. 
 
Potential Service Likely to Use Projected Use 
Service to events in Downtown Minneapolis or Downtown 
Saint Paul for events like concerts or sporting events at Target 
Center, Target Field or the Xcel Energy Center 

63% 24% 

Service to the Minnesota State Fair, Valley Fair, Canterbury 
Park or the Renaissance Center 60% 22% 

Regular weekly commuter service from Elko New Market to 
Downtown Minneapolis 34% 12% 

Service to area Community and Technical Colleges, such as 
Normandale, Inver Hills, or Dakota County Technical College 25% 9% 

  
As in the 2015 study, the most popular service is to events in either Downtown Minneapolis or 
Saint Paul.  Close behind is seasonal service to periodic amusements.  More limited interest in 
found in the daily commuter service to Downtown Minneapolis and service to area educational 
institutions. 
 
Eighty-one percent report familiarity with the Minnesota Valley Transit Authority, or MVTA.  
Since 2015, familiarity has almost doubled. 
 
 
Parks and Recreation: 
 
The household use of existing facilities in the park system was examined in some detail.  Eighty-
seven percent report members using the trails and sidewalks.  Seventy-four percent visit larger 
community parks and 68% visit smaller neighborhood parks.  Fifty-eight percent, an 18% 
increase since the last study, use the community ballfields, while 52%, a 13% increase, indicate 
using the Wagner Park Shelter.  Thirty-two percent, a 13% increase in three years, use the 



 
 

 
Page 5 

Wagner Park skatepark, and 32% visit city ice rinks.  When comparing Elko New Market to 
communities with similar demographics, use of park facilities is among the top quartile of cities. 
 
Users were asked to rate each specific facility.  A comparatively high average of 90% of facility 
users offering ratings post positive ratings; in only two cases, Wagner Park Skatepark and city 
ice rinks, did negative judgments exceed 10%.  These park facility ratings continue to place the 
city within the top ten percent of cities across the Greater Metropolitan Area and among the top 
three exurban communities.  
 

Park Facility Change in 
Usership 

Favorable  Unfavorable 

Larger Community Parks +10% 74% 2% 
Smaller Neighborhood Parks +2% 68% 8% 
Trails and Sidewalks +10% 87% 7% 
Community Ballfields +22% 56% 6% 
Wagner Park Skatepark +16% 29% 6% 
Ice Rinks +7% 32% 6% 
Wagner Park Shelter +17% 52% 3% 
 
Ninety-one percent of the residents feel that existing recreational facilities offered by the City 
meet the needs of their household.  Only seven percent disagree, principally citing the lack of 
baseball fields.   
 
Ninety-two percent similarly feel that existing recreational programs offered by the City meets 
the needs of their households.  Six percent disagree, citing particularly the lack of basketball 
programs.  This level of satisfaction with recreational programs is right at the norm for the 
Greater Metropolitan Area.   
 
Forty-four percent, consistent with the 2015 level, report household members participated in a 
City park and recreation program.  The most popular are baseball/softball programs, accounting 
for almost one-third of the participants, and swimming, accounting for 14% of the participants.  
Among participants, a unanimous 99% are satisfied with the experience.   Combining the use and 
rating of recreation programs, Elko New Market places among the top five communities across 
the Greater Metropolitan Area. 
 
Ninety-six percent believe existing community events offered by the City meet the needs of their 
households.  When comparing Elko New Market to communities with similar demographics, this 
level of satisfaction with community events is 17% higher than the average.  A very large 86% 
think the City has the “right amount” of community events; only 11% believe it is “too few.”  
Eighty-one percent of community households participate in community events.  Among 
participants, 21% attended “the Parade,” 16% attended “Fire & Rescue Days,” and 15% 
participated in “block parties” or “the Easter Egg Hunt.”  One hundred percent are satisfied with 



 
 

 
Page 6 

their experiences there.  Combining the use and rating of community events, Elko New Market is 
at the top of communities across the Greater Metropolitan Area. 
 
 
City Government and Staff: 
 
Overall, residents continue to be extremely satisfied with their contacts with City Hall. 
Forty-five percent of the sample contacted Elko New Market City Hall during the past twelve 
months.  Seventy-one percent called or visited one of four departments: Billing, Public Works, 
Parks and Recreation, or General Information.  On two aspects of customer service, staff 
members are rated as either “excellent” or “good” by at least 91% of those who contacted City 
Hall: “response time from City Staff to assist you” and “courtesy of city staff.”  There are no 
statistically significant differences between departments when looking at aspects of customer 
service.  The standard threshold indicating quality customer service in the public sector is an 
80% positive rating.   The average 94% favorable ratings on customer service places Elko New  
Market in the top decile among Greater Metropolitan Area communities.    
 
 
Sources of City Information: 
 
Forty percent cite the “City Newsletter” as their principal source of information about Elko New 
Market City Government and its activities.  Twenty-nine percent point to the “City Website.”  
Eight percent cite “social media,” while six percent each rely upon “e-mailed newsletters” or 
“word of mouth.”  “Local newspapers” are the principal source of information for four percent.  
The City Newsletter audience is heavily skewed toward over 20 year residents, empty-nesters, 
over 45 year olds, and men.  The “City Website” has especially high use percentages by 2-10 
year residents, households containing children, 18-44 year olds, and women.  These two sources 
of information appeal to different “generations.”  Except with respect to one source of 
information, most respondents already rely upon their most preferred source; the only exception 
is “e-mailed newsletters,” preferred by 22% and currently relied upon only six percent.   
 
Eighty-five percent report a household member regularly read the city’s newsletter.  Among 
regular readers, 94% rate the quality of the newsletter either “excellent” or “good,” while seven 
percent rate it as “only fair” or “poor.” 
 
If the printed version of the city’s newsletter were discontinued, 86% of Elko New Market 
households would be able to access the electronic version on a computer or mobile advice.  
Sixty-seven percent are also at least “somewhat likely” to read an electronic version of the city 
newsletter; but, using standard market projection techniques, 26% would be expected to actually 
read this version. 
 



 
 

 
Page 7 

Sixty-seven percent, an increase of 22%, of the households in the community accessed the City’s 
website.  Among users, 88% favorably rate the content of the website, while 85% rate the ease of 
navigating the website favorably.       
 
A social media presence by the City of Elko New Market would supplement its current 
communications reach.  At this point, Facebook users are 84% of the households in the city, 
while 62% use YouTube, and 42% access Twitter.  Almost 90% of the users of Facebook, and 
about 70% of YouTube or Twitter users report they are likely to use that social media to obtain 
information about the community. 
  
 
Conclusions: 
  
In comparison with the opinion survey conducted in 2015, Elko New Market residents are 
growing more worried about a cluster of issues correlated with growth and development.  
Concerns about business development, development amenities, rate of growth, and tax levels 
emerged as city challenges.  Even so, residents rate the quality of life in Elko New Market and 
rate city government and services relatively high.        
 
The key issue facing decision-makers in the future remain balancing growth and development 
with natural ambience and the efficient provision of city services – in essence, balancing the 
wishes of residents against their concerns as taxpayers, City government and staff currently 
strikes an excellent balance when compared with other exurban communities.  Strong positive 
city service ratings are posted across the board, though a slippage in intensity – from “excellent” 
to “good” ratings – is common, and more criticism can be found in the perceived lack of code 
enforcement and slow plowing response to snow storms.  Public safety concerns remain focused 
on traffic speeding and stop sign violations in residential neighborhoods, as well as youth crimes 
and vandalism. 
 
Development preferences are focusing on “Type II” growth, shifting from the rate of change and 
provision of basic services to desired types of general development.  Residents see a need for 
additional amenities – more local business offerings, especially a grocery store.   
 
Two opinion “blocs” are present in this survey.  Demographically, the profile of the first group is 
over 20 year residents, empty-nesters, over 45 year olds, and men.  They are concerned about 
“high taxes,” “preserving the rural ambience of the city by maintaining open spaces,” and 
“efficient city government spending.”  The second group is composed of less than 20 year 
residents, households containing children, 18-44 year olds, and women.  They are concerned 
about “safety,” “quality of schools,” “preserving the rural ambience of the city by maintaining 
open spaces,” and “lack of businesses in the community.”  The first block primarily uses the City 
Newsletter to keep abreast of City government and its activities; the second bloc relies upon the 



 
 

 
Page 8 

City Website.  
 
Overall, the City of Elko New Market continues to do an exceptional job in communicating with 
residents about city government and policies.  But, shifting away from the printed newsletter 
could disenfranchise one of the major opinion blocs in the community.  Given their 
communication preferences, residents want to receive information directly from the City with no 
secondary filters.   
   
As in the 2015 study, Elko New Market is still “working well.”  Residents are very happy with 
their community.  They endorse the direction the City is taking and are confident about the future 
of the community.  The major challenge will be preserving the small town ambience of the 
community and simultaneously attracting more suburban-like amenities to the city.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

ELKO NEW MARKET CITY HALL 

601 MAIN STREET 

ELKO NEW MARKET, MINNESOTA 55054 

THURSDAY, MAY 22, 2019 

 

BUSINESS MEETING 

7:30 PM 

 

REVISED AGENDA 

 
 

1. Call to Order 

 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

  

3. Adopt/Approve Agenda 

 

4. Presentations, Proclamations and Acknowledgements (PP&A) 

a. Oath of Office – Officer Steve Hotaling 
 

5. Public Comment 
Individuals may address the Council about any item not contained on the regular agenda. The Council may limit the time 

allotted to each individual speaker. A maximum of 15 minutes will be allotted for Public Comment. If the full 15 minutes are 

not needed for Public Comment, the City Council will continue with the agenda. The City Council will not normally take any 

official action on items discussed during Public Comment, with the exception of referral to staff or commission for future 

report. 

 

6. Consent Agenda 
All matters listed under consent agenda are considered routine by the City Council and will be acted on by one motion in the 

order listed below. There may be an explanation, but no separate discussion on these items. If discussion is desired, that item 

will be removed from the consent agenda and considered separately. 
a. Approve May 9, 2019 Minutes of the City Council Meeting 
b. Approve Payment of Claims and Electronic Transfer of Funds  
c. Adopt Resolution 19-23 Approving Outdoor Concerts and Events Permit for Fire Rescue Days 

Parade and Other Events  
d. Adopt Resolution 19-24 Outdoor Concerts and Events Permit for Windmill Animal Rescue 
e. Outdoor Concert and Event and Expansion of Liquor Premise – The Doublewide 

i. Adopt Resolution 19-25 Approving Outdoor Concerts and Events for The Doublewide 
ii. Adopt Resolution 19-26 Approving Temporary Expansion of Licensed Premises for The 

Doublewide 
f. Adopt Resolution 19-27 Approving Outdoor Concerts and Events for Tapestry Church 
g. Approve Agreement For Municipal Facilities Garbage And Recycling Collection And Disposal 

Services 
h. Approve Revised Job Description – Public Works Maintenance Worker I  
i. Authorization to Purchase Fire Apparatus  
j. Adopt Resolution 19-29 Relating To Financing Of Certain Proposed Projects To Be Undertaken 

By The City Of Elko New Market; Establishing Compliance With Reimbursement Bond 
Regulations Under The Internal Revenue Code 



 

7. Public Hearings 

 
8. General Business 

a. Sewer Trunk Fee Credit Policy 
i. Resolution 19-22 Adopting A Policy For A Credit To The City Sanitary Sewer Trunk Fee 

For Eligible Properties 
b. Approve Plans and Specs and Authorizing Ad for Bids - 2019 Streets Rehabilitation 

i. 19-28 Approving Plans and Specifications and Authorizing Advertisement for Bids 
c. 2020 County Road 2 and 91 Intersection Roundabout Project 

i. Preliminary Design for CSAH 2 & 91 Roundabout and Direction on Project Add-On 
Items  

ii. Proposal for CSAH 2 and CSAH 91 Roundabout, Trails, Downtown Lighting and 
Continuous Lighting Final Design 

d. Discussion Regarding the Regulation of Mobile Food Units 
e. Woodcrest Sanitary Sewer 

i. Options for Response to Moore Request for Sewer 
 

9. Reports 

a. Administration 
b. Public Works 
c. Police Department 
d. Fire Department 
e. Engineering 
f. Community Development 
g. Parks Department 

i. Draft Parks & Recreation Commission Minutes of May 14, 2019 Meeting  
h. Community & Civic Events Committee (CCEC) 
i. Other Committee and Board Reports 

i. Scott County Association for Leadership and Efficiency (SCALE) 
ii. Minnesota Valley Transit Authority (MVTA) 

iii. I35 Solutions Alliance 
iv. Chamber of Commerce 

 
10. Discussion by Council 

 

11. Adjournment 

 

 



1 | P a g e    

 

City Council Business Meeting MINUTES  

MAY 9, 2019 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Julius at 6:33 p.m. 
Members Present: Mayor Julius, Councilmembers: Berg, Schwichtenberg, and Seepersaud 
Members Absent: Councilmember Timmerman 
Also Present: Assistant City Administrator Nagel, Police Chief Juell, City Attorney Poehler, City 
Engineer Revering, Community Development Specialist Christianson, and Community 
Development /Administrative Intern Sevening 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Mayor Julius led the Council and audience in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

3. ADOPT/APPROVE AGENDA 

MOTION by Councilmember Schwichtenberg, second by Councilmember Seepersaud to 
approve the agenda.  APIF, MOTION CARRIED 

4. PRESENTATIONS, PROCLAMATIONS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 
Recognition of Service – John Fuller  
Mayor Julius and Councilmembers, together with City Staff, friends and family, joined the 
community in thanking John Fuller for his 34-1/2 years of service to the Elko New Market Fire 
Department and wishing him the best in his retirement. 

5. PUBLIC COMMENT 

There was no Public Comment at the meeting. 

6. CONSENT AGENDA 

MOTION by Councilmember Berg, second Councilmember Seepersaud to approve Consent 
Agenda. 

a. Approve Corrected April 11, 2019 Minutes of the City Council Meeting  
b. Approve April 25, 2019 Minutes of the City Council Meeting 
c. Approve May 3, 2019 Minutes of Special City Council Meeting 
d. Approve Payment of Claims and Electronic Transfer of Funds  

APIF, MOTION CARRIED 

7. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
None 

8. GENERAL BUSINESS 

Policy for a Credit to the Sanitary Sewer Trunk Fee for Eligible Properties 
City Engineer Revering led a discussion on options for revising the SSTS Fee Waiver Policy.  
City Councilmembers suggested that Woodcrest properties were not eligible for the credit and 
that the reduction would be based on a percentage, rather than a flat dollar amount.  City 
Councilmembers expressed concern on the total liability that City funds might incur should 
every eligible property take advantage of the credit and asked the City Engineer to determine the 



2 | P a g e    

 

potential impact on City funds.  City Engineer Revering said that he could provide that 
information at the next Council Meeting, along with a recommendation from City Staff on the 
amount of the reduction.  MOTION by Mayor Julius, second Councilmember Schwichtenberg, 
to table this item until the May 22, 2019 City Council Meeting.  APIF, MOTION CARRIED 

 

9. REPORTS 

a) ADMINISTRATION 
No Report 
 

b) PUBLIC WORKS  
Written report included in Council Packet. 
 

c) POLICE DEPARTMENT  
Chief Juell commented on the progress in hiring a new Police Officer with an anticipated 
start date of Monday, May 20, 2019. 
 
Written report included in Council Packet.   
 

d) FIRE DEPARTMENT  
No Report 
 

e) ENGINEERING  
City Engineer Revering presented an update on the 2019 Pavement Rehabilitation 
Program Final Design. He said that no action was required for this meeting and took 
questions and feedback from the City Council on the program. 
 

f) COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  
i.   Mobile Food Unit (MFU) Discussion  

Community Development/Administrative Intern Haley Sevening, along with Community 
Development Specialist Renee Christianson, led a discussion on the proposed Mobile 
Food Unit (MFU) Ordinance.  In general, Councilmembers felt that the ordinance could 
be worded to be more inviting/welcoming, less restrictive, and with specific steps for 
them to get licensed.  Other input included questioning the 2-day application time period 
in proposed Section 4-10-5. The City Attorney responded by suggesting additional 
language to allow the City Clerk to approve it over the counter, or sooner than two days, 
but recommended keeping the 2-day period to account for unknown circumstances.  After 
discussion on the license fee, the consensus of the City Council was to keep it at the 
current $25 in the ordinance. Consensus of the City Council was to remove 4-10-7 (B) in 
the final version as the current language was too broad.  There was discussion about 
allowing MFU’s to operate in streets and public rights of ways. Schwichtenberg and Berg 
expressed support for allowing MFU’s to operate within public rights of way, including 
residential areas.  There was not a consensus of the City Council about allowing MFU’s 
to operate in public rights of way in residential districts. Overall, the Council would like 
to see more flexibility in where they can operate.   The next discussion revolved around 
the 21-day limit for MFUs to operate in the City and Staff noted that it was regulated that 



3 | P a g e    

 

way by the State law.  Chief Juell added that if it can operate for more than 21 days, then 
it becomes more of a permanent seasonal stand, and less mobile.  The final discussion 
item was whether to remove proposed Section 4-10-8 (L) which restricts MFU’s from 
operating in a certain geographic areas of the City during Fire Rescue Days, and allow 
MFUs to operate during any City event, including Fire Rescue Days. There was no 
consensus on this point, so City Council directed staff to look at how other cities handle 
MFUs during community events for further discussion.  Consensus of the City Council 
was to add it to a future meeting once City Staff completed their research. No further 
action was taken by the City Council on this item. 

  
g) PARKS DEPARTMENT  

i. Written Parks Commission April 16, 2019 Special Meeting Minutes included in 
Council Packet. 

ii. April Parks & Recreation Update presented by Assistant City Administrator 
Nagel.  He provided information on the Parks Department projects for 2019. 
 

h) COOMUNITY AND CIVIC EVENT COMMITTEE (CCEC) 
Draft Community & Civic Events Committee Minutes of April 9, 2019 Meeting was 
presented by Assistant City Administrator Nagel.  He said that 220 kids were at the Egg 
Hunt and informed City Council that the Committee was already working on the next 
City Event – Fire Rescue Days. 
 

i) OTHER COMMITTEE AND BOARD REPORTS  
i.  SCALE 
Mayor Julius updated on the May 10, 2019 SCALE meeting  

ii. MVTA 
Councilmember Schwichtenberg updated the Council on recent MVTA events..  

iii. I35 SOLUTIONS ALLIANCE 
No Report 

iv. CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 
No Report 

10. DISCUSSION BY COUNCIL 

Mayor Julius stated that Wednesday, May 22 is the Council retreat for an open conversation on 
what the Council wants to accomplish both now and in the future.  City Staff will provide 
framework materials. 

11. ADJOURNMENT 
MOTION by Councilmember Berg, second by Councilmember Schwichtenberg, to adjourn the 
meeting at 8:03 p.m.  APIF, MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
 



4 | P a g e    

 

Respectfully submitted by: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Mark Nagel, Assistant City Administrator 
 



 STAFF MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: Presentation of Elko New Market Claims and Electronic Transfer of 

Funds 
MEETING DATE: May 22, 2019 
PREPARED BY: Stephanie Fredrickson, Administrative Assistant 
REQUESTED ACTION: Approve Payment of Current Claims 
 
COMMUNITY VISION: 

 A mature growing freestanding suburb of the Twin Cities Metropolitan Area, preserving 
historic landmarks and small town character while providing suburban amenities and 
services, as well as full range of employment, housing, business, service, social, 
technology infrastructure and recreational opportunities for citizens and visitors 

 Promote a diverse commercial base including light industrial and facilitating planned 
redevelopment which will be aesthetically pleasing with architectural standards that 
promotes quality development 

 Provide a full range of municipal services to its residents. The City will allocate sufficient 
resources to meet the growing needs of the community 

 A comprehensive park and trails system that will have sufficient facilities, play fields and 
open space to meet the needs of residents 

 An effective and efficient transportation system, including access to the greater 
metropolitan area, transit opportunities, and improved connectivity to the interstate 

 Provide community oriented local government and be financially sound, engaging in 
long-term financial planning to provide municipal services without undue burden on tax 
payers 

5 YEAR GOALS: 
 Diverse tax base, employment opportunities, additional businesses and services, 

promote high quality broad spectrum of residential development 
 Advance “shovel ready” status of areas guided for commercial and industrial 

development 
 Acquisition of land for public purposes, position City to take advantage of land 

acquisition opportunities  
 Enhance quality of life through parks, trails, recreational programming and cultural 

events 
 The development of residential lots and an increase in residential building permit activity 

COMMUNITY ORIENTED LOCAL GOVERNMENT: 
 Community Involvement 
 Organizational Improvement 
 Problem Solving 
 Performance Measurement 
 Professionalism 

  



BACKGROUND 
Each City Council meeting the Administrative Assistant presents for approval the Elko New 
Market Claims and Electronic Transfer of Funds. 
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
Budgeted 
 
Attachments: 

• Check Summary Register 
 
 



 CITY OF ELKO/NEW MARKET 05/20/19 3:41 PM 
 Page 1 

 *Check Summary Register© 
May 22, 2019 

 Name Check Date Check Amt 
AUTOPAYS 
Paid Chk#  006078E SUN LIFE FINANCIAL 5/2/2019 $1,573.97 Life Insurance 
Paid Chk#  006079E UNUSED NUMBER N/A 0.00 UNUSED - VOID 
Paid Chk#  006080E VISA 5/6/2019 ($8.00) Payment Difference 
Paid Chk#  006081E NEW MARKET BANK 3/31/2019 $15.00 Mar Bank Fees 
Paid Chk#  006082E NEW MARKET BANK 5/6/2019 $15.00 Mar Bank Fees 
Paid Chk#  006083E XCEL ENERGY 3/31/2019 ($1.02) Street Light Credit 
Paid Chk#  006084E PERA 5/7/2019 $618.99 Vendor Liability- PR9.01 
Paid Chk#  006085E MN DEPT OF REVENUE 5/7/2019 $266.70 Vendor Liability-- PR9.01 
Paid Chk#  006086E INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE 5/7/2019 $1,338.51 Vendor Liability- PR9.01 
Paid Chk#  006087E HEALTH EQUITY, INC. 5/7/2019 $81.92 Payton Last Paycheck PR 9.01 
Paid Chk#  006088E HEALTH EQUITY, INC. 5/7/2019 $38.35 Monthly HSA Fees 
Paid Chk#  006089E PERA 5/15/2019 $7,267.64 Vendor Liability 
Paid Chk#  006090E MN DEPT OF REVENUE 5/15/2019 $1,872.69 Vendor Liability 
Paid Chk#  006091E INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE 5/15/2019 $9,188.38 Vendor Liability 
Paid Chk#  006092E HEALTH EQUITY, INC. 5/15/2019 $706.92 HSA PR 10 051619 
Paid Chk#  006093E XCEL ENERGY 5/22/2019 $172.56 Lift Station / 10010 Ptarmigan 
Paid Chk#  006094E XCEL ENERGY 5/23/2019 $2,503.45 25499 Natchez Ave - Water Trea 
Paid Chk#  006095E XCEL ENERGY 5/22/2019 $887.45 Wellhouse - 26460 France Ave 
Paid Chk#  006096E XCEL ENERGY 5/22/2019 $990.63 26536 France Ave 
Paid Chk#  006097E MN VALLEY ELECTRIC COMPANY 5/22/2019 $1,443.94 Streetlights, Elko 
Paid Chk#  006098E MN VALLEY ELECTRIC COMPANY 5/9/2019 $76.36 Glenborough Dr & Chowen 
Paid Chk#  006099E MN VALLEY ELECTRIC COMPANY 5/22/2019 $34.69 27059 Beard Ave Lift Pump 
Paid Chk#  006100E MINNESOTA ENERGY RESOURCES 5/20/2019 $22.36 408 Carter Street 
Paid Chk#  006101E MINNESOTA ENERGY RESOURCES 5/23/2019 $20.62 359 James Parkway 
Paid Chk#  006102E MINNESOTA ENERGY RESOURCES 5/20/2019 $156.63 110 J Roberts Way - Library 
Paid Chk#  006103E NUVERA COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 5/20/2019 $325.64 Police Dept Phone/Fax 
Paid Chk#  006104E NUVERA COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 5/20/2019 $558.84 Area Hall Phone/SCADA 
Paid Chk#  006105E XCEL ENERGY 5/31/2019 $399.92 Streetlights 
Paid Chk#  006106E PSN 5/6/2019 $1,071.41 Webstore/Credit Card Processin 
Paid Chk#  006107E MN VALLEY ELECTRIC COMPANY 5/22/2019 $127.00 268X Xerxes Water Tower, Elko 
Paid Chk#  006108E NUVERA COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 5/20/2019 $49.99 139503 - 25499 Natchez Ave 
Paid Chk#  006109E NUVERA COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 5/20/2019 $169.07 937759 - 25499 Natchez Ave Bld 
Paid Chk#  006110E DAKOTA ELECTRIC ASSN 5/31/2019 $128.18 Ptarmigan Drive Streetlights 
Paid Chk#  006111E XCEL ENERGY 6/3/2019 $3,548.18 Streetlights 
Paid Chk#  006112E MINNESOTA ENERGY RESOURCES 5/22/2019 $585.91 50 Church Street 
TOTAL   $36,247.88 
 

PRE-PAIDS 
Paid Chk#  039730 PAYROLL 5/8/2019 $2,778.79 
Paid Chk#  039731 UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE 5/16/2019 $297.08 April 2019 Utility Bills 
Paid Chk#  039732 IUOE LOCAL #49 5/16/2019 $140.00 Union Dues- Marty Deutsch 
TOTAL   $3,215.87 
 

CHECK REGISTER 
Paid Chk#  039733 1000 PETALS LLC 5/22/2019 $255.00 Winter 2019 Program Mar 14th 
Paid Chk#  039734 AEM FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS, LLC 5/22/2019 $400.00 Financial Services 
Paid Chk#  039735 AIRGAS USA, LLC 5/22/2019 $156.45 FD - Oxygen 
Paid Chk#  039736 BerganKDV 5/22/2019 $7,500.00 Yearly Audit 
Paid Chk#  039737 CAMPBELL KNUTSON 5/22/2019 $6,909.30 County Rd 2 Roundabout 
Paid Chk#  039738 CINTAS CORPORATION NO. 2 5/22/2019 $37.34 PW UNIFORMS 
Paid Chk#  039739 CORE & MAIN LP 5/22/2019 $547.50 PW - Stormwater Repairs 
Paid Chk#  039740 FASTENAL COMPANY 5/22/2019 $489.70 PW - Operating Supplies 
Paid Chk#  039741 FISH ROCK COUNTRY MARKET 5/22/2019 $5.78 PW - Building Maint 
Paid Chk#  039742 JACOB GILES 5/22/2019 $25.15 FD - Dry Cleaning of Class A S 
Paid Chk#  039743 GOPHER STATE ONE CALL 5/22/2019 $63.45 Locates 
Paid Chk#  039744 HAWKINS, INC. 5/22/2019 $20.00 PW - Water Chemicals 
Paid Chk#  039745 INTERSTATE ALL BATTERY CENTER 5/22/2019 $110.36 PW - Fleet Maint & Equip 
Paid Chk#  039746 LAKEVILLE SANITARY, INC. 5/22/2019 $343.52 11038 - Police Station 
Paid Chk#  039747 LEAGUE OF MN CITIES INS TRUST 5/22/2019 $55,854.00 General Liability 43% 2018 
Paid Chk#  039748 MAMA-METRO AREA MGMT ASSN 5/22/2019 $25.00 Apr 25, 2019 Luncheon - Tom Te 
Paid Chk#  039749 MARTIN-MCALLISTER 5/22/2019 $500.00 Public Safety Assessment - Ste 
Paid Chk#  039750 MCFOA 5/22/2019 $90.00 2019 Membership Dues - Steph F 
Paid Chk#  039751 METROPOLITAN COUNCIL 5/22/2019 $19,776.67 Waste Water Svcs Jun 2019 
Paid Chk#  039752 MORTON BUILDINGS, INC. 5/22/2019 $913.00 Wagner Park Pavilion Damage Re 
Paid Chk#  039753 MUNICIPAL INSPECTIONS, INC. 5/22/2019 $3,635.37 Erosion Control Inspections 



 CITY OF ELKO/NEW MARKET 05/20/19 3:41 PM 
 Page 2 
 *Check Summary Register© 

May 22, 2019 

 Name Check Date Check Amt 
Paid Chk#  039754 MVTL LABORATORIES 5/22/2019 $95.00 PW - Water Testing 
Paid Chk#  039755 NORTHWEST ASSOCIATED  5/22/2019 $276.40 Technical Assistance - City Pr 
Paid Chk#  039756 NORTHLAND PEST CONTROL 5/22/2019 $21.25 Pest Control - Library 
Paid Chk#  039757 PALMER JOHNSON POWER SYST 5/22/2019 $110.56 PW - Fleet Maint & Equip 
Paid Chk#  039758 POMPS TIRE SERVICE, INC. 5/22/2019 $516.46 PW - Fleet Maint & Repairs 
Paid Chk#  039759 R&R CLEANING CONTRACTORS, INC. 5/22/2019 $139.05 Rugs - April 2019 
Paid Chk#  039760 SCOTT COUNTY TREASURER 5/22/2019 $50,654.00 Tax - Assessments Local - 2019 
Paid Chk#  039761 SCOTT COUNTY RECORDER 5/22/2019 $92.00 F05-19 Encroachment Agmt Recor 
Paid Chk#  039762 STREICHER'S INC 5/22/2019 $224.96 PD - Boots/Brady 
Paid Chk#  039763 SUEL PRINTING COMPANY 5/22/2019 $112.50 Legal Ads 
Paid Chk#  039764 MIKE SUTTON 5/22/2019 $935.69 CCEC Supplies 
Paid Chk#  039765 TIMESAVER OFF SITE SECRETARIAL 5/22/2019 $290.00 City Council Minutes 
Paid Chk#  039766 XEROX CORPORATION 5/22/2019 $271.03 Copier 
Paid Chk#  039767 ZIEGLER INC. 5/22/2019 $8,140.00 2019 Cat 242d Skid Loader - Ca 
TOTAL   $159,536.49 
 

DIRECT DEPOSIT 
Paid Chk#  502491E Bi-Weekly ACH 5/16/2019 $31,487.13 
TOTAL   $31,487.13 
 
 



 STAFF MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: Outdoor Concert and Event Permit for Community and Civic Events 

Committee for Fire Rescue Days Parade and Other Activities 
MEETING DATE: May 22, 2019 
PREPARED BY: Lynda Jirak, Deputy Clerk 
REQUESTED ACTION: Adopt Resolution 19-23 Approving Outdoor Concerts and Events 

Permit for Community and Civic Events Committee 
 
COMMUNITY VISION: 

 A mature growing freestanding suburb of the Twin Cities Metropolitan Area, preserving 
historic landmarks and small town character while providing suburban amenities and 
services, as well as full range of employment, housing, business, service, social, 
technology infrastructure and recreational opportunities for citizens and visitors 

 Promote a diverse commercial base including light industrial and facilitating planned 
redevelopment which will be aesthetically pleasing with architectural standards that 
promotes quality development 

 Provide a full range of municipal services to its residents. The City will allocate sufficient 
resources to meet the growing needs of the community 

 A comprehensive park and trails system that will have sufficient facilities, play fields and 
open space to meet the needs of residents 

 An effective and efficient transportation system, including access to the greater 
metropolitan area, transit opportunities, and improved connectivity to the interstate 

 Provide community oriented local government and be financially sound, engaging in 
long-term financial planning to provide municipal services without undue burden on tax 
payers 

5 YEAR GOALS: 
 Diverse tax base, employment opportunities, additional businesses and services, 

promote high quality broad spectrum of residential development 
 Advance “shovel ready” status of areas guided for commercial and industrial 

development 
 Acquisition of land for public purposes, position City to take advantage of land 

acquisition opportunities  
 Enhance quality of life through parks, trails, recreational programming and cultural 

events 
 The development of residential lots and an increase in residential building permit activity 

COMMUNITY ORIENTED LOCAL GOVERNMENT: 
 Community Involvement 
 Organizational Improvement 
 Problem Solving 
 Performance Measurement 
 Professionalism 



BACKGROUND: 
The Community and Civic Events Committee submitted an Outdoor Concerts and Events Permit, on 
behalf of the City of Elko New Market, for outdoor events to be held from 7:00 p.m. on June 27, 2019 to 
1:00 p.m. on June 30, 2019. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
The Outdoor Concerts and Events Permit Application is for the annual Fire Rescue Days, which 
includes the Community Parade and various activities included with Fire Rescue Days. The 2019 Fire 
Rescue Days will begin Thursday, June 27, 2019 and conclude Sunday, June 30, 2019.  The following 
are some, but not limited to, activities included in Fire Rescue Days. 
 
The Elko New Market Parks Commission will be sponsoring a FREE Family Fun Night in the Park 
starting at 7:00 p.m. on Thursday, June 27, 2019 at Wagner Park, 121 Todd Street, Elko New Market.   
 
The Elko New Market Chamber of Commerce will be sponsoring a Community Golf Tournament on 
Friday, June 28, 2019 with registration at 11:00 a.m. at Boulder Pointe Golf Course. 
 
The N.E.W. Lions will be hosting a Steak Dinner on Friday, June 28, 2019 from 5:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. 
in the parking lot located at 450 Main Street. 
 
The Elko New Market Fire Relief Association will be selling concessions tentatively starting at 11:00 
a.m. Following the parade, the Relief Association will be providing entertainment. 
 
The Parade will start approximately at 1:00 p.m. and the route will be: Start at City Hall - Main Street to 
Dakota Avenue - Dakota Avenue to Park Street and end at Wagner Park - see map attached.  
 
Following the parade, some of the activities at Wagner Park will include balloon artist, games, 
inflatable, helicopter (if available), police car, fire truck, food and beverages.   
 
On Sunday, June 30, 2019 the Boy Scouts Troop 325 will be hosting a Pancake Breakfast at Wagner 
Park from 7:00 a.m. to Noon.   
 
Staff is recommending Council approve the Outdoor Concerts and Events Application for Community 
and Civic Events Committee for Fire Rescue Days for the Community Parade and associated activities. 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
Minimal 
 
 
Attachments: 
• Resolution 19-23 Approving an Outdoor Concerts and Events Permit for the Community and Civic 

Events Committee, on behalf of the City of Elko New Market, for Fire Rescue Days and associated 
activities.   

• Map of the Community Parade Route 
 

 
 



CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET 
SCOTT COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 19-23 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the Community and Civic Events Committee, on behalf of the City 
of Elko New Market, has submitted an application for an Outdoor Concerts and Events 
permit for the Elko New Market Fire Rescue Days, including various events and 
activities, from 7:00 p.m. on June 27, 2019 to 1:00 p.m. on June 30, 2019 within the City 
of Elko New Market; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Deputy Clerk reviewed the application and determined that it 
meets the requirements of the City’s Outdoor Concerts and Events Ordinance and 
recommends approval of the permit; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Elko New 
Market, Minnesota, that an Outdoor Concerts and Events permit be issued to the 
Community and Civic Events Committee, on behalf of the City of Elko New Market, for 
Fire Rescue Days, including various events and activities within the City of Elko New 
Market; 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 22nd day of May, 2019. 
 
      CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET 
 
 
      By:_________________________________ 

       Joe Julius, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Lynda Jirak, Deputy Clerk 

 
 
 
 



END
WAGNER PARK

Elko New Market
Fire Rescue Days Parade

START
ENM CITY HALL

MAIN ST260 ST E

ROWENA CURVE

TO
D

D
ST

W
EB

ST
ER

 S
T

1 ST N

PAUL ST

SEURER ST

ST MARY ST

JEAN WAYPARK ST

ST JOSEPH ST

WAGNER WAY

TODD

CT

W
IL

LI
A

M
S 

ST

W
IL

D
W

IN
G

S
PA

SS

LO
U

IS
 S

T 
W

OLD TOWN RD

M
A

C
ST

MAVERICK AV

D
A

K
O

TA
AV

B
R

A
D

Y

ST

C
H

U
R

C
H

 S
T

WAGNER
PARK

GWV2



 STAFF MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: Approve Outdoor Concerts and Events Permit 
MEETING DATE: May 22, 2019 
PREPARED BY: Lynda Jirak, Deputy Clerk 
REQUESTED ACTION: Adopt Resolution 19-24 Approving an Outdoor Concerts and Events 

Permit for the Windmill Animal Rescue Non-Profit Organization 
 
COMMUNITY VISION: 

 A mature growing freestanding suburb of the Twin Cities Metropolitan Area, preserving 
historic landmarks and small town character while providing suburban amenities and 
services, as well as full range of employment, housing, business, service, social, 
technology infrastructure and recreational opportunities for citizens and visitors 

 Promote a diverse commercial base including light industrial and facilitating planned 
redevelopment which will be aesthetically pleasing with architectural standards that 
promotes quality development 

 Provide a full range of municipal services to its residents. The City will allocate sufficient 
resources to meet the growing needs of the community 

 A comprehensive park and trails system that will have sufficient facilities, play fields and 
open space to meet the needs of residents 

 An effective and efficient transportation system, including access to the greater 
metropolitan area, transit opportunities, and improved connectivity to the interstate 

 Provide community oriented local government and be financially sound, engaging in 
long-term financial planning to provide municipal services without undue burden on tax 
payers 

5 YEAR GOALS: 
 Diverse tax base, employment opportunities, additional businesses and services, 

promote high quality broad spectrum of residential development 
 Advance “shovel ready” status of areas guided for commercial and industrial 

development 
 Acquisition of land for public purposes, position City to take advantage of land 

acquisition opportunities  
 Enhance quality of life through parks, trails, recreational programming and cultural 

events 
 The development of residential lots and an increase in residential building permit activity 

COMMUNITY ORIENTED LOCAL GOVERNMENT: 
 Community Involvement 
 Organizational Improvement 
 Problem Solving 
 Performance Measurement 
 Professionalism 

  



BACKGROUND: 
Kersten Richter has submitted an Outdoor Concerts and Events Permit, on behalf of the 
Windmill Animal Rescue Non-profit Organization, for an outdoor event to be held on June 29, 
2019. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
The Outdoor Concerts and Events Permit Application is for the annual 5K Race.  This race is 
open to the public for both children and adults.   
 
The Annual Run is sponsored by the Windmill Animal Rescue Non-Profit Organization and will 
be held on Saturday, June 29, 2019 starting at 7:30 a.m. at the Elko New Market Police 
Department, 26518 France Avenue, Elko New Market.  Portable toilets will be available for all 
walkers and runners, along with bottled water.  There will be volunteers along the route to 
ensure all walkers and runners stay on the designated route. The Chief of Police has reviewed 
the event route and has no concerns regarding the race. 
 
Map is attached showing where the race will start, location of registration in Police Department 
Parking Lot and the actual route of the 5K Run. 
 
All proceeds from this event will go to the Windmill Animal Rescue Non-profit Organization. 
 
Staff is recommending Council approve the Outdoor Concerts and Events Application for the 
5K Race. 
 
 
Attachments: 
• Resolution 19-24 Approving an Outdoor Concerts and Events Permit for the Windmill 

Animal Rescue Organization.   
• Map for 5K Run Route 

 
 
 



CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET 
SCOTT COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 19-24 

 
 
 WHEREAS; Kersten Richter, on behalf of Windmill Animal Rescue Non-profit Organization, 
has submitted an application for an Outdoor Concerts and Events permit for  the annual 5K Race on 
June 29, 2019 between the hours of 6:30 a.m. and 9:00 a.m.; 
 
 WHEREAS, the 5K Run will be on the streets of Elko New Market;  
 
 WHEREAS, the Deputy Clerk reviewed the application and determined that it meets the 
requirements of the City’s Outdoor Concerts and Events Ordinance and recommends approval of the 
permit; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Elko New Market, 
Minnesota that an Outdoor Concerts and Events permit is issued to Kersten Richter, on behalf of the 
Windmill Animal Rescue Non-profit Organization, for an Outdoor Concerts and Events Permit for 
June 29, 2019 between the hours of 6:30 a.m. to 9:00 a.m. This permit is issued contingent upon 
Applicant’s compliance with the above-approved time frames and the City’s ordinances, including the 
outdoor concert and event ordinance and noise ordinance and the following conditions: 

1.  Provide a Certificate of Insurance. 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 22nd day of May, 2019. 
 
      CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET 
 
 
      By:_________________________________ 

       Joe Julius, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Lynda Jirak, Deputy Clerk 

 
 
 
 



 



 STAFF MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: Outdoor Concerts and Events Application and Temporary 

Expansion of Licensed Premises Application for The Doublewide 
MEETING DATE: May 22, 2019 
PREPARED BY: Lynda Jirak, Deputy Clerk 
REQUESTED ACTION: 1. Adopt Resolution 19-25 Approving Outdoor Concerts and Events 

Permit for The Doublewide 
2. Adopt Resolution 19-26 Approving Temporary Expansion of 
Licensed Premises for The Doublewide 

 
COMMUNITY VISION: 

 A mature growing freestanding suburb of the Twin Cities Metropolitan Area, preserving 
historic landmarks and small town character while providing suburban amenities and 
services, as well as full range of employment, housing, business, service, social, 
technology infrastructure and recreational opportunities for citizens and visitors 

 Promote a diverse commercial base including light industrial and facilitating planned 
redevelopment which will be aesthetically pleasing with architectural standards that 
promotes quality development 

 Provide a full range of municipal services to its residents. The City will allocate sufficient 
resources to meet the growing needs of the community 

 A comprehensive park and trails system that will have sufficient facilities, play fields and 
open space to meet the needs of residents 

 An effective and efficient transportation system, including access to the greater 
metropolitan area, transit opportunities, and improved connectivity to the interstate 

 Provide community oriented local government and be financially sound, engaging in 
long-term financial planning to provide municipal services without undue burden on tax 
payers 

5 YEAR GOALS: 
 Diverse tax base, employment opportunities, additional businesses and services, 

promote high quality broad spectrum of residential development 
 Advance “shovel ready” status of areas guided for commercial and industrial 

development 
 Acquisition of land for public purposes, position City to take advantage of land 

acquisition opportunities  
 Enhance quality of life through parks, trails, recreational programming and cultural 

events 
 The development of residential lots and an increase in residential building permit activity 

COMMUNITY ORIENTED LOCAL GOVERNMENT: 
 Community Involvement 
 Organizational Improvement 
 Problem Solving 
 Performance Measurement 
 Professionalism 



BACKGROUND 
The City Council is being asked to approve an Outdoor Concerts and Events Permit and 
Temporary Expansion of Licensed Premises Permit for The Doublewide. 
 
DISCUSSION 
Josh Storlie owner of The Doublewide Bar has submitted an Application for an Outdoor 
Concerts and Events Permit for a Pro Wrestling event to be held on June 28, 2019 from 2:00 
p.m. to 1:00 a.m.  Mr. Storlie has also applied for an Application for a Temporary Expansion of 
License Premises to expand the area of the licensed premises on a temporary basis for this 
event. 
 
In 2017 and 2018, Mr. Storlie applied for and was approved for a similar Pro Wrestling event at 
The Doublewide Bar.  Mr. Storlie is estimating the same number of public attendance as 
previous events.  Staff has confirmed with the Police Department that they are not aware of 
any parking issues due to this previous event relating to parking. 
 
Staff is recommending approval of an Outdoor Concerts and Events Permit Application 
contingent on the following conditions: 
 

 The tent(s) area shall not exceed 1,800 sq. ft. and be taken down by June 30, 2019. 
 In the case that the tent does not have walls to control access, a security/safety 

fence shall be required.  Said fencing shall be made out of wooden snow fence or 
another similar type of sturdy security/safety temporary fencing to control 
access.  Said fencing shall also be braced and supported by appropriately weighted 
fence posts. 

 All outside activities related to the event, along with associated take down and 
cleanup shall terminate by 1:30 a.m. to alleviate any nighttime noise concerns that 
may affect neighboring property owners.  The maximum noise level at the perimeter 
of the site shall be within the limits set by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency 
and the Federal Environmental Protection Agency.   

 Temporary signage shall be placed not to interfere with pedestrian or vehicular traffic 
flow or visibility. 

 Per City Code, Section 5-5-1: No person shall make or cause to be made any 
distinctly and loudly audible noise that unreasonably annoys, disturbs, injures, or 
endangers the comfort, repose, health, peace, safety or welfare of any person or 
precludes his enjoyment of property or affects his property’s value. 

 An appropriate number of trash and/or recycling containers shall be provided on-site 
within/around the tent area to handle the extra amount of garbage. 

 Any temporary lighting shall only illuminate the designated event/tent area and NOT 
shine or cause glare upon surrounding properties. 

 The conditions, with the exception of hours, listed are consistent with conditions 
applied to events held at this property previously.  Per City Code, Outdoor Concerts 
and Events cannot be conducted between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 8:00 a.m., 
unless the extension of hours is approved by the City Council.  To be consistent with 
previously approved events, Staff is requesting this event end at 1:00 a.m. 
 

 
The applicant would like the City to permit the consumption of alcohol outside of the current 
liquor license premise area to the entire parking lot east of the bar and west of the six foot 



privacy fence as shown on the map provided in the application.  In order to allow the 
consumption of alcohol outside of the current premise area, the applicant is requesting the City 
Council approve the Temporary Expansion of Licensed Premise Application. 
 
Staff is recommending approval of the Temporary Expansion of Licensed Premises Application 
contingent on the following conditions: 
 A temporary liquor license must be approved and issued by the City before any alcohol 

is served at the event outside of the current approved liquor service area. 
 The temporary liquor license for the outdoor area shall cease at 1:00 a.m. and no 

outdoor consumption or sale of alcohol may continue thereafter. 
 The event area shall be limited to three (3) secured access points controlled by event 

staff/volunteers wearing clearly visible identification badges and/or event security 
clothing. 

 In the case that the tent does not have walls to control access, a security/safety fence 
shall be required.  Said fencing shall be made out of wooden snow fence or another 
similar type of sturdy security/safety temporary fencing to control access.  Said fencing 
shall also be braced and supported by appropriately weighted fence posts. 

 Complies with City of Elko New Market Ordinance Chapter 2, and Minnesota Statutes 
Chapter 340A in the sale of liquor. 

 Provide proof of liquor liability insurance required by Minnesota Statutes § 340A.409 
and attaching a certificate of insurance to the application listing the City of Elko New 
Market as an additional insured. 

 
Council is being asked to adopt Resolution 19-25 Approving An Outdoor Concerts and Events 
Permit and Adopt Resolution 19-26 Temporary Expansion of Licensed Premises. 
 
 
 
Attachments: 
Resolution 19-25 Outdoor Concerts and Events Permit for The Doublewide 
Resolution 19-26 Temporary Expansion of Licensed Premises for The Doublewide 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET 
SCOTT COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 19-25 

 
 WHEREAS; Josh Storlie has submitted an application for an Outdoor Concerts and 
Events permit for  an event to be held at The Doublewide, 421 St. Joseph Street, Elko New 
Market on June 28, 2019 between the hours of 2:00 p.m. and 1:00 a.m.; 
 

WHEREAS, the Deputy Clerk reviewed the application and determined that it meets the 
requirements of the City’s Outdoor Concerts and Events Ordinance and recommends approval of 
the permit; 

 
            NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Elko New Market,    
Minnesota, that an Outdoor Concerts and Events permit be issued to Josh Storlie for the premises 
located at 421 St. Joseph Street, Elko New Market, Minnesota, for an Outdoor Concerts and 
Events Permit for June 28, 2019 between the hours of 2:00 p.m. to 1:00 a.m. in the parking lot of 
property. This permit is issued contingent upon the following requirements: 
 

 The tent(s) area shall not exceed 1,800 sq. ft. and be taken down Sunday, June 30, 
2019. 

 In the case that the tent does not have walls to control access, a security/safety fence 
shall be required.  Said fencing shall be made out of wooden snow fence or another 
similar type of sturdy security/safety temporary fencing to control access.  Said 
fencing shall also be braced and supported by appropriately weighted fence posts. 

 All outside activities related to the event, along with associated take down and 
cleanup shall terminate by 1:30 a.m. to alleviate any nighttime noise concerns that 
may affect neighboring property owners.  The maximum noise level at the perimeter 
of the site shall be within the limits set by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency 
and the Federal Environmental Protection Agency.   

 Temporary signage shall be placed not to interfere with pedestrian or vehicular traffic 
flow or visibility. 

 Per City Code, Section 5-5-1: No person shall make or cause to be made any 
distinctly and loudly audible noise that unreasonably annoys, disturbs, injures, or 
endangers the comfort, repose, health, peace, safety or welfare of any person or 
precludes his enjoyment of property or affects his property’s value. 

 An appropriate number of trash and/or recycling containers shall be provided on-site 
within/around the tent area to handle the extra amount of garbage. 

 Any temporary lighting shall only illuminate the designated event/tent area and NOT 
shine or cause glare upon surrounding properties. 

 The conditions, with the exception of hours, listed are consistent with conditions 
applied to events held at this property previously.  Per City Code, Outdoor Concerts 
and Events cannot be conducted between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 8:00 a.m., 
unless the extension of hours is approved by the City Council.  To be consistent with 
previously approved events, Staff is requesting this event end at 1:00 a.m. 

 



 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 22nd day of May, 2019. 
 

 
      CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET 
 
 
      By:_________________________________ 

       Joe Julius, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
__________________________________ 
Lynda Jirak, Deputy Clerk 



93544 

 
CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET 
SCOTT COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 19-26 

 
 
 WHEREAS; Josh Storlie has submitted an application for a Temporary Expansion of 
Licensed Premises to the Liquor License for The Doublewide located at 421 St. Joseph Street, 
Elko New Market, Minnesota, 55020 to expand the “liquor premises” to a portion of the 
backyard for an event to be held June 28, 2019 from 2:00 p.m. to 1:00 a.m. (including set up and 
clean up being completed by 1:30 a.m.); 
 
 WHEREAS; the applicant proposed to temporarily expand the liquor licenses premises 
to the portion of the backyard as shown on the attached map (the “Temporary Expansion Area”) 
 
 WHEREAS; The Doublewide meets the requirements for issuance of the Temporary 
Expansion of Licensed Premises to the Liquor License under Minnesota Statute Chapter 340A; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS; the Deputy Clerk has reviewed The Doublewide’s Temporary Expansion of 
Licensed Premises Application and has determined that The Doublewide meets the requirements 
of the City's Ordinance;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Elko New Market, 
Minnesota, that a Temporary Expansion of Licensed Premises be issued to The Doublewide for 
the Temporary Expansion Area located at 421 St. Joseph Street, Elko New Market, Minnesota 
55020, for June 28, 2019 from 2:00 p.m. to 1:00 a.m. (including set up and clean up being 
completed by 1:30 a.m.) conditioned upon compliance with the following requirements:  
  
 A temporary liquor license must be approved and issued by the City before any alcohol is 

served at the event outside of the current approved liquor service area. 
 The temporary liquor license for the outdoor area shall cease at 1:00 a.m. and no outdoor 

consumption or sale of alcohol may continue thereafter. 
 The event area shall be limited to three (3) secured access points controlled by event 

staff/volunteers wearing clearly visible identification badges and/or event security 
clothing. 

 In the case that the tent does not have walls to control access, a security/safety fence shall 
be required.  Said fencing shall be made out of wooden snow fence or another similar 
type of sturdy security/safety temporary fencing to control access.  Said fencing shall also 
be braced and supported by appropriately weighted fence posts. 

 Complies with City of Elko New Market Ordinance Chapter 2, and Minnesota Statutes 
Chapter 340A in the sale of liquor. 

 Provide proof of liquor liability insurance required by Minnesota Statutes § 340A.409 
and attaching a certificate of insurance to the application listing the City of Elko New 
Market as an additional insured. 
 

 
 

 
 



93544 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED 22nd day of May, 2019. 
 
 
      CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET 
 
 
      By:_________________________________ 

       Joe Julius, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Lynda Jirak, Deputy Clerk 



93544 

 



 STAFF MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: Outdoor Concerts and Events Permit for Tapestry Vineyard Church 
MEETING DATE: May 22, 2019 
PREPARED BY: Lynda Jirak, Deputy Clerk 
REQUESTED ACTION: Adopt Resolution 19-27 Approving an Outdoor Concerts and Events 

Permit for Tapestry Vineyard Church 
 
COMMUNITY VISION: 

 A mature growing freestanding suburb of the Twin Cities Metropolitan Area, preserving 
historic landmarks and small town character while providing suburban amenities and 
services, as well as full range of employment, housing, business, service, social, 
technology infrastructure and recreational opportunities for citizens and visitors 

 Promote a diverse commercial base including light industrial and facilitating planned 
redevelopment which will be aesthetically pleasing with architectural standards that 
promotes quality development 

 Provide a full range of municipal services to its residents. The City will allocate sufficient 
resources to meet the growing needs of the community 

 A comprehensive park and trails system that will have sufficient facilities, play fields and 
open space to meet the needs of residents 

 An effective and efficient transportation system, including access to the greater 
metropolitan area, transit opportunities, and improved connectivity to the interstate 

 Provide community oriented local government and be financially sound, engaging in 
long-term financial planning to provide municipal services without undue burden on tax 
payers 

5 YEAR GOALS: 
 Diverse tax base, employment opportunities, additional businesses and services, 

promote high quality broad spectrum of residential development 
 Advance “shovel ready” status of areas guided for commercial and industrial 

development 
 Acquisition of land for public purposes, position City to take advantage of land 

acquisition opportunities  
 Enhance quality of life through parks, trails, recreational programming and cultural 

events 
 The development of residential lots and an increase in residential building permit activity 

COMMUNITY ORIENTED LOCAL GOVERNMENT: 
 Community Involvement 
 Organizational Improvement 
 Problem Solving 
 Performance Measurement 
 Professionalism 



BACKGROUND: 
Aaron Kranz, on behalf of Tapestry Vineyard Church has submitted an Outdoor Concerts and 
Events Permit Application for an outdoor church service. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
As part of Fire Rescue Days, Tapestry Vineyard Church has submitted an application to 
sponsor an outdoor church service at Wagner Park on June 30, 2019 from 10:00 a.m. to Noon.  
Tapestry Church has invited several guest churches to participate in the readings or music.  
Music would be a band with a small sound system and will be located at either the east or west 
side of the event. 
 
The church service would be held in the Wagner Park ballfield under the same tent that was 
used the day previously for games after the community parade.  Set up would start at 8:00 
a.m. on June 30th and teardown will be immediately after the event.   
 
Staff is recommending approval of the Outdoor Concerts and Events Application for Tapestry 
Vineyard Church. 
 
 
Attachments: 
• Resolution 19-27 Approving Outdoor Concerts and Events Permit for Tapestry Vineyard 

Church 
• Map of location of event 

 
 



CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET 
SCOTT COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 19-27 

 
 
 WHEREAS; Tapestry Vineyard Church has submitted an application for an Outdoor Concerts 
and Events permit for  a church service to be held at Wagner Park, 121 Todd Street, Elko New Market 
on June 30, 2019 between the hours of 10:00 a.m. and 12:00 noon; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Deputy Clerk reviewed the application and determined that it meets the 
requirements of the City’s Outdoor Concerts and Events Ordinance and recommends approval of the 
permit; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Elko New Market, 
Minnesota, that an Outdoor Concerts and Events permit be issued to Tapestry Vineyard Church for the 
premises located at 121 Todd Street, Elko New Market, Minnesota, for an Outdoor Concerts and 
Events Permit for June 30, 2019 between the hours of 10:00 a.m. to 12:00 noon. This permit is issued 
contingent upon Applicant’s compliance with the above-approved time frames and the City’s 
ordinances, including the outdoor concert and event ordinance and noise ordinance and the following 
conditions: 

1.  Provide a Certificate of Insurance. 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 22nd day of May, 2019. 
 
      CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET 
 
 
      By:_________________________________ 

       Joe Julius, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Lynda Jirak, Deputy Clerk 

 
 
 
 





 STAFF MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: Agreement For Municipal Facilities Garbage And Recycling 

Collection And Disposal Services 
MEETING DATE: May 22, 2019 
PREPARED BY: Mark Nagel, Assistant City Administrator 
REQUESTED ACTION: Approval of Agreement For Municipal Facilities Garbage And 

Recycling Collection And Disposal Services 
 
COMMUNITY VISION: 

 A mature growing freestanding suburb of the Twin Cities Metropolitan Area, preserving 
historic landmarks and small town character while providing suburban amenities and 
services, as well as full range of employment, housing, business, service, social, 
technology infrastructure and recreational opportunities for citizens and visitors 

 Promote a diverse commercial base including light industrial and facilitating planned 
redevelopment which will be aesthetically pleasing with architectural standards that 
promotes quality development 

 Provide a full range of municipal services to its residents. The City will allocate sufficient 
resources to meet the growing needs of the community 

 A comprehensive park and trails system that will have sufficient facilities, play fields and 
open space to meet the needs of residents 

 An effective and efficient transportation system, including access to the greater 
metropolitan area, transit opportunities, and improved connectivity to the interstate 

 Provide community oriented local government and be financially sound, engaging in 
long-term financial planning to provide municipal services without undue burden on tax 
payers 

5 YEAR GOALS: 
 Diverse tax base, employment opportunities, additional businesses and services, 

promote high quality broad spectrum of residential development 
 Advance “shovel ready” status of areas guided for commercial and industrial 

development 
 Acquisition of land for public purposes, position City to take advantage of land 

acquisition opportunities  
 Enhance quality of life through parks, trails, recreational programming and cultural 

events 
 The development of residential lots and an increase in residential building permit activity 

COMMUNITY ORIENTED LOCAL GOVERNMENT: 
 Community Involvement 
 Organizational Improvement 
 Problem Solving 
 Performance Measurement 
 Professionalism 

 
 
 
 



 
 
 
BACKROUND:   
As part of City Staff’s continuing review of services provided by outside contractors to the City 
every 3 years, a Request for Quotes (RFQ) for refuse collection and recycling at City facilities 
was undertaken by Staff. 
 
An RFQ was sent to the three companies holding licenses in the City – Buckingham Disposal, 
Dick’s Sanitation, and Waste Management – for a three-year contract to provide refuse 
collection and recycling services for City Hall, the Public Works Facility, the Police Department 
and the Wagner Park Shelter.  The sole quote received was from Dick’s Sanitation.   
 
The total cost for refuse and recycling services per year is $4,284.14, which includes all taxes 
and fees. 
 
The City Attorney has reviewed the attached contract, as to form and content. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
Approve the attached 3-year contract with Dick’s Sanitation, Inc. for Refuse and Recycling 
Collection and Disposal Services for City facilities. 
 
 
 
 



 

1 
 

AGREEMENT FOR MUNICIPAL FACILITIES 
GARBAGE AND RECYCLYING  

COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL SERVICES 
 
 AGREEMENT dated July 1, 2019, by and between the CITY OF ELKO NEW 
MARKET, a Minnesota municipal corporation (“City”), and Dick’s Sanitation, Inc, a 
Minnesota company (“Contractor”). 

 
IN CONSIDERATION OF THEIR MUTUAL COVENANTS, THE PARTIES 

AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. SCOPE OF SERVICES. Contractor shall furnish all labor, materials, and equipment and 
perform all work for the collection, hauling, processing and disposal of refuse, garbage, and 
recycling for the City as described below.  Contractor shall collect all garbage, refuse, and 
recycling accumulated and set out for collection from City property as specified below: 
 

A.  Police Department, 26518 France Avenue.   
I. One (1) thirty-five (35) gallon trash cart serviced once per week.  

i. Compensation for this service will be _$26.91__ per month. 
 

B.  Public Works Facility & Water Treatment Facility, 25499 Natchez Avenue. 
I.  One (1) two-yard (2) trash dumpster serviced as follows:  

i. Compensation for this service will be $80.73 per month. 
 

C. City Hall, 601 Main Street. 
I.  One (1) three-yard (3) trash dumpster serviced once per week. 

i. Compensation for this service will be $103.60 per month. 
II.  One (1) two-yard (2) recycling dumpster serviced once per week.  

i. Compensation for this service will be $40.25 per month. 
 

D. Wagner Park, 121 Todd Street. 
I. One (1) six-yard (6) trash dumpster serviced as follows: 

i. Compensation for this service will be $130.51 per month once a week 
for the months of May 1st through September 30th. 

ii. Compensation for this service will be $80.73 every other week for the 
months of October 1st through April 30th.     
         
The following materials are not included in the collection service:  toxic 
and hazardous wastes including but not limited to poisons, pesticides, 
herbicides, acids, caustics, pathological wastes, radioactive materials, 
flammable or explosive materials, motor oils and paint in liquid form.   

 
2.  Contractor Operations.  Contractor shall abide by the following conditions while 
performing services under this agreement: 
 

A. Hours of Regular Collection.  Daily collection hours shall not begin prior to 6:30 



 

2 
 

a.m., nor continue past 6:00 p.m.   
 

B. Procedure in Collection and Handling of Refuse.  All refuse must be removed in 
such a manner that none is spilled, dropped, strewn or allowed to remain on, about or 
around the premises from which it is collected.  No refuse from containers, trucks or 
equipment shall be dropped, strewn, thrown or in any manner deposited upon any of 
the streets or sidewalks within the City.  Care shall be taken not to damage containers.   
 

C. Disposal of Refuse.  All garbage and refuse shall be hauled, transported, weighed-in, 
and disposed of pursuant to State Law.   
 

D. Management of Collection.  The disposition of such material shall be so conducted 
and handled to at no time create a nuisance or become injurious to the public health of 
persons living either within or outside the corporate limits of the City.  Contractor 
shall take measures to protect all public and private property, including utility 
property from damages caused by the provision of services under this Agreement, and 
if damage occurs, Contractor will be solely responsible for repairing, replacing, or 
compensating for the damage.  

 
 3. COMPENSATION.  Contractor shall bill the City on a monthly basis for services 
rendered. Within 10 days of receipt of a promptly itemized invoice, the City will compensate 
Contractor as set forth herein, inclusive of taxes and expenses. 
 

4. TERM.  The term of this Agreement is thirty-six (36) months.  It will commence on 
July 1, 2019 and terminate on June 30, 2022. 

 
 5. CHANGE ORDERS.  All change orders, regardless of amount, must be 
approved in advance and in writing by the City.  No payment will be due or made for work done 
in advance of such approval. 
 
 6. DOCUMENTS.  The City shall be the owner of all documents, reports, studies, 
analysis and the like prepared by Contractor in conjunction with this Agreement.  
 
 7. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS.  In providing services 
hereunder, Contractor shall abide by all statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations pertaining to the 
provision of services to be provided. 
 
 8. STANDARD OF CARE.  Contractor shall exercise the same degrees of care, 
skill, and diligence in the performance of the services as is ordinarily possessed and exercised by 
a professional under similar circumstances.  City shall not be responsible for discovering 
deficiencies in the accuracy of Contractor’s services. 
 
 9. INDEMNIFICATION.  Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the City, its 
officers, agents, and employees, of and from any and all claims, demands, actions, causes of action, 
including costs and attorney's fees, arising out of or by reason of the execution or performance of 
the work or services provided for herein and further agrees to defend at its sole cost and expense any 



 

3 
 

action or proceeding commenced for the purpose of asserting any claim of whatsoever character 
arising hereunder. 
 
 10. INSURANCE.  Contractor shall secure and maintain such insurance as will protect 
Contractor from claims under the Worker's Compensation Acts, automobile liability, and from 
claims for bodily injury, death, or property damage which may arise from the performance of 
services under this Agreement.  Such insurance shall be written for amounts not less than: 
 
  Commercial General Liability   $1,000,000 each occurrence/aggregate 
  Automobile Liability   $1,000,000 combined single limit 
  Excess/Umbrella Liability   $2,000,000 each occurrence/aggregate 
 
The Contractor’s insurance must be “Primary and Non-Contributory.” The City shall be named as 
an additional insured on the general liability and umbrella policies. Before commencing work, the 
Contractor shall provide the City a certificate of insurance evidencing the required insurance 
coverage in a form acceptable to City. Contractor’s policies and Certificate of Insurance shall 
contain a provision that coverage afforded under the policies shall not be cancelled without at 
least thirty (30) days’ advanced written notice to the City, or ten (10) days’ notice for non-
payment of premium. 
 
 11. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.  The City hereby retains Contractor as an 
independent contractor upon the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.  Contractor is not 
an employee of the City and is free to contract with other entities as provided herein.  Contractor 
shall be responsible for selecting the means and methods of performing the work.  Contractor shall 
furnish any and all supplies, equipment, and incidentals necessary for Contractor's performance 
under this Agreement.  City and Contractor agree that Contractor shall not at any time or in any 
manner represent that Contractor or any of Contractor's agents or employees are in any manner 
agents or employees of the City.  Contractor shall be exclusively responsible under this Agreement 
for Contractor's own FICA payments, workers compensation payments, unemployment 
compensation payments, withholding amounts, and/or self-employment taxes if any such payments, 
amounts, or taxes are required to be paid by law or regulation. 
 
 12. SUBCONTRACTORS.  Contractor shall not enter into subcontracts for services 
provided under this Agreement without the express written consent of the City.  Contractor shall 
comply with Minnesota Statute § 471.425.  Contractor must pay subcontractor for all undisputed 
services provided by subcontractor within ten days of Contractor’s receipt of payment from City.  
Contractor must pay interest of 1.5 percent per month or any part of a month to subcontractor on 
any undisputed amount not paid on time to subcontractor.  The minimum monthly interest 
penalty payment for an unpaid balance of $100 or more is $10. 
 
 13. ASSIGNMENT.  Neither party shall assign this Agreement, nor any interest arising 
herein, without the written consent of the other party. 
 
 14. WAIVER.  Any waiver by either party of a breach of any provisions of this 
Agreement shall not affect, in any respect, the validity of the remainder of this Agreement. 
 



 

4 
 

 15. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  The entire agreement of the parties is contained herein.  
This Agreement supersedes all oral agreements and negotiations between the parties relating to the 
subject matter hereof as well as any previous agreements presently in effect between the parties 
relating to the subject matter hereof.  Any alterations, amendments, deletions, or waivers of the 
provisions of this Agreement shall be valid only when expressed in writing and duly signed by the 
parties, unless otherwise provided herein. 
 
 16. CONTROLLING LAW/VENUE.  This Agreement shall be governed by and 
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Minnesota.  In the event of litigation, the 
exclusive venue shall be in the District Court of the State of Minnesota for Scott County. 
 
 17. RECORDS.  Contractor shall maintain complete and accurate records of time and 
expense involved in the performance of services. 
 
 18. MINNESOTA GOVERNMENT DATA PRACTICES ACT.  Contractor must 
comply with the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act, Minnesota Statutes Chapter 13, as it 
applies to (1) all data provided by the City pursuant to this Agreement, and (2) all data, created, 
collected, received, stored, used, maintained, or disseminated by Contractor pursuant to this 
Agreement.  Contractor is subject to all the provisions of the Minnesota Government Data Practices 
Act, including but not limited to the civil remedies of Minnesota Statutes Section 13.08, as if it were 
a government entity.  In the event Contractor receives a request to release data, Contractor must 
immediately notify City.  City will give Contractor instructions concerning the release of the data to 
the requesting party before the data is released.  Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold 
City, its officials, officers, agents, employees, and volunteers harmless from any claims resulting 
from Contractor’s officers’, agents’, partners’, employees’, volunteers’, assignees’ or 
subcontractors’ unlawful disclosure and/or use of protected data.  The terms of this paragraph shall 
survive the cancellation or termination of this Agreement. 
 
 19. TERMINATION OF THE AGREEMENT.  The City may terminate this 
Agreement or any part thereof at any time, upon sixty (60) days written notice to Contractor, 
effective upon delivery, including delivery by mail, facsimile or email.  In such event, Contractor 
will be entitled to compensation for work performed up to the date of termination based upon the 
payment terms of this Agreement. 

CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET              CONTRACTOR 

 
BY: ______________________________             BY:__________________________  
 Joe Julius, Mayor   
         

                                               
    
         
AND: ____________________________  
   Tom Terry, City Clerk 



 STAFF MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: Approve Revised Maintenance Worker I Job Description 
MEETING DATE: May 22, 2019 
PREPARED BY: Thomas Terry, City Administrator 
REQUESTED ACTION: Approve revised Maintenance Worker I job description. 
 
COMMUNITY VISION: 

 A mature growing freestanding suburb of the Twin Cities Metropolitan Area, preserving 
historic landmarks and small town character while providing suburban amenities and 
services, as well as full range of employment, housing, business, service, social, 
technology infrastructure and recreational opportunities for citizens and visitors 

 Promote a diverse commercial base including light industrial and facilitating planned 
redevelopment which will be aesthetically pleasing with architectural standards that 
promotes quality development 

 Provide a full range of municipal services to its residents. The City will allocate sufficient 
resources to meet the growing needs of the community 

 A comprehensive park and trails system that will have sufficient facilities, play fields and 
open space to meet the needs of residents 

 An effective and efficient transportation system, including access to the greater 
metropolitan area, transit opportunities, and improved connectivity to the interstate 

 Provide community oriented local government and be financially sound, engaging in 
long-term financial planning to provide municipal services without undue burden on tax 
payers 

5 YEAR GOALS: 
 Diverse tax base, employment opportunities, additional businesses and services, 

promote high quality broad spectrum of residential development 
 Advance “shovel ready” status of areas guided for commercial and industrial 

development 
 Acquisition of land for public purposes, position City to take advantage of land 

acquisition opportunities  
 Enhance quality of life through parks, trails, recreational programming and cultural 

events 
 The development of residential lots and an increase in residential building permit activity 

COMMUNITY ORIENTED LOCAL GOVERNMENT: 
 Community Involvement 
 Organizational Improvement 
 Problem Solving 
 Performance Measurement 
 Professionalism 

  



 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
Due to the lack of a sufficient candidate pool in the recent Maintenance Work I posting, Staff is 
proposing a revision to the job description for the Maintenance Worker I position. Staff is 
proposing to remove the minimum requirement for moderate work experience in utilities.   
 
MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS 
High school diploma or GED and moderate experience working with utilities, operating heavy 
equipment, or equivalent combination of education and experience and Class B driver’s 
license in the State of Minnesota. 
 
The number and quality of candidates in recent candidate pools that are capable of meeting 
this minimum requirement has been very limited. Staff believes that this change will aid in 
increasing the size and depth of applicant pools, as well as making eligible quality candidates 
that otherwise would not have met the minimum qualifications.  
 
Utilizing the Class Evaluation System Manual from Springsted, Inc for guidance the revision to 
the Maintenance Worker I job description position would require no changes to current pay 
grade for the position.  
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
There is no budget impact. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Revised Maintenance Worker I Job Description. 
 



MAINTENANCE WORKER I 
 

 
Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential tasks. 

© 2010 City of Elko New Market, Minnesota 

Department:  Public Works 
FLSA Status:  Non-exempt  
Work Status:  Full-time 
 
Purpose 
Performs intermediate skilled trades and technical work maintaining the City’s streets and storm sewers, water and 
sanitary sewer systems, parks, buildings and other city rights of way and city property, operating and maintaining a 
variety of heavy, medium, and light equipment, participating in snow plowing/sanding, and performing grounds keeping 
tasks, responding to urgent and emergency situations and other call-outs, and related work as apparent or assigned.  Work 
is performed under the limited supervision of the Public Works Coordinator and general direction of the Public Works 
Superintendent. 
 
Communicates with: 
 Internally - Other public works employees and city staff; 
 Externally – Service contractors, engineering staff, and the general public. 

 
ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS- To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each 
essential function satisfactorily.  The requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill 
and/or ability required.  Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individual with disabilities to 
perform the essential functions. 
 

Assists in the maintenance of public rights-of-way, parks, facilities and grounds 

Operates a variety of heavy, medium, and light equipment: loader, skid-steer, tractor, grader, roller, 
backhoe, plow truck, dump truck, pick-up, and riding mower. 
 
Inspects equipment and performs some basic preventive maintenance and repairs as needed. 

Performs summer maintenance on streets such as patching and crack filling, cleaning and repairing storm 
sewers, and curb and gutter maintenance. 
 
Maintains street signs and signal lights.   

Installs holiday lights and banners. 

Performs winter maintenance on streets such as grading, plowing, loading, and removing snow and 
applying sand and other ice control on roads. 
 
Maintains city parks including all tasks associated with lawn maintenance, turf management, park shelters 
and other facilities maintenance. 
 
Maintains ditches, boulevards and other green areas by mowing, trimming/spraying weeds, and caring for 
trees and plantings.   
 
Empties city garbage cans and picks-up/hauls recyclables to recycling center. 

Cleans up after storm damage, picking up downed trees, branches, and other debris. 

Assists in building maintenance tasks, performing a variety of carpentry work and some basic plumbing 
and electrical work. 
 
Assists with maintaining the wastewater collection system 

Inspects, repairs and maintains sanitary and storm sewer lines by jetting, rodding, and vacuuming. 



MAINTENANCE WORKER I 
 

 
Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential tasks. 

© 2010 City of Elko New Market, Minnesota 

Cleans and repairs manholes. 

Maintains lift stations by inspecting, cleaning and repairing/replacing parts such as pumps and valves. 

Performs flushing of sanitary sewer system. 

Assists with maintaining the municipal water system   

Conducts operational tests on a daily basis and maintains all records as required by MDH and departmental 

policies. 

Adjusts chemical levels and doses on a daily basis. 

Performs various maintenance and repair tasks on a variety of equipment such as pumps, motors, electrical 
equipment, piping, as well as general building maintenance. 

 
Assists with contractors on utility related projects. 

Inspects hydrants and maintains/repairs/replaces as needed, keeping relevant maintenance records. 

Inspects and maintains water towers. 

Assists with repairing curb boxes, service lines, and main line valves. 

Responds to emergencies and repairs water main breaks. 

Maintains a variety of equipment and tools. 

Performs tests on water and wastewater samples. 

Assists supervisor in record keeping and the preparation of reports. 

Assists with meter reading and repairs. 

Provides assistance to public utilities department during emergencies and when directed. 

Supports principals of city’s community-oriented government philosophy. 

 
REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, AND ABILITIES 

Thorough knowledge of local geography, city streets and addresses, business and residential areas; 
thorough knowledge of, and ability to understand/apply, state and federal laws, City ordinances and 
policies, departmental policies, procedures and directives; thorough knowledge of principles, practices, 
and procedures used in maintenance and repair of streets, parks, and other public works equipment, 
facilities and devices; thorough knowledge of hazardous chemicals and ability to implement procedures 
for safe handling/disposal; thorough knowledge of traffic laws; thorough knowledge of OSHA and other 
safety-related laws; thorough knowledge of hazardous waste regulations; thorough skill reading utility 
meters; thorough skill operating standard office equipment, hardware and software; thorough skill 
operating standard public works and maintenance equipment, tools and hardware; ability to make 
arithmetic computations using whole numbers, fractions and decimals; ability to compute rates, ratios and 
percentages; ability to read, interpret and analyze computer reports; ability to conduct tests accurately; 
ability to inspect, repair and maintain sanitary sewer system equipment and supplies; ability to present a 
positive, professional image to the public; ability to communicate effectively, both orally and in writing; 
ability to solve problems and make decisions using appropriate processes and tools; ability to make 
records regarding inspections and materials/time usage; ability to analyze situations and determine 
appropriate action and to respond quickly and appropriately to crisis and emergency situations; ability to 
work as part of a team and without direct supervision; ability to exert moderate to considerable physical 
effort when performing a variety of tasks; ability to lift objects weighing up to 100 pounds; ability to 
stand, walk, sit for extended periods; ability to perform a variety of physical movements such as bend, 



MAINTENANCE WORKER I 
 

 
Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential tasks. 

© 2010 City of Elko New Market, Minnesota 

stoop, crouch, kneel, push and pull, touch, and use both fine and large motor skills; ability to attend 
training to update knowledge and skills and maintain licenses.; ability to establish effective work 
relationships with staff and the general public. 
 

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS 
High school diploma or GED and moderate experience operating heavy equipment, or equivalent combination of 
education and experience and Class B driver’s license in the State of Minnesota. 
 

WORKING CONDITIONS 
This work requires the regular exertion of up to 50 pounds of force and frequent exertion of over 100 pounds of 
force; work regularly requires using hands to finger, handle or feel, frequently requires standing, walking, sitting, 
speaking or hearing, climbing or balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching or crawling, reaching with hands and 
arms, pushing or pulling, lifting and repetitive motions and occasionally requires tasting or smelling; work 
requires close vision, distance vision, ability to adjust focus, depth perception, color perception and peripheral 
vision; vocal communication is required for expressing or exchanging ideas by means of the spoken word; 
hearing is required to perceive information at normal spoken word levels; work requires preparing and analyzing 
written or computer data, visual inspection involving small defects and/or small parts, using of measuring devices, 
operating machines, operating motor vehicles or equipment and observing general surroundings and activities; 
work regularly requires exposure to outdoor weather conditions and exposure to vibration, frequently requires 
working near moving mechanical parts and occasionally requires working in high, precarious places, exposure to 
fumes or airborne particles, exposure to toxic or caustic chemicals, exposure to the risk of electrical shock, 
wearing a self contained breathing apparatus and exposure to bloodborne pathogens and may be required to wear 
specialized personal protective equipment; work is generally in a loud noise location (e.g. grounds maintenance, 
heavy traffic).  
 

SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS 
 Class D Water License must be obtained within one (1) year of hire.  

Class D or SD Wastewater License must be obtained within one (1) year of hire.  
Valid Class D Water License preferred. 
Valid Class D or SD Wastewater License preferred.  
Valid Class A driver's license in the State of Minnesota must be obtained within six (6) months of hire. 

 Tanker Endorsement must be obtained within six (6) months of hire. 
 



 STAFF MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: Authorize Purchase of Fire Apparatus 
MEETING DATE: May 22, 2019 
PREPARED BY: Thomas Terry, City Administrator 
REQUESTED ACTION: 1. Authorize purchase of Rescue Truck in the amount of 

$284,890.00 
2. Authorize purchase of two Grass Rigs at a cost up to $79,096 
utilizing donated funds from the Elko New Market Fire Relief 
Association 

 
COMMUNITY VISION: 

 A mature growing freestanding suburb of the Twin Cities Metropolitan Area, preserving 
historic landmarks and small town character while providing suburban amenities and 
services, as well as full range of employment, housing, business, service, social, 
technology infrastructure and recreational opportunities for citizens and visitors 

 Promote a diverse commercial base including light industrial and facilitating planned 
redevelopment which will be aesthetically pleasing with architectural standards that 
promotes quality development 

 Provide a full range of municipal services to its residents. The City will allocate sufficient 
resources to meet the growing needs of the community 

 A comprehensive park and trails system that will have sufficient facilities, play fields and 
open space to meet the needs of residents 

 An effective and efficient transportation system, including access to the greater 
metropolitan area, transit opportunities, and improved connectivity to the interstate 

 Provide community oriented local government and be financially sound, engaging in 
long-term financial planning to provide municipal services without undue burden on tax 
payers 

5 YEAR GOALS: 
 Diverse tax base, employment opportunities, additional businesses and services, 

promote high quality broad spectrum of residential development 
 Advance “shovel ready” status of areas guided for commercial and industrial 

development 
 Acquisition of land for public purposes, position City to take advantage of land 

acquisition opportunities  
 Enhance quality of life through parks, trails, recreational programming and cultural 

events 
 The development of residential lots and an increase in residential building permit activity 

COMMUNITY ORIENTED LOCAL GOVERNMENT: 
 Community Involvement 
 Organizational Improvement 
 Problem Solving 
 Performance Measurement 
 Professionalism 

  



BACKGROUND 
The Fire Department’s Heavy Rescue primarily responds to medicals and accident calls, which 
make up the majority of the Department’s call load. It also transports personnel and equipment 
to calls generally. As a result, the vehicle responds to more calls than any other vehicle in the 
Fire Department fleet.  
 

 
 
The vehicle was provided by and is owned by New Market Township and currently leased to 
the City of Elko New Market. Experience has demonstrated that the vehicle is oversized for its 
purpose making it difficult to maneuver to and around incident scenes. The vehicle is also two 
wheel drive, limiting its utility under certain conditions both on and off road. The heavy rescue 
is over 18 years old and at the end of its usable life as a reliable response vehicle for this 
purpose. It was originally intended to be replaced in 2015 and was delayed so the financing 
could be bundled with other debt issuance.  
 
The new vehicle is smaller, more maneuverable and four wheel drive. The replacement vehicle 
reflects the Department’s operational needs based on experience. A picture of similar vehicle 
to one being purchased is provided below. 
 



 
 
The Department also has two Grass Rigs, a 2000 F450 and a 2005 F250. These are four 
wheel drive pickups that are equipped with water tanks and pumps that allow for off-road 
firefighting operations. The vehicles also pulls the Department’s 6-wheeler (used for off-road 
firefighting, as well search and rescue operations) and to transport personnel to incidents. Both 
vehicles were originally intended to be replaced over the last few years and were delayed so 
the financing could be bundled with other debt issuance. The 2000 and 2005 Grass Rigs are 
pictured below.  



 
 

 
 
DISCUSSION: 
The City Council is being asked to authorize the purchase of a rescue truck to replace the 
2002 Heavy Rescue vehicle. The vehicle is proposed to be purchased through HGAC contract 
pricing (meeting competitive bid requirements) from Custom Fire Apparatus Inc. in the amount 
of $284,890.00.  A progress payment of $53,035.50 would be due upon delivery of the chassis. 
The remaining balance due upon delivery of the complete vehicle.  
 



The Council is also being asked to authorize the purchase of two Grass Rigs to replace the 
2000 Ford F450 and the 2005 Ford F250 Grass Rigs with the purchase a Ford F350 for 
$44,429 less trade-in of $12,000 and a Ford F350 for $34,667, less trade-in (or reimbursement 
of Capital Outlay with proceeds of sale). The vehicles would be purchased with funds donated 
to Capital Outlay by the Elko New Market Fire Relief. The Fire Relief has indicated its desire 
that the funds be used for this purpose. The use of the donated funds would greatly reduce the 
impact on the taxpayers of the Fire District. 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
$284,890.00 to be financed through Equipment Certificates and up to $79,096 to be funded 
through donated funds on hand.  
  
 
 



 STAFF MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution Relating To Financing Of Certain Proposed Projects To 

Be Undertaken By The City Of Elko New Market; Establishing 
Compliance With Reimbursement Bond Regulations Under The 
Internal Revenue Code  

MEETING DATE: May 22, 2019 
PREPARED BY: Thomas Terry, City Administrator 
REQUESTED ACTION: Adopt Resolution19-29 Relating To Financing Of Certain Proposed 

Projects To Be Undertaken By The City Of Elko New Market; 
Establishing Compliance With Reimbursement Bond Regulations 
Under The Internal Revenue Code  

 
COMMUNITY VISION: 

 A mature growing freestanding suburb of the Twin Cities Metropolitan Area, preserving 
historic landmarks and small town character while providing suburban amenities and 
services, as well as full range of employment, housing, business, service, social, 
technology infrastructure and recreational opportunities for citizens and visitors 

 Promote a diverse commercial base including light industrial and facilitating planned 
redevelopment which will be aesthetically pleasing with architectural standards that 
promotes quality development 

 Provide a full range of municipal services to its residents. The City will allocate sufficient 
resources to meet the growing needs of the community 

 A comprehensive park and trails system that will have sufficient facilities, play fields and 
open space to meet the needs of residents 

 An effective and efficient transportation system, including access to the greater 
metropolitan area, transit opportunities, and improved connectivity to the interstate 

 Provide community oriented local government and be financially sound, engaging in 
long-term financial planning to provide municipal services without undue burden on tax 
payers 

5 YEAR GOALS: 
 Diverse tax base, employment opportunities, additional businesses and services, 

promote high quality broad spectrum of residential development 
 Advance “shovel ready” status of areas guided for commercial and industrial 

development 
 Acquisition of land for public purposes, position City to take advantage of land 

acquisition opportunities  
 Enhance quality of life through parks, trails, recreational programming and cultural 

events 
 The development of residential lots and an increase in residential building permit activity 

COMMUNITY ORIENTED LOCAL GOVERNMENT: 
 Community Involvement 
 Organizational Improvement 
 Problem Solving 
 Performance Measurement 
 Professionalism 



BACKGROUND 
The City Council has planned several significant capital projects and purchases over the next 
year. These include: 
 

• 2019 Streets Rehabilitation 
• Police Department Renovation 
• CSAH 2 and CSAH 91 Roundabout, Trails, Downtown Lighting and Continuous Lighting 
• Fire Apparatus 
• On Site Generation at Lift Stations 

 
In order to optimize the financing for the projects, opportunities may present themselves to 
“bundle” the financing to achieve better rates in the market and/or reduce the relative overhead 
cost of the issuance. Internal Revenue Service Regulations require that the City make a 
declaration of its official intent to reimburse itself for such prior expenditures out of the 
proceeds.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
The City Council is being asked to adopt Resolution 19-29 Relating To Financing Of Certain 
Proposed Projects To Be Undertaken By The City Of Elko New Market; Establishing 
Compliance With Reimbursement Bond Regulations Under The Internal Revenue Code. The 
Resolution must list the projects that the City will be reimbursed for and the amount of the 
reimbursement. The City may not reimburse itself for more than the amount for each 
project/purchase in the Resolution. The Maximum Amount of Bonds Expected to be Issued for 
Project listed in the Resolution include a healthy contingency and are notably greater than 
current budgets for each project.  
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
None. Adoption of the Resolution has no cost to the projects. It simply provides the ability to 
make expenditures or “cash flow” the projects prior to receiving proceeds from financing.  
 
  
Attachments: 

• Resolution19-29 Relating To Financing Of Certain Proposed Projects To Be Undertaken 
By The City Of Elko New Market; Establishing Compliance With Reimbursement Bond 
Regulations Under The Internal Revenue Code 
 
 

 
 



 

RESOLUTION NO. 19-29                     

RESOLUTION RELATING TO FINANCING OF CERTAIN PROPOSED PROJECTS 
TO BE UNDERTAKEN BY THE CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET; ESTABLISHING 
COMPLIANCE WITH REIMBURSEMENT BOND REGULATIONS UNDER THE 
INTERNAL REVENUE CODE 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of the City of Elko New Market, Minnesota (the 
“City”), as follows: 

1.  Recitals. 

(a)  The Internal Revenue Service has issued Section 1.150-2 of the Income 
Tax Regulations (the “Regulations”) dealing with the issuance of bonds, all or a portion 
of the proceeds of which are to be used to reimburse the City for project expenditures 
made by the City prior to the date of issuance. 

(b)  The Regulations generally require that the City make a declaration of its 
official intent to reimburse itself for such prior expenditures out of the proceeds of a 
subsequently issued series of bonds within 60 days after payment of the expenditures, 
that the bonds be issued and the reimbursement allocation be made from the proceeds of 
such bonds within the reimbursement period (as defined in the Regulations), and that the 
expenditures reimbursed be capital expenditures or costs of issuance of the bonds. 

(c)  The City desires to comply with requirements of the Regulations with 
respect to certain projects hereinafter identified. 

2.  Official Intent Declaration. 

(a)  The City proposes to undertake the following project or projects and to make 
original expenditures with respect thereto prior to the issuance of reimbursement bonds, and 
reasonably expects to issue reimbursement bonds for such project or projects in the maximum 
principal amounts shown below: 

           Maximum Amount of Bonds 
Project                  Expected to be Issued for Project 
2019 Streets Rehabilitation $670,000 
Police Department Renovation $1,600,000 
CSAH 2 and CSAH 91 Roundabout, Trails, Downtown Lighting 
and Continuous Lighting 

 
$1,400,000 

Fire Rescue Vehicle $300,000 
On Site Generation at Lift Stations $250,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 -2- 
4840-6261-8130\1  5/20/2019 4:28 PM 

 
 
 

(b)   Other than (i) de minimis amounts permitted to be reimbursed pursuant to 
Section 1.150-2(f)(1) of the Regulations or (ii) expenditures constituting preliminary 
expenditures as defined in Section 1.150-2(f)(2) of the Regulations, the City will not seek 
reimbursement for any original expenditures with respect to the foregoing projects paid more 
than 60 days prior to the date of adoption of  this resolution.  All original expenditures for which 
reimbursement is sought will be capital expenditures or costs of issuance of the reimbursement 
bonds. 

3.  Budgetary Matters.  As of the date hereof, there are no City funds reserved, 
pledged, allocated on a long term basis or otherwise set aside (or reasonably expected to be 
reserved, pledged, allocated on a long term basis or otherwise set aside) to provide permanent 
financing for the original expenditures related to the projects, other than pursuant to the issuance 
of the reimbursement bonds.  Consequently, it is not expected that the issuance of the 
reimbursement bonds will result in the creation of any replacement proceeds. 

 
4.  Reimbursement Allocations. The City’s financial officer shall be responsible 

for making the “reimbursement allocations” described in the Regulations, being generally the 
transfer of the appropriate amount of proceeds of the reimbursement bonds to reimburse the 
source of temporary financing used by the City to make payment of the original expenditures 
relating to the projects. Each reimbursement allocation shall be made within 45 days of the date 
of issuance of the reimbursement bonds, shall be evidenced by an entry on the official books and 
records of the City maintained for the reimbursement bonds and shall specifically identify the 
original expenditures being reimbursed. 

PASSED AND DULY ADOPTED by the Elko New Market City Council this 22nd day of May, 
2019. 
 
 
               
         Joe Julius, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
    ___________ 
Thomas Terry, Acting City Clerk 
 



 STAFF MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: Sanitary Sewer Trunk Fee Credit Policy 
MEETING DATE: May 22, 2019 
PREPARED BY: Thomas Terry, City Administrator 
REQUESTED ACTION: Adopt Resolution 19-22 Adopting A Policy For A Credit To The City 

Sanitary Sewer Trunk Fee For Eligible Properties   
 
COMMUNITY VISION: 

 A mature growing freestanding suburb of the Twin Cities Metropolitan Area, preserving 
historic landmarks and small town character while providing suburban amenities and 
services, as well as full range of employment, housing, business, service, social, 
technology infrastructure and recreational opportunities for citizens and visitors 

 Promote a diverse commercial base including light industrial and facilitating planned 
redevelopment which will be aesthetically pleasing with architectural standards that 
promotes quality development 

 Provide a full range of municipal services to its residents. The City will allocate sufficient 
resources to meet the growing needs of the community 

 A comprehensive park and trails system that will have sufficient facilities, play fields and 
open space to meet the needs of residents 

 An effective and efficient transportation system, including access to the greater 
metropolitan area, transit opportunities, and improved connectivity to the interstate 

 Provide community oriented local government and be financially sound, engaging in 
long-term financial planning to provide municipal services without undue burden on tax 
payers 

5 YEAR GOALS: 
 Diverse tax base, employment opportunities, additional businesses and services, 

promote high quality broad spectrum of residential development 
 Advance “shovel ready” status of areas guided for commercial and industrial 

development 
 Acquisition of land for public purposes, position City to take advantage of land 

acquisition opportunities  
 Enhance quality of life through parks, trails, recreational programming and cultural 

events 
 The development of residential lots and an increase in residential building permit activity 

COMMUNITY ORIENTED LOCAL GOVERNMENT: 
 Community Involvement 
 Organizational Improvement 
 Problem Solving 
 Performance Measurement 
 Professionalism 

  



BACKGROUND 
Prior to the merger of the Cites of Elko and New Market, the Joint Sewer Board (JSB) provided 
oversight for the operation of the combined wastewater collection and treatment system for the 
cities. This joint powers organization owned and operated the wastewater treatment facility, as 
well as operated the collection systems of the individual cities. The JSB was governed by a 
board made up of representative from both former cities.  
 
In 2005, the JSB established a policy specifying the conditions and criteria under which the 
JSB would waive the JSB’s Sewer Access Charge (SAC) fee. This fee was similar to the 
current Met Council SAC fee or the City’s trunk fee. It was collected by the Cities on behalf of 
the JSB to pay for capital infrastructure. It is the understanding of Staff that general property 
tax levy was used for a limited period of time to partially service the debt for the initial 
installation of the sanitary sewer system in the former City of Elko. And, this was part of the 
rationale for establishing the JSB Sewer Access Charge (SAC) Waiver Policy. 
 

 
 
The City connected to the to the Met Council interceptor in 2011, causing the policy to expire. 
The Council has had multiple discussions regarding extension of the policy or establishment of 
a similar policy, most recently in 2018. The Council had decided not to reestablish a same or 
similar policy or provide a waiver consistent with the policy on a case by case basis.  
 
The City had been contacted by the owner of 26501 Xerxes Trail (Lucast) regarding 
connection to the City’s waste water system. The property is currently served by a Subsurface 
Sewage Treatment System (SSTS) which was reportedly initially installed in 1987 as a 
replacement system.  Connection to city sewer would require connecting to the existing sewer 
service coming out of the house. As part of the connection request, the property owner 
(Lucast) has inquired about full or partial waiver of connection fees, specifically the previous 
JSB Sewer Access Charge Waiver Policy. The property owner was advised that the Council 
had recently discussed the topic in 2018 and determined that no so such credit or waiver of 
fees would be provided. Any request varying from that policy direction would need to be made 
directly to Council.  
 



In February, the property owner (Lucast) made a formal request for a reduction in fees 
consistent with the former JSB Sewer Access Charge (SAC) Waiver Policy. The fees 
associated with the hookup include the trunk fee of $4,056, the connection fee of $2,107 and 
the MCES fee of $4,864 for a total $11,027. The JSB Sanitary Sewer Charge Waiver policy 
provided a waiver of the JSB Sewer Access Charge (SAC), which was $4,300 at the time. This 
was collected in addition to the city trunk fees. When the Cities merged, the JSB SAC fee of 
$4,300 was combined with the sanitary sewer trunk fee. The sanitary sewer trunk fee is 
currently $4,056 per the 2019 Fee Schedule.  
 
Staff recommended that any credit not exceed the amount of the current trunk fee of $4,056. 
Furthermore, Staff recommended reviewing the Lucast request within the context of a policy 
decision as opposed to an individual request. In considering the request, the Council 
determined that the issue be discussed within the context of a policy decision regarding 
properties with similar circumstances.  
 
After considering the issue, the Council directed Staff to prepare a policy providing a credit 
towards the Sewer Trunk Fee for consideration by the City Council. The Council did not 
provide direction on the amount of the credit.  
 
The draft policy was presented to the Council at the May 9, 2019 meeting for consideration. 
The Council directed some minor changes to the policy. These include making the credit a 
percentage of the fee, as opposed to a specific amount. The Council also requested that 
language be added to clarify that the Woodcrest Development, which has a separate policy, is 
excluded. The Council also requested more information on the number of properties that would 
be eligible under the proposed policy. .  
 
DISCUSSION: 
Staff has provided a revised Policy For A Credit To The City Sanitary Sewer Trunk Fee For 
Eligible Properties for consideration by the City Council. The revised policy includes the 
directed changes, including making the credit a percentage of the fee and excluding those 
properties addressed by the Woodcrest Sanitary Sewer Policy. Since the Council did not 
provide direction, the amount of the credit will need to be inserted once it has been determined 
by Council.  
 
It is estimated that fourteen properties would be eligible to receive the credit under the 
proposed policy.  
 



 
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
Non-collection of the sewer trunk fee in the amount of the determined credit.  
 
 
Attachments: 
Resolution 19-22 
Draft Sewer Access Charge (SAC) Waiver Policy 



1 
202062v2 

 
 

CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET 
SCOTT COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 19-22 

 
RESOLUTION ADOPTING A POLICY FOR A CREDIT TO THE CITY 

SANITARY SEWER TRUNK FEE FOR ELIGIBLE PROPERTIES 
 

 
WHEREAS, the City desires to encourage properties within the City currently 

served by a subsurface sewage treatment system to connect to available sanitary sewer 
service; 

 
WHEREAS, certain properties within City were previously offered a waiver to a 

prior sewer access charge by the Joint Sewer Board for the individual cities (“JSB”), to 
provide such encouragement and reflect the contribution of the properties to the initial 
installation of municipal sanitary sewer infrastructure through the payment of general 
property taxes (JSB Policy); 

 
WHEREAS, the JSB is no longer in existence and the JSB Policy providing such 

a waiver has expired; 
 
WHEREAS, the City desires to continue the JSB Policy, in concept, by providing 

a credit to the sanitary sewer trunk fee for eligible properties within the City pursuant to 
the Sanitary Sewer Trunk Fee Credit Policy attached hereto as Exhibit A;  

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

ELKO NEW MARKET, MINNESOTA, that the Sanitary Sewer Trunk Fee Credit 
Policy attached hereto as Exhibit A is hereby adopted.  

 
PASSED AND DULY ADOPTED by the Elko New Market City Council this 

22nd day of May, 2019. 
 
 
 
      ________________________________ 
      Joe Julius, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Thomas Terry, Acting City Clerk 



2 
202062v2 

EXHIBIT A 
 

SANITARY SEWER TRUNK FEE CREDIT POLICY 
 

1. Purpose.  The City desires to encourage properties currently served by a 
subsurface sewage treatment system (“SSTS”) to connect to the City sanitary sewer 
service by providing a credit to the sanitary sewer trunk fee for properties that supported 
the initial installation of sanitary sewer infrastructure through general property taxes. 
 
2. Credit.  Eligible properties under this policy shall receive a ______% reduction 
in the amount of the City’s sanitary sewer trunk fee in accordance with the terms of this 
policy.   
 
3. Eligibility.  Properties are eligible for the credit provided under this policy, if the 
property meets the following criteria: 
 

a. The property was located within the corporate boundary of the City of 
Elko or the City of New Market prior to January 1, 1987; and 

b. The property must have been improved with a single family, multi-family 
or commercial building served by an SSTS prior to January 1, 1989; and 

c. The property has gravity sewer available and is not receiving a credit or 
waiver under the Woodcrest Sanitary Sewer Policy. 

 
4. Application for Credit.  A property seeking a credit to the sanitary sewer service 
trunk fee, must request the credit at the time of connection and provide evidence 
supporting eligibility for the credit.  No credit will be applied to properties that have 
previously connected to city sanitary sewer service or that connect prior to applying for a 
credit. 

 
 
 



 

h:\elnm\t17116817\1_corres\c_to others\resolutions\approve p and s and auth ad for bids cover memo.docx 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

Date: May 22, 2018 

To: Mayor Julius and the Elko New Market City Council 

Tom Terry, City Administrator  

From: Rich Revering, PE – City Engineer 

Subject: Resolution Approving Plans and Specs and Authorizing Ad for Bids 

 2019 Streets Rehabilitation  

 Elko New Market 

 Project No.: T17.116817 

 

 

BACKGROUND   

 

The City Council is being asked to the adopt the attached resolution approving plans and specifications 

and authorizing the advertisement for bids for the above-referenced project. 

 

DISCUSSION 

 

A .pdf of the project plans is attached.  A Project Manual, including specifications, is available on request.  

The manual is not attached due to size.  

 

The attached Engineer’s Estimate lists the items of work included in the project.  It also provides an 

estimate of impacts on the General Fund, the Stormwater Fund, and an updated estimate of assessment 

per Residential Equivalent Unit. 

 

Some work is proposed to be completed by the Public Works Dept. including installation of subsurface 

drains on Jean Way and Aaron Drive, as well as replacement of Street Name sign blades.  Costs 

associated with this in-house work may be billed to the project and paid with bond proceeds.  This work 

is supportive of the project goals but is not generally within the capabilities of most paving contractors 

and their usual subcontractors.  Staff feels it will be more cost effective for the Public Works Department 

to complete this work.  These items are not included in the determination of assessment amounts. 

 

Awarding the contract at the end of June would mean this work is done after Fire and Rescue Days.  The 

completion date in the contract is November 15th, so the work would be done in advance of the 

roundabout project in 2020.  Scott County has dictated the roundabout will be constructed closed to 

traffic, with official detours following other county roads around the City.  Staff expects additional use of 

some roads in the rehabilitation project due to unofficial detours.  Signage and enforcement will be used 

to prevent heavy truck traffic on city streets.  Speeds and counts will be monitored with radar equipment 

to help in complaint responses.  The additional automobile traffic over a several week period would not 

be expected to result in a notable reduction of pavement life.  Staff therefore recommends proceeding 

with the rehabilitation work as planned, with no adjustments based on anticipated detour traffic. 

 



 

Date: March 22nd, 2018 

  

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

Adopt the attached resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing ads for bids. 

 



CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET 
SCOTT COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 19-28 

 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS AND ORDERING 
ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to a resolution passed by the council January 24th, 2019, the city engineer 
has prepared plans and specifications for the improvement of various streets as shown on the 
attached map by selective curb and catch basin repairs and preparation, edge milling, and thin 
overlay of the asphaltic concrete surface and has presented such plans and specifications to the 
council for approval; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF ELKO NEW 
MARKET, MINNESOTA: 
 
1. Such plans and specifications, a copy of which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, are 
hereby approved. 
 
2. The City Clerk shall prepare and cause to be inserted in the official paper (and on Quest) an 
advertisement for bids upon the making of such improvement under such approved plans and 
specifications. The advertisement shall be published for 21 days, shall specify the work to be 
done, shall state that bids will be received by the clerk until 11 a.m. on June 21, 2019, at which 
time they will be publicly opened in the council chambers of the city hall by the city clerk and 
engineer, will then be tabulated, and will be considered by the council at 7:30 pm. on June 
27, 2019, in the council chambers of the city hall. Any bidder whose responsibility is questioned 
during consideration of the bid will be given an opportunity to address the council on the issue of 
responsibility. No bids will be considered unless sealed and filed with the clerk and accompanied 
by a cash deposit, cashier’s check, bid bond or certified check payable to the clerk for five 
percent of the amount of such bid. 
 
PASSED AND DULY ADOPTED by the Elko New Market City Council this 22nd day of May, 
2019. 
 
 
               
         Joe Julius, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
    ___________ 
Thomas Terry, Acting City Clerk 
 



PTARMIGAN DR

W
OODCR

ES
T

CT

WOODCREST

WOODCREST

XE
RX

ES
 A

VE
TO

W
N

SH
IP

 R
O

AD
XE

RX
ES

 A
VE

MAIN   ST

265TH     ST E

MAIN ST

EL
M

 S
T

DR
EW

 A
VE

DR
EW

 A
VE

266TH ST

267TH ST

CH
O

W
EN

 A
VE

WEXFORD LN

BLACKPOOLCT E

XE
RX

ES
 T

RA
IL

TO
W

NSH
IP

 R
OAD

CH
O

W
EN

 A
VE

CT W

BLACKPOOL

GL
EN

M
O

O
R

CT

FR
AN

CE
 A

VE
CO

U
N

TY
 R

O
AD

 3
3

COUNTY STATE AID HIGHWAY 2
260TH ST E

CTST
IRLIN

G

GLENBOROUGH DR

W
ESTON CT

LO
NG

RI
DG

E
DR

RI
DG

E 
DR

GLENBOROUGH DR

WHISPERING HILLS LN

FAIRWAY HILL DR

PRAIRIE ST

PO
ND

 C
T

CO
U

N
TY

 R
O

AD
 9

1

N
AT

CH
EZ

 A
VE

CO
U

N
TY

 R
O

AD
 9

1
N

AT
CH

EZ
 A

VE
EV

ER
GR

EE
N

   
TR

AI
L

EV
ER

GR
EE

N
 C

T

260TH ST E

PONDS CIR

PO
N

DS
 W

AY

BE
AR

D 
AV

E

260TH  ST.  E.

CO
U

RT
FR

AN
CI

S

S HELLY   LANE JUDY COURT

SH
EL

LY
CO

U
RT

AARON DRIVE

W
IL

D 
STREET

SEURER

COURT

AARON DRIVE

HO
LL

Y

CO
UR

T

DO
RO

TH
Y

LA
N

E

TAMMY

DRIVE

THERESA

MARIE

DRIVE

THERESA

MARIE
DRIVE

260TH ST E

JEAN

W
AY

WAY
JEAN

WILD WINGS PASS

SEURER   STREET W
IL

D 
W

IN
GS

 P
AS

S

ANNA COURTAN
N

A 
ST

RE
ET

O
VE

RL
O

O
K 

CO
U

RT

O
VE

RL
O

O
K 

ST
RE

ET

FR
AN

CI
S 

DR
IV

E

AARON DRIVE

W
EB

ST
ER

  S
TR

EE
T

W
EB

ST
ER

  S
TR

EE
T

ST. PAUL  STREET

ST.   MARY    STREET

ST. JOSEPH  STREET

CH
U

RC
H 

ST
RE

ET

W
IL

LI
AM

  S
TR

EE
T

ZA
N

E 
 A

VE
N

U
E

W
. L

O
U

IS
 S

TR
EE

T

TO
DD

 S
TR

EE
T

DA
KO

TA
 A

VE
N

U
E

M
AC

 S
TR

EE
T

PARK   STREET

KNIGHT'S ROAD

ROW
ENA

COURT NORTH

RICHARD

DRIVE

RO
W

EN
A

CO
U

RT
 S

O
U

TH

DAKO
TA AVEN

U
E

TODD STREET

TODD

COURT

MAVERICK AVENUE

JAMES
JAMES

PARKWAY PARKWAY

BR
AD

Y
ST

RE
ET

RI
LE

Y 
RO

AD

CA
RT

ER

ST
RE

ET

PARK CO
URT

OVERLOOKDR
IV

E

KNIGHT'S ROAD

ROWENA CURVE

DR
IV

E
SA

XO
N

CE
DR

IC
 L

AN
EPONDVIEW

WINDROSE

OAK   ST

CAMBRIDGE     LN

OLD  TOWN  RD

NOTE: EXISTING UTILITY INFORMATION SHOWN ON THIS
PLAN HAS BEEN PROVIDED BY THE UTILITY OWNER. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL FIELD VERIFY EXACT LOCATIONS PRIOR
TO COMMENCING CONSTRUCTION AS REQUIRED BY STATE
LAW. NOTIFY GOPHER STATE ONE CALL, 1-800-252-1166 OR
651-454-0002.

THE SUBSURFACE UTILITY INFORMATION IN THIS PLAN IS
UTILITY QUALITY LEVEL D UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. THIS
UTILITY LEVEL WAS DETERMINED ACCORDING TO THE
GUIDELINES OF CI/ASCE 38-02, ENTITLED "STANDARD
GUIDELINES FOR THE COLLECTION AND DEPICTION OF
EXISTING SUBSURFACE UTILITY DATA."

PROJECT LOCATION

PROJECT LIMITS

BID LOCATION

MAP LEGEND

RESOURCE LIST

CITY OF Elko New Market
City Hall
601 Main Street
Elko New Market 55054

City Administrator:
Thomas Terry

Mayor: Joe Julius

City Council Members:
Kate Timmerman
Josh Berg
Dawn Seepersaud
Jon Schwichtenberg

City Engineer:
Rich Revering P.E.
Bolton & Menk, Inc.

Utility Superintendent:
Corey Schweich

SHEET NUMBER SHEET TITLE
GENERAL

G0.01 - G0.02 TITLE SHEET, GENERAL NOTES
G1.01 - G1.XX STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

CIVIL
C1.01 TABLES, DETAILS, TYPICAL SECTIONS, PHASING PLAN

C6.01 - C6.14 STREET PLAN & PROFILE, INTERSECTION DETAILS
C8.01 - C8.07 STANDARD DETAIL PLATES, STANDARD PLANS

THIS PLAN SET CONTAINS  23  SHEETS.

FEETSCALE

0 1600800

BOLTON & MENK, INC.
PROJECT NUMBER T17.116817

MAP OF THE
CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET

SCOTT COUNTY, MN

CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET
CONSTRUCTION PLANS FOR

2019 PAVEMENT REHABILITATION
MAY, 2019

R

DATELIC. NO.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN, SPECIFICATION, OR REPORT WAS PREPARED
BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A DULY LICENSED
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA.

SHEET

 B
ol

to
n 

&
 M

en
k,

 In
c.

 2
01

9,
 A

ll 
Ri

gh
ts

 R
es

er
ve

d
c H:

\E
LN

M
\T

17
11

68
17

\C
AD

\C
3D

\1
16

81
7G

00
1.

dw
g 

5/
16

/2
01

9 
9:

53
:3

1 
AM

DESIGNED

DRAWN

CHECKED

CLIENT PROJ. NO.

ISSUED FOR DATENO.

R

12224 NICOLLET AVENUE
BURNSVILLE, MINNESOTA  55337

Phone: (952) 890-0509
Email: Burnsville@bolton-menk.com

www.bolton-menk.comRICH REVERING
20711

CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET
2019 PAVEMENT REHABILITATION

JLW

JLW

RR

T17.116817

G0.01
TITLE SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
JAY ROBERTS WAY



DATELIC. NO.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN, SPECIFICATION, OR REPORT WAS PREPARED
BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A DULY LICENSED
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA.

SHEET

 B
ol

to
n 

&
 M

en
k,

 In
c.

 2
01

9,
 A

ll 
Ri

gh
ts

 R
es

er
ve

d
c H:

\E
LN

M
\T

17
11

68
17

\C
AD

\C
3D

\1
16

81
7G

00
3.

dw
g 

5/
16

/2
01

9 
9:

53
:3

8 
AM

DESIGNED

DRAWN

CHECKED

CLIENT PROJ. NO.

ISSUED FOR DATENO.

R

12224 NICOLLET AVENUE
BURNSVILLE, MINNESOTA  55337

Phone: (952) 890-0509
Email: Burnsville@bolton-menk.com

www.bolton-menk.comRICH REVERING
20711

CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET
2019 PAVEMENT REHABILITATION

JLW

JLW

RR

T17.116817

GENERAL CONSTRUCTION:

1. ALL TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNAGE SHALL BE IN PLACE PRIOR TO
BEGINNING CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY.

2. EXISTING TOPSOIL IN DISTURBED AREAS SHALL BE SALVAGED AND 
REINSTALLED.

3. EXCESS EXCAVATED AND UNSUITABLE MATERIALS SHALL BECOME
THE PROPERTY OF THE CONTRACTOR AND SHALL BE DISPOSED OF IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF MnDOT SPECS 2204.3C3
AND 2105.3D.

4. SUBGRADE PREPARATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH MnDOT SPEC 2112
SHALL BE CONSIDERED INCIDENTAL.

5. CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN LOCAL ACCESS TO ALL PROPERTIES
ALONG THE ROADWAY FOR THE DURATION OF THE PROJECT
CONSTRUCTION.  TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNING AND DEVICES SHALL BE
FURNISHED AND INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MOST
RECENT MMUTCD INCLUDING THE FIELD MANUAL FOR TEMPORARY
TRAFFIC CONTROL ZONE LAYOUTS.

STREET :

1. EXISTING DRIVEWAY ENTRANCES SHALL BE PROTECTED.
2. MILL AND OVERLAY EXTENTS SHALL BE MARKED BY THE ENGINEER

IN THE FIELD.  STATIONS IDENTIFIED IN PLANS ARE APPROXIMATE.
3. COMPACTION OF BITUMINOUS LAYERS ON ALL PERMANENT

SECTIONS SHALL BE BY THE "MAXIMUM DENSITY" IN
ACCORDANCE WITH MnDOT SPEC 2360.6C.

4. CONTRACTOR SHALL REMOVE AND REPLACE SECTIONS OF THE
EXISTING CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER AS DIRECTED IN THE
FIELD BY THE ENGINEER AND PAID FOR AT UNIT PRICE BID.
CONTRACTOR SHALL OTHERWISE PROTECT ALL EXISTING
CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER.

5. SAWCUTTING OF EXISTING BITUMINOUS AND/OR CONCRETE
SHALL BE AS DIRECTED BY THE ENGINEER IN THE FIELD AND SHALL
BE CONSIDERED INCIDENTAL TO THE PROJECT.  SAWCUTTING
SHALL BE STRAIGHT AND TO THE FULL DEPTH OF THE CONCRETE
AND/OR BITUMINOUS.  IF ANY DAMAGE IS DONE TO ABUTTING
CONCRETE AND/OR BITUMINOUS, CONTRACTOR SHALL REMOVE
AND REPLACE THE ENTIRE DAMAGED PANEL AT NO COST TO THE
CITY.

6. CONCRETE APRONS WILL REQUIRE TWO SAWCUTS AS DIRECTED
BY THE ENGINEER IN THE FIELD AND SHALL BE CONSIDERED
INCIDENTAL TO THE PROJECT.

7. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROTECT THE CONCRETE FROM
DAMAGE CAUSED BY INCLEMENT WEATHER, VANDALISM OR
FREEZING.

8. PRIOR TO PLACEMENT OF WEAR COURSE ALL PAVEMENT JOINTS
AND EDGES SHALL BE CUT STRAIGHT WITH A MILL OR OTHER
APPROVED METHOD TO CREATE A CRISP JOINT.  PAYMENT SHALL
BE CONSIDERED INCIDENTAL TO THE PROJECT.

9. BITUMINOUS STREET PATCHES ADJACENT TO SPOT CURB
REPLACEMENT AND CASTING CALLED FOR
REPLACEMENT/ADJUSTMENT SHALL BE INCIDENTAL TO THE SPOT
REPLACEMENT OR CASTING REPLACEMENT/ADJUSTMENT.
BITUMINOUS PATCH AREA SHALL BE LARGE ENOUGH TO GET A
MECHANICAL COMPACTOR IN THE AREA. PATCH SHALL BE A
MINIMUM OF 6" CLASS 5 AND 3" BITUMINOUS.

10. ALL SUBGRADE PREP, AGGREGATE BASE, AND BITUMINOUS
MATERIAL INCLUDED IN A STREET PATCH SHALL BE CONSIDERED
INCIDENTAL TO THE STREET PATCH BID ITEM.

G0.02
GENERAL CONSTRUCTION NOTES

EDGE MILL & OVERLAY
MAINLINE

2-INCH WEARING COURSE SPWA240C

TACK COAT
AT EDGE

TYPICAL SECTION
FULL PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT

ADD CL.5 AGG BASE, SHAPE & COMPACT AS NEEDED
TO MAINTAIN EXISTING DRAINAGE PATTERN & PREPARE
FOR NEW SURFACE

REMOVE EXITING ASPHALT SURFACE



LC

TYPICAL SECTION

EXISTING
CONCRETE
CURB

1.5" WEARING COURSE SPWEA240C

EDGE MILL BITUMINOUS SURFACE (TYP.)

BITUMINOUS TACK COAT (0.05 GAL / SY*)

1 1/2 INCHES
(TYP)

REMAINING BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT

6 FT EDGE MILL6 FT EDGE MILL
0 INCHES
(TYP)

R/
W

R/
W

1 1/2 INCHES
(TYP)

0 INCHES
(TYP)

EXISTING SUBGRADE

DRIVE LANE DRIVE LANE

*DOUBLE APPLICATION RATE OVER MILLED AREA

EDGE MILL & OVERLAY

DATELIC. NO.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN, SPECIFICATION, OR REPORT WAS PREPARED
BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A DULY LICENSED
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA.

SHEET

 B
ol

to
n 

&
 M

en
k,

 In
c.

 2
01

9,
 A

ll 
Ri

gh
ts

 R
es

er
ve

d
c H:

\E
LN

M
\T

17
11

68
17

\C
AD

\C
3D

\1
16

81
7C

1.
01

.d
w

g 
5/

16
/2

01
9 

9:
53

:4
7 

AM

DESIGNED

DRAWN

CHECKED

CLIENT PROJ. NO.

ISSUED FOR DATENO.

R

12224 NICOLLET AVENUE
BURNSVILLE, MINNESOTA  55337

Phone: (952) 890-0509
Email: Burnsville@bolton-menk.com

www.bolton-menk.comRICH REVERING
20711

CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET
2019 PAVEMENT REHABILITATION

JLW

JLW

RR

T17.116817DATELIC. NO.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN, SPECIFICATION, OR REPORT WAS PREPARED
BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A DULY LICENSED
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA.

SHEET

 B
ol

to
n 

&
 M

en
k,

 In
c.

 2
01

9,
 A

ll 
Ri

gh
ts

 R
es

er
ve

d
c H:

\E
LN

M
\T

17
11

68
17

\C
AD

\C
3D

\1
16

81
7C

1.
01

.d
w

g 
5/

16
/2

01
9 

9:
53

:4
7 

AM

DESIGNED

DRAWN

CHECKED

CLIENT PROJ. NO.

ISSUED FOR DATENO.

R

12224 NICOLLET AVENUE
BURNSVILLE, MINNESOTA  55337

Phone: (952) 890-0509
Email: Burnsville@bolton-menk.com

www.bolton-menk.comRICH REVERING
20711

CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET
2019 PAVEMENT REHABILITATION

JLW

JLW

RR

T17.116817

C1.01
C1 SHEETS



0

1
2

3

4
5

6

7

835'

S

S

S S

1

2

3

4

5
6

7
7

D

S

S

30'

R

C6.01
STREET PLAN - JAMES PKWY - PARK ST

FEETSCALE

0 25 50
HORZ.

DATELIC. NO.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN, SPECIFICATION, OR REPORT WAS PREPARED
BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A DULY LICENSED
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA.

SHEET

 B
ol

to
n 

&
 M

en
k,

 In
c.

 2
01

9,
 A

ll 
Ri

gh
ts

 R
es

er
ve

d
c H:

\E
LN

M
\T

17
11

68
17

\C
AD

\C
3D

\1
16

81
7C

60
1.

dw
g 

5/
16

/2
01

9 
9:

54
:0

7 
AM

DESIGNED

DRAWN

CHECKED

CLIENT PROJ. NO.

ISSUED FOR DATENO.

R

12224 NICOLLET AVENUE
BURNSVILLE, MINNESOTA  55337

Phone: (952) 890-0509
Email: Burnsville@bolton-menk.com

www.bolton-menk.comRICH REVERING
20711

CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET
2019 PAVEMENT REHABILITATION

JLW

JLW

RR

T17.116817

CA
RT

ER
 S

TR
EE

T

RI
LE

Y 
RO

AD

PROTECT EXISTING
CONCRETE CURB AND
GUTTER (TYP.) (INCIDENTAL)

REPLACE BROKEN WATER
VALVE BOX TOP SECTIONS

STA 1+53 BEGIN
MILL & OVERLAY

STA 8+02 END
MILL & OVERLAY

316 SQ YD EDGE MILL
BITUMINOUS SURFACE

ADJUST EXISTING MANHOLE CASTING
(TYP.)

R

SPEED BUMP

JAMES PARKWAY

DA
KO

TA
 A

VE
N

U
E PROTECT EXISTING

CONCRETE CURB AND
GUTTER (TYP.) (INCIDENTAL)

SPOT CURB REPAIR
RE-SET EXISTING CATCH
BASIN CASTINGS (TYP.)

STA 0+90 BEGIN
MILL & OVERLAY

STA 7+02 END
MILL & OVERLAY

220 SQ YD EDGE MILL
BITUMINOUS SURFACE

PARK STREET

ADJUST EXISTING MANHOLE CASTING
(TYP.)

ADJUST EXISTING GATE VALVE BOX
(TYP.)

REPLACE BROKEN WATER
VALVE BOX TOP SECTION



6+00
7+00 8+00 9+00 10+00 11+00 11+27.42

31'S S

31
'

0+00

1+00

2+00

3+00
4+00

5+00

6+00
7+00

31'

S

S

S

S

D

R

R

PROTECT EXISTING
CONCRETE CURB AND
GUTTER (TYP.) (INCIDENTAL)

SPOT CURB REPAIR
RESET EXISTING CATCH

BASIN CASTING (TYP.)

STA 0+00 BEGIN
MILL & OVERLAY

STA 10+71 END
MILL & OVERLAY

401 SQ YD EDGE MILL
BITUMINOUS SURFACE

ADJUST EXISTING MANHOLE CASTING
(TYP.)

ZA
N

E 
AV

EN
U

E

RO
W

EN
A 

CO
UR

T 
NO

RT
H

RO
W

EN
A 

CU
RV

E

ADJUST EXISTING MANHOLE CASTING
(TYP.)

PROTECT EXISTING
CONCRETE CURB AND

GUTTER (TYP.) (INCIDENTAL)
RI

CH
AR

D 
DR

IV
E

RO
W

EN
A 

CO
UR

T 
NO

RT
H

KNIGHTS ROAD

KNIGHTS ROAD

DATELIC. NO.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN, SPECIFICATION, OR REPORT WAS PREPARED
BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A DULY LICENSED
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA.

SHEET

 B
ol

to
n 

&
 M

en
k,

 In
c.

 2
01

9,
 A

ll 
Ri

gh
ts

 R
es

er
ve

d
c H:

\E
LN

M
\T

17
11

68
17

\C
AD

\C
3D

\1
16

81
7C

60
7.

dw
g 

5/
16

/2
01

9 
9:

54
:1

4 
AM

DESIGNED

DRAWN

CHECKED

CLIENT PROJ. NO.

ISSUED FOR DATENO.

R

12224 NICOLLET AVENUE
BURNSVILLE, MINNESOTA  55337

Phone: (952) 890-0509
Email: Burnsville@bolton-menk.com

www.bolton-menk.comRICH REVERING
20711

CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET
2019 PAVEMENT REHABILITATION

JLW

JLW

RR

T17.116817

C6.02
STREET PLAN - KNIGHT ROAD

FEETSCALE

0 25 50
HORZ.

PED RAMP REPLACEMENT
(PERPENDICULAR) C8.01

REMOVE 15 LF C&G
REMOVE 140 SF CONCRETE WALK

INSTALL 15 LF C&G
INSTALL 115 SF CONCRETE SIDEWALK
INSTALL 75 SF CONCRETE PED RAMP

PED RAMP REPLACEMENT
(ONE WAY DIRECTIONAL) C8.02

REMOVE 30 LF C&G
REMOVE 535 SF BITUMINOUS TRAIL

INSTALL 30 LF C&G
INSTALL 470 SF BITUMINOUS TRAIL

INSTALL 85 SF CONCRETE PED RAMP

10'

ADJUST EXISTING WATER VALVE CASTING
(TYP.)

ADJUST EXISTING GATE VALVE BOX
(TYP.)

REPLACE BROKEN WATER
VALVE BOX TOP SECTION



6+
00

7+
00

7+92.10

32'

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>
>>

S

0+00 1+00

2+00

3+00
4+00

5+00

6+
00

32'

32'

>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>
>>

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>
>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>

>>

>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>
>>

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>

>>
>>

>>
>>

S

S

S

S

R

R

AA
RO

N
 D

RI
VE

STA 0+27 BEGIN
MILL & OVERLAY

349 SQ YD EDGE MILL
BITUMINOUS SURFACE

ADJUST EXISTING MANHOLE CASTING
(TYP.)

TH
ER

ES
A 

M
AR

IE
 D

RI
VE

PROTECT EXISTING
CONCRETE CURB AND

GUTTER (TYP.) (INCIDENTAL)

JEAN WAY

PROTECT EXISTING
CONCRETE CURB AND

GUTTER (TYP.) (INCIDENTAL)

STA 7+81 END
MILL & OVERLAY

FRANCIS COURT
JE

AN
 W

AY
FRANCIS LANE32

'

REPLACE GATE VALVE
BOX TOP SECTION

JEAN WAY

DATELIC. NO.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN, SPECIFICATION, OR REPORT WAS PREPARED
BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A DULY LICENSED
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA.

SHEET

 B
ol

to
n 

&
 M

en
k,

 In
c.

 2
01

9,
 A

ll 
Ri

gh
ts

 R
es

er
ve

d
c H:

\E
LN

M
\T

17
11

68
17

\C
AD

\C
3D

\1
16

81
7C

60
9.

dw
g 

5/
16

/2
01

9 
9:

54
:4

6 
AM

DESIGNED

DRAWN

CHECKED

CLIENT PROJ. NO.

ISSUED FOR DATENO.

R

12224 NICOLLET AVENUE
BURNSVILLE, MINNESOTA  55337

Phone: (952) 890-0509
Email: Burnsville@bolton-menk.com

www.bolton-menk.comRICH REVERING
20711

CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET
2019 PAVEMENT REHABILITATION

JLW

JLW

RR

T17.116817

C6.03CIVIL
STREET PLAN - JEAN WAY, FRANCIS LANE, THERESA MARIE DRIVE

FEETSCALE

0 25 50
HORZ.

FEETSCALE

0 5 10
VERT.

DRAIN TILE & PATCH BY OTHERS

SPOT CURB REPAIR

PED RAMP REPLACEMENT
(ONE WAY DIRECTIONAL) C8.02

REMOVE 30 LF C&G
REMOVE 90 SF CONCRETE WALK

INSTALL 30 LF C&G
INSTALL 25 SF CONCRETE SIDEWALK
INSTALL 75 SF CONCRETE PED RAMP

PED RAMP REPLACEMENT
(ONE WAY DIRECTIONAL) C8.02

REMOVE 30 LF C&G
REMOVE 90 SF CONCRETE WALK

INSTALL 30 LF C&G
INSTALL 25 SF CONCRETE SIDEWALK
INSTALL 75 SF CONCRETE PED RAMP

ADJUST EXISTING GATE VALVE BOX
(TYP.)

ADJUST EXISTING GATE VALVE BOX
(TYP.)



5+00

6+00 7+00 8+00 9+00 9+77.05

32'

32'

S S

0+00
1+00

2+00

3+00

4+00 5+00

6+00

7+00

S

D

D

R

R

AA
RO

N
 D

RI
VE

STA 0+22 BEGIN
MILL & OVERLAY

422 SQ YD EDGE MILL
BITUMINOUS SURFACE

ADJUST EXISTING MANHOLE CASTING
(TYP.)

PROTECT EXISTING
CONCRETE CURB AND

GUTTER (TYP.) (INCIDENTAL)

DOROTHY LANE

PROTECT EXISTING
CONCRETE CURB AND

GUTTER (TYP.) (INCIDENTAL)

STA 9+70 END
MILL & OVERLAY

ADJUST EXISTING MANHOLE CASTING
(TYP.)

TA
M

M
Y 

DR
IV

E

DOROTHY LANE

DATELIC. NO.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN, SPECIFICATION, OR REPORT WAS PREPARED
BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A DULY LICENSED
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA.

SHEET

 B
ol

to
n 

&
 M

en
k,

 In
c.

 2
01

9,
 A

ll 
Ri

gh
ts

 R
es

er
ve

d
c H:

\E
LN

M
\T

17
11

68
17

\C
AD

\C
3D

\1
16

81
7C

60
8.

dw
g 

5/
16

/2
01

9 
9:

55
:0

3 
AM

DESIGNED

DRAWN

CHECKED

CLIENT PROJ. NO.

ISSUED FOR DATENO.

R

12224 NICOLLET AVENUE
BURNSVILLE, MINNESOTA  55337

Phone: (952) 890-0509
Email: Burnsville@bolton-menk.com

www.bolton-menk.comRICH REVERING
20711

CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET
2019 PAVEMENT REHABILITATION

JLW

JLW

RR

T17.116817

C6.04
STREET PLAN - DOROTHY LANE

FEETSCALE

0 25 50
HORZ.

SPOT CURB REPAIR

SPOT CURB REPAIR SPOT CURB REPAIR

PED RAMP REPLACEMENT
(ONE WAY DIRECTIONAL) C8.02

REMOVE 34 LF C&G
REMOVE 95 SF CONCRETE WALK

INSTALL 34 LF C&G
INSTALL 75 SF CONCRETE PED RAMP
INSTALL 25 SF CONCRETE SIDEWALK

PED RAMP REPLACEMENT
(ONE WAY DIRECTIONAL) C8.02

REMOVE 30 LF C&G
REMOVE 80 SF CONCRETE WALK

INSTALL 30 LF C&G
INSTALL 75 SF CONCRETE PED RAMP
INSTALL 25 SF CONCRETE SIDEWALK

ADJUST EXISTING GATE VALVE BOX
(TYP.)

ADJUST EXISTING GATE VALVE BOX
(TYP.)



8+00

9+00

10+00

11+00 12+00

13+00

14+00

15+00

16+00

36
'

S

S

S

S

S

S

0+00

1+00

2+00

3+00

4+00

5+00

6+00

7+00

8+00

S

S

S

S

R

R

DO
RO

TH
Y 

LA
NE

PROTECT EXISTING

CONCRETE CURB AND

GUTTER (TYP.) (IN
CIDENTAL)

STA 0+15 BEGIN
MILL & OVERLAY

ADJUST EXISTING MANHOLE CASTING
(TYP.)

JE
AN

 W
AY

SH
EL

LY
 LA

NE

FR
AN

CI
S 

LA
N

E

HO
LL

Y 
CO

UR
T

ADJUST EXISTING MANHOLE CASTING
(TYP.)

PROTECT EXISTING
CONCRETE CURB AND
GUTTER (TYP.) (INCIDENTAL)

36'

AARON DRIVE

AARON DRIVE

DATELIC. NO.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN, SPECIFICATION, OR REPORT WAS PREPARED
BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A DULY LICENSED
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA.

SHEET

 B
ol

to
n 

&
 M

en
k,

 In
c.

 2
01

9,
 A

ll 
Ri

gh
ts

 R
es

er
ve

d
c H:

\E
LN

M
\T

17
11

68
17

\C
AD

\C
3D

\1
16

81
7C

61
0.

dw
g 

5/
16

/2
01

9 
9:

55
:2

0 
AM

DESIGNED

DRAWN

CHECKED

CLIENT PROJ. NO.

ISSUED FOR DATENO.

R

12224 NICOLLET AVENUE
BURNSVILLE, MINNESOTA  55337

Phone: (952) 890-0509
Email: Burnsville@bolton-menk.com

www.bolton-menk.comRICH REVERING
20711

CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET
2019 PAVEMENT REHABILITATION

JLW

JLW

RR

T17.116817

C6.05
STREET PLAN - AARON DRIVE

FEETSCALE

0 25 50
HORZ.

SPOT CURB REPAIR
RE-SET EXISTING CATCH
BASIN CASTING (TYP.)

SPOT CURB REPAIR

SPOT CURB REPAIR
RE-SET EXISTING CATCH

BASIN CASTING (TYP.)

SPOT CURB REPAIR
RE-SET EXISTING CATCH

BASIN CASTING (TYP.)

SPOT CURB REPAIR
RE-SET EXISTING CATCH

BASIN CASTING (TYP.)

SPOT CURB REPAIR

SPOT CURB REPAIR

SPOT CURB REPAIR

SPOT CURB REPAIR
RE-SET EXISTING CATCH

BASIN CASTING (TYP.)

SPOT CURB REPAIR
RE-SET EXISTING CATCH
BASIN CASTING (TYP.)

ADJUST EXISTING GATE VALVE BOX
(TYP.)

ADJUST EXISTING GATE VALVE BOX
(TYP.)

REPLACE BROKEN WATER
VALVE BOX TOP SECTION



13+00

14+00

15+00
16+00 16+98.96

36
'

S

S

S

R

STA 16+35 END
MILL & OVERLAY

729 SQ YD EDGE MILL
BITUMINOUS SURFACE

ADJUST EXISTING MANHOLE CASTING
(TYP.)

HO
LL

Y 
CO

UR
T

PROTECT EXISTING
CONCRETE CURB AND
GUTTER (TYP.) (INCIDENTAL)

DO
RO

TH
Y 

LA
NE

N
AT

CH
EZ

 A
VE

N
U

E

AARON DRIVE

DATELIC. NO.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN, SPECIFICATION, OR REPORT WAS PREPARED
BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A DULY LICENSED
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA.

SHEET

 B
ol

to
n 

&
 M

en
k,

 In
c.

 2
01

9,
 A

ll 
Ri

gh
ts

 R
es

er
ve

d
c H:

\E
LN

M
\T

17
11

68
17

\C
AD

\C
3D

\1
16

81
7C

61
0.

dw
g 

5/
16

/2
01

9 
9:

55
:2

5 
AM

DESIGNED

DRAWN

CHECKED

CLIENT PROJ. NO.

ISSUED FOR DATENO.

R

12224 NICOLLET AVENUE
BURNSVILLE, MINNESOTA  55337

Phone: (952) 890-0509
Email: Burnsville@bolton-menk.com

www.bolton-menk.comRICH REVERING
20711

CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET
2019 PAVEMENT REHABILITATION

JLW

JLW

RR

T17.116817

C6.06CIVIL
STREET PLAN - AARON DRIVE

FEETSCALE

0 25 50
HORZ.

REPLACE BROKEN WATER
VALVE BOX TOP SECTION



23
'

21
' 22

'6+00 7+00 8+00 9+00 10+00 11+00 12+00 13+00 13+06.40

21
'

21'

0+00

1+00

2+00

3+00

4+00

5+
00

6+
00

R

R

DATELIC. NO.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN, SPECIFICATION, OR REPORT WAS PREPARED
BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A DULY LICENSED
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA.

SHEET

 B
ol

to
n 

&
 M

en
k,

 In
c.

 2
01

9,
 A

ll 
Ri

gh
ts

 R
es

er
ve

d
c H:

\E
LN

M
\T

17
11

68
17

\C
AD

\C
3D

\1
16

81
7C

60
4.

dw
g 

5/
16

/2
01

9 
9:

55
:4

1 
AM

DESIGNED

DRAWN

CHECKED

CLIENT PROJ. NO.

ISSUED FOR DATENO.

R

12224 NICOLLET AVENUE
BURNSVILLE, MINNESOTA  55337

Phone: (952) 890-0509
Email: Burnsville@bolton-menk.com

www.bolton-menk.comRICH REVERING
20711

CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET
2019 PAVEMENT REHABILITATION

JLW

JLW

RR

T17.116817

C6.07
STREET PLAN - MAIN & CHOWEN

FEETSCALE

0 25 50
HORZ.

26
5T

H 
ST

RE
ET

PROTECT EXISTING
CONCRETE CURB AND

GUTTER (TYP.) (INCIDENTAL)

DR
EW

 A
VE

N
U

E

POLICE STATION

FULL PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT

FULL PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT

STA 1+08 BEGIN
MILL & OVERLAY

STA 12+43 END
MILL & OVERLAY

272 SQ YD EDGE MILL
BITUMINOUS SURFACE

MAIN STREET

MAIN STREET

ADJUST EXISTING GATE VALVE BOX
(TYP.)



8+00

9+00
10+00

11+00

12+00

13+00

14+00

15+00
35

'

D

S

S

S

0+00

1+00

2+00

3+00

4+00

5+00

6+00 7+00

8+00

35'

S

S

S

R

DATELIC. NO.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN, SPECIFICATION, OR REPORT WAS PREPARED
BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A DULY LICENSED
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA.

SHEET

 B
ol

to
n 

&
 M

en
k,

 In
c.

 2
01

9,
 A

ll 
Ri

gh
ts

 R
es

er
ve

d
c H:

\E
LN

M
\T

17
11

68
17

\C
AD

\C
3D

\1
16

81
7C

60
2.

dw
g 

5/
16

/2
01

9 
9:

56
:2

8 
AM

DESIGNED

DRAWN

CHECKED

CLIENT PROJ. NO.

ISSUED FOR DATENO.

R

12224 NICOLLET AVENUE
BURNSVILLE, MINNESOTA  55337

Phone: (952) 890-0509
Email: Burnsville@bolton-menk.com

www.bolton-menk.comRICH REVERING
20711

CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET
2019 PAVEMENT REHABILITATION

JLW

JLW

RR

T17.116817

C6.08
STREET PLAN - GLENBOROUGH DRIVE

FEETSCALE

0 25 50
HORZ.

NA
TC

HE
Z 

AV
EN

UE

SPOT CURB REPAIR

W
ES

TO
N

 C
O

U
RT

ST
IR

LI
N

G 
CO

U
RT

CA
M

BR
ID

GE
 LA

NE

R

STA 0+72 BEGIN
MILL & OVERLAY

ADJUST EXISTING MANHOLE CASTING
(TYP.)

ADJUST EXISTING MANHOLE CASTING
(TYP.)

PROTECT EXISTING
CONCRETE CURB AND
GUTTER (TYP.) (INCIDENTAL)

GLENBOROUGH DRIVE

GLENBOROUGH DRIVE

SPOT CURB REPAIR
RE-SET EXISTING CATCH
BASIN CASTING (TYP.)

SPOT CURB REPAIR

SPOT CURB REPAIR

PROTECT EXISTING
CONCRETE CURB AND
GUTTER (TYP.) (INCIDENTAL)

ADJUST EXISTING GATE VALVE BOX
(TYP.)



24+00 25+00 26+00 27+00 28+00 29+00 30+00 31+00

35'

D
D

D

16+00

17+00

18+00

19+00

20+00
21+00

22+00

23+00

35
'

D

D

D

R

R

DATELIC. NO.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN, SPECIFICATION, OR REPORT WAS PREPARED
BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A DULY LICENSED
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA.

SHEET

 B
ol

to
n 

&
 M

en
k,

 In
c.

 2
01

9,
 A

ll 
Ri

gh
ts

 R
es

er
ve

d
c H:

\E
LN

M
\T

17
11

68
17

\C
AD

\C
3D

\1
16

81
7C

60
2.

dw
g 

5/
16

/2
01

9 
9:

56
:3

4 
AM

DESIGNED

DRAWN

CHECKED

CLIENT PROJ. NO.

ISSUED FOR DATENO.

R

12224 NICOLLET AVENUE
BURNSVILLE, MINNESOTA  55337

Phone: (952) 890-0509
Email: Burnsville@bolton-menk.com

www.bolton-menk.comRICH REVERING
20711

CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET
2019 PAVEMENT REHABILITATION

JLW

JLW

RR

T17.116817

C6.09
STREET PLAN - GLENBOROUGH DRIVE

FEETSCALE

0 25 50
HORZ.

PROTECT EXISTING
CONCRETE CURB AND
GUTTER (TYP.) (INCIDENTAL)

HI
CK

O
RY

 R
ID

GE
 D

RI
VE

PROTECT EXISTING
CONCRETE CURB AND
GUTTER (TYP.) (INCIDENTAL)

LO
N

E 
RI

DG
E 

DR
IV

E

ADJUST EXISTING MANHOLE CASTING
(TYP.)

ADJUST EXISTING MANHOLE CASTING
(TYP.)

BOULDER POINTE
GOLF CLUB

GLENBOROUGH DRIVE

GLENBOROUGH DRIVE

SPOT CURB REPAIR

SPOT CURB REPAIR
RE-SET EXISTING CATCH
BASIN CASTING (TYP.)

SPOT CURB REPAIR
RE-SET EXISTING CATCH

BASIN CASTING (TYP.)

SPOT CURB REPAIR
SPOT CURB REPAIR

ADJUST EXISTING GATE VALVE BOX
(TYP.)

ADJUST EXISTING GATE VALVE BOX
(TYP.)



28+00

29+00

30+00

31+00 32+00
32+35.13

35'

D

D

D

R

DATELIC. NO.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN, SPECIFICATION, OR REPORT WAS PREPARED
BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A DULY LICENSED
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA.

SHEET

 B
ol

to
n 

&
 M

en
k,

 In
c.

 2
01

9,
 A

ll 
Ri

gh
ts

 R
es

er
ve

d
c H:

\E
LN

M
\T

17
11

68
17

\C
AD

\C
3D

\1
16

81
7C

60
2.

dw
g 

5/
16

/2
01

9 
9:

56
:3

9 
AM

DESIGNED

DRAWN

CHECKED

CLIENT PROJ. NO.

ISSUED FOR DATENO.

R

12224 NICOLLET AVENUE
BURNSVILLE, MINNESOTA  55337

Phone: (952) 890-0509
Email: Burnsville@bolton-menk.com

www.bolton-menk.comRICH REVERING
20711

CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET
2019 PAVEMENT REHABILITATION

JLW

JLW

RR

T17.116817

FEETSCALE

0 25 50
HORZ.

GL
EN

M
O

O
R 

CO
U

RT

STA 32+32 END
MILL & OVERLAY

ADJUST EXISTING MANHOLE CASTING
(TYP.)

C6.10
STREET PLAN - GLENBOROUGH DRIVE

1375 SQ YD EDGE MILL
BITUMINOUS SURFACE

GLENBOROUGH DRIVE

ADJUST EXISTING GATE VALVE BOX
(TYP.)



7+00

8+00

9+00
10+00

11+00

12+00

12+69.55

0+00

1+00

2+00

3+00

4+00
5+00

6+00

7+00

8+00

8'

35'

R

R

DATELIC. NO.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN, SPECIFICATION, OR REPORT WAS PREPARED
BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A DULY LICENSED
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA.

SHEET

 B
ol

to
n 

&
 M

en
k,

 In
c.

 2
01

9,
 A

ll 
Ri

gh
ts

 R
es

er
ve

d
c H:

\E
LN

M
\T

17
11

68
17

\C
AD

\C
3D

\1
16

81
7C

61
1.

dw
g 

5/
16

/2
01

9 
9:

57
:0

1 
AM

DESIGNED

DRAWN

CHECKED

CLIENT PROJ. NO.

ISSUED FOR DATENO.

R

12224 NICOLLET AVENUE
BURNSVILLE, MINNESOTA  55337

Phone: (952) 890-0509
Email: Burnsville@bolton-menk.com

www.bolton-menk.comRICH REVERING
20711

CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET
2019 PAVEMENT REHABILITATION

JLW

JLW

RR

T17.116817

C6.11
STREET PLAN - GLENBOROUGH DRIVE

FEETSCALE

0 25 50
HORZ.

PROTECT EXISTING
CONCRETE CURB AND

GUTTER (TYP.) (INCIDENTAL)

XE
RX

ES
 A

VE
N

UE

CH
O

W
EN

 A
VE

N
U

E

MILL REPAIR AREA TO 1.5 INCHES
BELOW ADJACENT STREET

SURFACES - 50 SY MILLING (TYP.)

APPLY TACK COAT AND 1.5 INCHES
THIN OVERLAY TO REPAIR AREA FLUSH WITH

ADJACENT STREET SURFACES - 50 SY
SPWEA240C BITUMINOUS WEARING COURSE (TYP.)



7+00 8+00 9+00 10+00 11+00 12+00 13+00 14+0024'

0+00 1+00 2+00 3+00 4+00 5+00 6+00 7+00

R

R

DATELIC. NO.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN, SPECIFICATION, OR REPORT WAS PREPARED
BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A DULY LICENSED
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA.

SHEET

 B
ol

to
n 

&
 M

en
k,

 In
c.

 2
01

9,
 A

ll 
Ri

gh
ts

 R
es

er
ve

d
c H:

\E
LN

M
\T

17
11

68
17

\C
AD

\C
3D

\1
16

81
7C

61
2.

dw
g 

5/
16

/2
01

9 
9:

57
:2

8 
AM

DESIGNED

DRAWN

CHECKED

CLIENT PROJ. NO.

ISSUED FOR DATENO.

R

12224 NICOLLET AVENUE
BURNSVILLE, MINNESOTA  55337

Phone: (952) 890-0509
Email: Burnsville@bolton-menk.com

www.bolton-menk.comRICH REVERING
20711

CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET
2019 PAVEMENT REHABILITATION

JLW

JLW

RR

T17.116817

C6.12
STREET PLAN - XERXES

FEETSCALE

0 25 50
HORZ.

STA 0+58 BEGIN
MILL & OVERLAY

XERXES AVENUE

XERXES AVENUE

W
IN

DR
O

SE
 C

U
RV

E

PT
AR

M
IG

AN
 D

RI
VE

REPLACE BROKEN WATER
VALVE BOX TOP SECTION



19+00 20+00 21+00 22+00 23+00 23+77.27

15+00 16+00 17+00 18+00 19+00 20+00 21+00 22+00

R

R

DATELIC. NO.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN, SPECIFICATION, OR REPORT WAS PREPARED
BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A DULY LICENSED
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA.

SHEET

 B
ol

to
n 

&
 M

en
k,

 In
c.

 2
01

9,
 A

ll 
Ri

gh
ts

 R
es

er
ve

d
c H:

\E
LN

M
\T

17
11

68
17

\C
AD

\C
3D

\1
16

81
7C

61
2.

dw
g 

5/
16

/2
01

9 
9:

57
:3

3 
AM

DESIGNED

DRAWN

CHECKED

CLIENT PROJ. NO.

ISSUED FOR DATENO.

R

12224 NICOLLET AVENUE
BURNSVILLE, MINNESOTA  55337

Phone: (952) 890-0509
Email: Burnsville@bolton-menk.com

www.bolton-menk.comRICH REVERING
20711

CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET
2019 PAVEMENT REHABILITATION

JLW

JLW

RR

T17.116817

C6.13
STREET PLAN - XERXES

FEETSCALE

0 25 50
HORZ.

STA 23+56 END
MILL & OVERLAY

724 SQ YD EDGE MILL
BITUMINOUS SURFACE

XERXES AVENUE

XERXES AVENUE



V-CURB

V-CURB/STEPS

LANDING

DEPRESSED CORNER

UNWALKABLE SURFACE

DATELIC. NO.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN, SPECIFICATION, OR REPORT WAS PREPARED
BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A DULY LICENSED
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA.

SHEET

 B
ol

to
n 

&
 M

en
k,

 In
c.

 2
01

9,
 A

ll 
Ri

gh
ts

 R
es

er
ve

d
c H:

\E
LN

M
\T

17
11

68
17

\C
AD

\C
3D

\M
IS

C_
11

68
17

_C
HU

RC
HP

ED
RA

M
P.

dw
g 

5/
16

/2
01

9 
9:

57
:4

5 
AM

DESIGNED

DRAWN

CHECKED

CLIENT PROJ. NO.

ISSUED FOR DATENO.

R

12224 NICOLLET AVENUE
BURNSVILLE, MINNESOTA  55337

Phone: (952) 890-0509
Email: Burnsville@bolton-menk.com

www.bolton-menk.comRICH REVERING
20711

CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET
2019 PAVEMENT REHABILITATION

JLW

JLW

RR

T17.116817

PED RAMP REPLACEMENT
(DEPRESSED CORNER) C8.01

REMOVE 40 LF C&G
REMOVE 261 SF CONCRETE WALK

INSTALL 58 LF C&G
INSTALL 210 SF CONCRETE PED RAMP

INSTALL 60 SF CONCRETE SIDEWALK
44 SF TRUNCATED DOMES

COUNTY ROAD 2

CH
U

RC
H 

ST
RE

ET

C6.14
CHURCH STREET - CR 2 PED RAMP REPLACEMENT

FEETSCALE

0 25 50
HORZ.



DATELIC. NO.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN, SPECIFICATION, OR REPORT WAS PREPARED
BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A DULY LICENSED
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA.

SHEET

 B
ol

to
n 

&
 M

en
k,

 In
c.

 2
01

9,
 A

ll 
Ri

gh
ts

 R
es

er
ve

d
c H:

\E
LN

M
\T

17
11

68
17

\C
AD

\C
3D

\1
16

81
7C

80
1.

dw
g 

5/
16

/2
01

9 
9:

57
:5

6 
AM

DESIGNED

DRAWN

CHECKED

CLIENT PROJ. NO.

ISSUED FOR DATENO.

R

12224 NICOLLET AVENUE
BURNSVILLE, MINNESOTA  55337

Phone: (952) 890-0509
Email: Burnsville@bolton-menk.com

www.bolton-menk.comRICH REVERING
20711

CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET
2019 PAVEMENT REHABILITATION

JLW

JLW

RR

T17.116817

C8.01
STANDARD DETAIL



DATELIC. NO.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN, SPECIFICATION, OR REPORT WAS PREPARED
BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A DULY LICENSED
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA.

SHEET

 B
ol

to
n 

&
 M

en
k,

 In
c.

 2
01

9,
 A

ll 
Ri

gh
ts

 R
es

er
ve

d
c H:

\E
LN

M
\T

17
11

68
17

\C
AD

\C
3D

\1
16

81
7C

80
1.

dw
g 

5/
16

/2
01

9 
9:

58
:0

1 
AM

DESIGNED

DRAWN

CHECKED

CLIENT PROJ. NO.

ISSUED FOR DATENO.

R

12224 NICOLLET AVENUE
BURNSVILLE, MINNESOTA  55337

Phone: (952) 890-0509
Email: Burnsville@bolton-menk.com

www.bolton-menk.comRICH REVERING
20711

CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET
2019 PAVEMENT REHABILITATION

JLW

JLW

RR

T17.116817

C8.02
STANDARD DETAIL



DATELIC. NO.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN, SPECIFICATION, OR REPORT WAS PREPARED
BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A DULY LICENSED
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA.

SHEET

 B
ol

to
n 

&
 M

en
k,

 In
c.

 2
01

9,
 A

ll 
Ri

gh
ts

 R
es

er
ve

d
c H:

\E
LN

M
\T

17
11

68
17

\C
AD

\C
3D

\1
16

81
7C

80
1.

dw
g 

5/
16

/2
01

9 
9:

58
:0

6 
AM

DESIGNED

DRAWN

CHECKED

CLIENT PROJ. NO.

ISSUED FOR DATENO.

R

12224 NICOLLET AVENUE
BURNSVILLE, MINNESOTA  55337

Phone: (952) 890-0509
Email: Burnsville@bolton-menk.com

www.bolton-menk.comRICH REVERING
20711

CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET
2019 PAVEMENT REHABILITATION

JLW

JLW

RR

T17.116817

C8.03
STANDARD DETAIL



DATELIC. NO.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN, SPECIFICATION, OR REPORT WAS PREPARED
BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A DULY LICENSED
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA.

SHEET

 B
ol

to
n 

&
 M

en
k,

 In
c.

 2
01

9,
 A

ll 
Ri

gh
ts

 R
es

er
ve

d
c H:

\E
LN

M
\T

17
11

68
17

\C
AD

\C
3D

\1
16

81
7C

80
1.

dw
g 

5/
16

/2
01

9 
9:

58
:1

1 
AM

DESIGNED

DRAWN

CHECKED

CLIENT PROJ. NO.

ISSUED FOR DATENO.

R

12224 NICOLLET AVENUE
BURNSVILLE, MINNESOTA  55337

Phone: (952) 890-0509
Email: Burnsville@bolton-menk.com

www.bolton-menk.comRICH REVERING
20711

CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET
2019 PAVEMENT REHABILITATION

JLW

JLW

RR

T17.116817

C8.04
STANDARD DETAIL



DATELIC. NO.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN, SPECIFICATION, OR REPORT WAS PREPARED
BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A DULY LICENSED
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA.

SHEET

 B
ol

to
n 

&
 M

en
k,

 In
c.

 2
01

9,
 A

ll 
Ri

gh
ts

 R
es

er
ve

d
c H:

\E
LN

M
\T

17
11

68
17

\C
AD

\C
3D

\1
16

81
7C

80
1.

dw
g 

5/
16

/2
01

9 
9:

58
:1

6 
AM

DESIGNED

DRAWN

CHECKED

CLIENT PROJ. NO.

ISSUED FOR DATENO.

R

12224 NICOLLET AVENUE
BURNSVILLE, MINNESOTA  55337

Phone: (952) 890-0509
Email: Burnsville@bolton-menk.com

www.bolton-menk.comRICH REVERING
20711

CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET
2019 PAVEMENT REHABILITATION

JLW

JLW

RR

T17.116817

C8.05
STANDARD DETAIL



DATELIC. NO.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN, SPECIFICATION, OR REPORT WAS PREPARED
BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A DULY LICENSED
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA.

SHEET

 B
ol

to
n 

&
 M

en
k,

 In
c.

 2
01

9,
 A

ll 
Ri

gh
ts

 R
es

er
ve

d
c H:

\E
LN

M
\T

17
11

68
17

\C
AD

\C
3D

\1
16

81
7C

80
1.

dw
g 

5/
16

/2
01

9 
9:

58
:2

1 
AM

DESIGNED

DRAWN

CHECKED

CLIENT PROJ. NO.

ISSUED FOR DATENO.

R

12224 NICOLLET AVENUE
BURNSVILLE, MINNESOTA  55337

Phone: (952) 890-0509
Email: Burnsville@bolton-menk.com

www.bolton-menk.comRICH REVERING
20711

CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET
2019 PAVEMENT REHABILITATION

JLW

JLW

RR

T17.116817

C8.06
STANDARD DETAIL



CATCH BASIN CASTING RE-SET
NOT TO SCALE

NEW CONCRETE ADJUSTING
RINGS WITH NON-SHRINK
MORTAR 1/2" THICK INSIDE
AND OUT PARGE COAT.
(INCIDENTAL TO RE-SET)

EXISTING CASTING

8'
 M

IN
 C

O
VE

R

GROUND LINE

GATE VALVE ADAPTOR

CONCRETE BLOCK

THREE PIECE VALVE BOX WITH
OPERATION NUT EXTENSION
(TO 6" BELOW GROUND LINE)

EXTENSION ROD
STABILIZATION DISK

GATE   VALVE   &   BOX
CITY   OF   ELKO   NEW   MARKET

NOT TO SCALE
MH ADJUSTMENT DETAIL

NOT TO SCALE

1. SALVAGE & REUSE (INCIDENTAL)
     MH FRAME AND COVER.

2. ADJUSTING RINGS METHOD - NEW RINGS TO EXTEND TO EDGE OF
MH SHOULDER TO PROVIDE LOAD TRANSFER AS REQUIRED TO
MAINTAIN MH LOAD RATING, BUT SHALL NOT EXTEND MORE
THAN 6-INCHES BEYOND SHOULDER. (INCIDENTAL)

3. CASTING RING METHOD

1>>RAISE WITH RINGS
TO ACHIEVE DESIGN GRADE

2

>>

>>

>>

EXCAVATE AND SALVAGE CASTING AND REMOVE RINGS.
MECHANICAL TAMP BACKFILL UNDER FOUR INCHES TOPSOIL.
PATCH WITH NEW SOD. (ALL INCIDENTAL TO CATCH BASIN RE-SET)

 3
/4

 IN
CH

 N
EW

 A
SP

HA
LT

FOR "ADJUST GATE VALVE BOX" EXCAVATE AND UNSCREW TOP
SECTION TO 34 INCHES BELOW NEW PAVEMENT GARDE. TAMP
BACKFILL WITH AGGREGATE BASE AT SURFACE

FOR "REPAIR GATE VALVE BOX" EXCAVATE AND REPLACE TOP
SECTION AND ADJUST PER ABOVE.
(INCIDENTAL TO REPAIR ITEM)

TOP SECTION

GATE   VALVE   &   BOX
ADJUST OR REPAIR

3

BITUMINOUS WEAR
BITUMINOUS BASE
AGGREGATE BASE 1.5"

12' FOR MAINLINE STREETS
6' FOR SIDE STREETS

(1)

(1) MILLED EDGE TO BE STRAIGHT FROM CURB TO
CENTERLINE & AT 5° OR MORE FROM PERPENDICULAR
TO CURB

PAVEMENT JOINT DETAIL

℄

≥ 5°

≥ 5°

MILLED
EDGE

TOPSOIL C&G

C&G

DATELIC. NO.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN, SPECIFICATION, OR REPORT WAS PREPARED
BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A DULY LICENSED
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA.

SHEET

 B
ol

to
n 

&
 M

en
k,

 In
c.

 2
01

9,
 A

ll 
Ri

gh
ts

 R
es

er
ve

d
c H:

\E
LN

M
\T

17
11

68
17

\C
AD

\C
3D

\1
16

81
7C

80
2.

dw
g 

5/
16

/2
01

9 
9:

58
:3

1 
AM

DESIGNED

DRAWN

CHECKED

CLIENT PROJ. NO.

ISSUED FOR DATENO.

R

12224 NICOLLET AVENUE
BURNSVILLE, MINNESOTA  55337

Phone: (952) 890-0509
Email: Burnsville@bolton-menk.com

www.bolton-menk.comRICH REVERING
20711

CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET
2019 PAVEMENT REHABILITATION

JLW

JLW

RR

T17.116817

C8.07
DETAILS

SURMOUNTABLE CURB & GUTTER TO BE
FORMED INTO A B618 TYPE AT CATCH BASIN
CASTING

10' MIN TRANSITION10' MIN TRANSITION

2"
 S

U
M

P

A

A

NEENAH R-3067 FRAME & COVER
OR EQUAL, WITH TYPE V GRATE

2 - #4 REBAR
EXPANSION
JOINT

DESIGN GUTTER
LINE GRADE

SURMOUNTABLE
CONCRETE CURB &
GUTTER

2" DEPRESSION

FLOW

CATCH BASIN FRAME
& COVER AS
SPECIFIED

4"

SURMOUNTABLE
CONCRETE CURB
& GUTTER

SECTION A-A

PERSPECTIVE

TRANSITION   TO   B618   CURB   AT   CATCH   BASIN
CITY   OF   ELKO   NEW   MARKET

NOT TO SCALE



Date:11/26/2018

MOBILIZATION LUMP SUM - - - - - LUMP SUM LUMP SUM $14,884.69 $4,138.87 $1,525.80 $853.10 $200.00 $21,602.46

TRAFFIC CONTROL      LUMP SUM - - - - - LUMP SUM LUMP SUM $5,953.88 $1,655.55 $610.32 $341.24 $80.00 $8,640.98

REMOVE CURB AND GUTTER 665 367 40 258 LF $7.00 $2,569.00 $280.00 $1,806.00 $4,655.00

REMOVE BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT 1430 30 1400 SQ YD $8.50 $255.00 $11,900.00 $12,155.00

REMOVE CONCRETE PEDESTRIAN RAMPS AND SIDEWALK 756 495 261 SF $1.40 $693.00 $365.40 $1,058.40

EDGE-MILL BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT (0 to 1.50-inch depth) 18424 13844 4580 SQ YD $1.60 $22,150.40 $7,328.00 $29,478.40

SUBGRADE PREPARATION 1400 1400 SQ YD $2.00 $2,800.00 $2,800.00

1.5-IN BITUMINOUS WEARING COURSE OVERLAY (SPWEA240C) 3581 2846 735 TON $75.00 $213,450.00 $55,125.00 $268,575.00

2-IN BITUMINOUS STREET PATCH (SPWEA240C) 154 154 TON $75.00 $11,550.00 $11,550.00

CLASS 5 AGGREGATE BASE 74 74 TON $24.00 $1,776.00 $1,776.00

CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER DES. B618 625 367 258 LF $32.00 $11,744.00 $8,256.00 $20,000.00

4-INCH CONCRETE WALK 210 150 60 SF $8.75 $1,312.50 $525.00 $1,837.50

6-INCH CONCRETE PEDESTRIAN RAMPS 796 586 210 SF $12.15 $7,119.90 $2,551.50 $9,671.40

TRUNCATED DOMES 134 90 44 SF $50.00 $4,500.00 $2,200.00 $6,700.00

REPLACE BROKEN GATE VALVE BOX TOP SECTION 8 8 $500.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00

ADJUST GATE VALVE BOX 31 30 1 EACH $250.00 $7,500.00 $250.00 $7,750.00

ADJUST MANHOLE CASTINGS 44 44 EACH $600.00 $26,400.00 $26,400.00

REMOVE AND RE-SET RINGS AND CASTING AT CATCH BASINS 7 7 EACH $1,000.00 $7,000.00 $7,000.00

4" DOUBLE YELLOW STRIPING 3435 3435 LIN FT $1.50 $5,152.50 $5,152.50

4" WHITE STRIPING 7660 6000 1660 LIN FT $1.50 $9,000.00 $2,490.00 $11,490.00

Subtotals: $318,532.37 $88,571.82 $32,652.12 $18,256.34 $4,280.00 $462,292.64

Contingency $15,926.62 $4,428.59 $1,632.61 $912.82 $214.00 $23,114.63

Est. Construction Total $334,458.98 $93,000.41 $34,284.73 $19,169.16 $4,494.00 $485,407.27

Est. Overhead $83,614.75 $23,250.10 $8,571.18 $4,792.29 $1,123.50 $121,351.82

Total Est. Project Cost $418,073.73 $116,250.51 $42,855.91 $23,961.45 $5,617.50 $606,759.09

Assessable Amt $167,229.49 $9,550.75

Units 134.80 39.00

Assmt Rate $1,240.57 $244.89

Gen Fund $577,180.15

Assessed Amount $204,446.74 $9,550.75 Net Gen Fund $363,182.67

Major Cost Parking Cost Storm Fund Cost
Water Fund 

Cost

 Project Cost Estimate

2019 Pavement Rehabilitation Feasibility Study

Elko New Market, Minnesota  

Local/Minor Cost Total AmountItem
Estimated 

Quantity
Unit Unit Price

Local/Mino

r Quantity

Major 

Quantity

Storm Fund 

Quantity

Water Fund 

Quantity

Perp. 

Parking

5/15/2019, 3:28 PM

Engineer's Estimate

Bolton & Menk, Inc. Page 1 of 1



 STAFF MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: CSAH 2 & 91 Roundabout  
MEETING DATE: May 22, 2019 
PREPARED BY: Renee Christianson, Community Development Specialist 
REQUESTED ACTION: Accept Preliminary Design for CSAH 2 & 91 Roundabout and 

Provide Direction on Project Add-On Items 
 
COMMUNITY VISION: 

 A mature growing freestanding suburb of the Twin Cities Metropolitan Area, preserving 
historic landmarks and small town character while providing suburban amenities and 
services, as well as full range of employment, housing, business, service, social, 
technology infrastructure and recreational opportunities for citizens and visitors 

 Promote a diverse commercial base including light industrial and facilitating planned 
redevelopment which will be aesthetically pleasing with architectural standards that 
promotes quality development 

 Provide a full range of municipal services to its residents. The City will allocate sufficient 
resources to meet the growing needs of the community 

 A comprehensive park and trails system that will have sufficient facilities, play fields and 
open space to meet the needs of residents 

 An effective and efficient transportation system, including access to the greater 
metropolitan area, transit opportunities, and improved connectivity to the interstate 

 Provide community oriented local government and be financially sound, engaging in 
long-term financial planning to provide municipal services without undue burden on tax 
payers 

5 YEAR GOALS: 
 Diverse tax base, employment opportunities, additional businesses and services, 

promote high quality broad spectrum of residential development 
 Advance “shovel ready” status of areas guided for commercial and industrial 

development 
 Acquisition of land for public purposes, position City to take advantage of land 

acquisition opportunities  
 Enhance quality of life through parks, trails, recreational programming and cultural 

events 
 The development of residential lots and an increase in residential building permit activity 

COMMUNITY ORIENTED LOCAL GOVERNMENT: 
 Community Involvement 
 Organizational Improvement 
 Problem Solving 
 Performance Measurement 
 Professionalism 

  



BACKGROUND 
Community concerns about safety at the intersection of CSAH 2 & 91 led to the County, on the 
City’s behalf, applying for improvement funding under the federal Highway Safety Improvement 
Program (HSIP) in 2016.  The application was successful, awarding federal funding for up to 
90% of eligible project costs in federal program year 2020, totaling up to $1.9 million.  There 
was an understanding with Scott County at the time of the application that the City would be 
the lead agency in planning for and funding the roundabout improvement project.  The 
County’s primary involvement was the preparation of the grant application.   
 
Following the successful outcome of the HSIP application, the City continued planning for the 
roundabout project and entered into contracts with Bolton and Menk to complete the following 
items: 
 
Concept Design Engineering – In October, 2017 the Council authorized the concept design 
stage of the project.  The purpose of this phase of the project was to: 
 

• Identify a preferred concept layout.  
• Develop updated cost estimates 
• Identify right-of-way and environmental impacts of the project 
• Coordinate public involvement and feedback regarding additional design elements to be 

incorporated into the project, such as monuments, landscaping, trails, lighting, etc.  
 

Preliminary Design Engineering – In June, 2018 the Council authorized the preliminary design 
stage of the project.  The purpose of this phase of the project was to: 
 

• Develop a geometric layout to move the project to a 30% design level 
• Make final decision on add-ons such as trails, lighting, landscaping 
• Detailed identification of right-of-way needs 
• Provide updated cost estimate based on geometric layout 
• Coordinate peer review report 
• Obtain County approval of final geometric design layout 

     
REQUESTED COUNCIL ACTION: 
Bolton and Menk has successfully completed the Preliminary Design Phase of the project, and 
the City Council is being asked to approve the Preliminary Design and Geometric Layout at 
this time.  As part of this requested action, the City Council is specifically being asked to make 
a decision regarding the “add-on” portions of the project.  Through public engagement in both 
the Concept and Preliminary Design phases, the public identified trails and lighting as 
preferred add-on items.   
 
It is important for the City Council to understand the cost implications of the base roundabout 
project, and the add-on items (trails and lighting).  Scott County has agreed to contribute a 
lump sum payment of $178,000 towards the cost of the trails, which leaves an estimated 
$238,740 in City costs.  The lighting estimates have been broken down into two sections; the 
corridor between the roundabout and the downtown area, and the downtown area (as depicted 
on the attached drawing). The current cost estimates and projected tax impacts are as follows: 
 
 



    Cost Estimate 

Estimated Tax Impact 
Typical Home $280,000 

Value           
15 Years @ 5% 

  

  
  

Base Roundabout Project    $1,980,000    

  Estimated Federal Funding $1,782,000    

  Estimated City Portion of Construction Costs $198,000    

  Concept Design Costs $48,246    

  Preliminary Engineering Design Costs $55,890    

  Final Engineering Design Costs $190,990    

  Contract Administration to Scott County (3% of 
total) $84,310    

  SUBTOTAL OF ESTIMATED CITY COSTS $577,436  $34 per year 

  

  
  

Multi-Purpose Trails (including right-of-
way)   $416,740    

  County Portion of Trails $178,000    

  City Portion only $238,740  $14.06 per year 

  

  
  

Decorative Street Lighting   $413,600    

  Continuous Acorn Lighting (200’ spacing) $255,200  $15.03 per year 

  Downtown Acorn Lighting $158,400  $9.33 per year 

  

  
  

TOTAL ESTIMATED CITY PROJECT COSTS   $1,229,776  $72.40 (6.6% tax impact) 

 
 
 

 
Trails Under Consideration Are Depicted in Red 



 
Lighting Under Consideration Shown in Yellow and Orange 

 
 
Attachments: 
CSAH 2 and CSAH 91 Roundabout Preliminary Design and Geometric Layout  



PROPOSED C.S.A.H. 91 - TYPICAL SECTION

0.020.04 0.02

PROPOSED C.S.A.H. 91 - TYPICAL SECTION

0.04

PROPOSED C.S.A.H. 91 - TYPICAL SECTION

0.04
0.02

PROPOSED C.S.A.H. 91 - TYPICAL SECTION

0.04 0.04
0.04

PROPOSED C.S.A.H. 91 - TYPICAL SECTION

0.04
0.04

0.02
0.04

PROPOSED C.S.A.H. 2 - TYPICAL SECTION

0.04 0.040.020.04

PROPOSED C.S.A.H. 2 - TYPICAL SECTION

0.02

PROPOSED C.S.A.H. 2 - TYPICAL SECTION

0.020.020.02
0.040.04

0.040.020.02 0.02

0.02 0.04

PROPOSED C.S.A.H. 2 - TYPICAL SECTION

0.04

0.04 0.02

PROPOSED C.S.A.H. 91 - TYPICAL SECTION

0.04 0.040.04

PROPOSED C.S.A.H. 91 - TYPICAL SECTION

0.04 0.020.02 0.02
0.04

0.02
0.02

0.02

1:10 TYP

0.04

CIRCULATORY LANE

0-16' 

CIRCULATORY LANE

16'-22' 46'

0.02

{ C.S.A.H. 2

EXISTING C.S.A.H. 2 - TYPICAL SECTION

0.020.02

{ C.S.A.H. 2

0.02

{ C.S.A.H. 2

STA. 6+00 - 12+00

EXISTING C.S.A.H. 2 - TYPICAL SECTION

0.020.020.02

{ C.S.A.H. 2

0.02 0.04 0.040.040.02

EXISTING C.S.A.H. 91 - TYPICAL SECTION

0.040.020.04 0.02

{ C.S.A.H. 91

EXISTING C.S.A.H. 91 - TYPICAL SECTION

0.020.020.02 0.02

STA. 9+00 - 24+14

{ C.S.A.H. 91

ROUNDABOUT TYPICAL

PROPOSED C.S.A.H. 91 AND C.S.A.H. 2 

0.02

0.02

0.02

0.02

0.02

0.02

0.02
0.015

0.02

0.015

0.015

0.04 0.015

0.015

0.015

0.015

0.0150.015

0.015

0.04
0.04

0.04

0.040.02 0.02
0.04

0.04 0.04

STA. 0+00 - 9+00

STA. 0+00 - 6+00

0.02

0.015

0.015

{ C.S.A.H. 91 SB

{ C.S.A.H. 91 SB

{ C.S.A.H. 91 SB

{ C.S.A.H. 91 SB

{ C.S.A.H. 91 NB{ C.S.A.H. 91 SB

BLVD

 5'-25'

{ C.S.A.H. 91 SB

{ C.S.A.H. 91 NB

{ C.S.A.H. 91 NB

{ C.S.A.H. 91 NB

{ C.S.A.H. 91 NB

{ C.S.A.H. 91 NB

{ C.S.A.H. 91 NB

C.S.A.H. 91 NB -  STA. 5+26 - 6+31

C.S.A.H. 91 NB -  STA. 6+31 - 9+34

C.S.A.H. 91 NB -  STA. 9+34 - 12+54

C.S.A.H. 91 NB -  STA. 12+54 - 14+14

C.S.A.H. 91 NB -  STA. 14+14 - 14+89

C.S.A.H. 91 NB -  STA. 16+63 - 18+19

C.S.A.H. 91 NB -  STA. 18+19 - 20+71

C.S.A.H. 2 EB -  STA. 0+00 - 3+97

C.S.A.H. 2 EB -  STA. 3+97 - 4+85

C.S.A.H. 2 EB -  STA. 6+61 - 7+56

C.S.A.H. 2 EB -  STA. 7+56 - 9+54

{ C.S.A.H. 2 EB

{ C.S.A.H. 2 EB

{ C.S.A.H. 2 WB { C.S.A.H. 2 EB

{ C.S.A.H. 2 WB

{ C.S.A.H. 2 WB

SIDEWALK

 8'-10'

L

APRON

 11.5'

4.5' MAX.

A

THRU LANE

12'

THRU LANE

12'

SHLD

6'

BIKE LANE

10'

MEDIAN (CONC)

4'-10'

THRU LANE

14'

SHLD

6'

THRU LANE

14'

BIKE LANE

10'

SHLD

6'

BIKE LANE

10'

THRU LANE

14'

SHLD

6'

THRU LANE

14'

SHLD

6'

BIKE LANE

10'

MEDIAN 

8'-20'

THRU LANE

14'

THRU LANE

14'

SHLD

0-6'

GRASS

0-7'

SHLD

0-6'

SHLD

0-6'

THRU LANE

0-20'

(CONC)

MEDIAN 

0-10'

(CONC)

MEDIAN/SIDEWALK 

4'-30'

MEDIAN 

9'-35'

THRU LANE

14'

SHLD

0-6'

GRASS

0-7'

SHLD

0-8'

THRU LANE

14'

THRU LANE

14'

THRU LANE

14'

MEDIAN 

9'-40'

THRU LANE

14'

THRU LANE

14'MEDIAN

PAINTED

0-4'

THRU LANE

20'

THRU LANE

20'

THRU LANE

14'

THRU LANE

14'

THRU LANE

18'

SHLD

0-6'

MEDIAN (CONC)

8'-15'

GRASS

0-15'

BIKE LANE

0-10'

SHLD

0-6'

SHLD

0-6'

MEDIAN (CONC)

4'-15'

SHLD

6'

SHLD

6'

THRU LANE

14'

THRU LANE

14'

THRU LANE

12'

LEFT TURN LANE

0-14'

THRU LANE

12'

RIGHT TURN LANE

0-12'

THRU LANE

12'

THRU LANE

0-12'

THRU LANE

12'

THRU LANE

12'

LEFT TURN LANE

0-13'

THRU LANE

12'

RIGHT TURN LANE

0-12'

THRU LANE

0-12'

SHLD

13'

GRASS

8'

SIDEWALK

5'

GRASS

8'

BIKE LANE

10'

THRU LANE

13'

THRU LANE

13'

SHLD

14'

SHLD

12'

LEFT TURN LANE

0-13'

THRU LANE

12'

LEFT TURN LANE

0-12'

THRU LANE

12'

RIGHT TURN LANE

0-12'

RIGHT TURN LANE

0-13'

BIKE LANE

10'

2'2'

2' 2'
2' 2'

2' 2'
2' 2'

2'

2'

BLVD

 0-15'

TRAIL

 0-10'

2'

TRAIL

 10'

2'2'

2'

2' 2'

2'2'
2' 2'

BLVD

 0-15'

TRAIL

 0-10'

2' 2'

S424 C&G
S424 C&G

S424 C&G S424 C&G

S424 C&G S424 C&G

S424 C&G S424 C&G
S424 C&G

S424 C&G

S424 C&G

S424 C&G

S424 C&G

S424 C&G
S424 C&G S424 C&G S424 C&G

S424 C&GS424 C&G

S424 C&G
S424 C&G

S424 C&G
S424 C&G S424 C&G

S424 C&G

S424 C&G S424 C&G S424 C&G B412 C&G
B412 C&G

S424 C&G
S424 C&G S424 C&G S424 C&G

S424 C&G

B412 C&G
B412 C&G

S424 C&GR424 C&G
S424 C&G

BLVD

 0-30'

BLVD

 5'

BLVD

 15'-38'

BLVD

 15'-38'

BLVD

 5'

TRAIL

 10'

2'2'

2' 2'

2' 2'
MEDIAN

8'

TRAIL

 10'

TRAIL

10'

2' 2'

THRU LANE

16'-22'

SIDEWALK/MEDIAN 

25'-40'

THRU LANE

14'-20'

THRU LANE

14'-20'

THRU LANE

14'-20'

THRU LANE

14'-18'

GRASS

16'-24'

GRASS

16'-24'

MEDIAN 

10'-20'

GRASS

16'-24'

GRASS

25'-29'

SHLD

2'-6'

GRASS

28'-36'

BLVD 

 8'-28'

BLVD 

 8'-28'

2'

2'

2'2'

2' 2'

2'2'

1
0

1
5

2
0

5

1
0

1
5

0
5

10

0

5

10

0

5
0

44°35'

40'

T
 
1
1
3
 

N

T
 
1
1
4
 

N

R 21 W

St. 
Catherine
Lake

2

23

56

85

Porter

23
85

13

8

64

64

64

WILDLIFE

WILDLIFE
AREA

AREA

WILDLIFE

AREA

Saint Patrick
EST. POP. 30

Cedar
EST. POP. 70

Lake

Cedar
Lake

19
2.8

19

C E D A R

L A K E

62

87

Lennon
Lake

87

27

3

T
o
 

W
e
b
s
te
r

91

35

35

35

F
.A
.I
.

46

46

86

To Castle Rock

T
o
 
J
c
t.
 T
. H
. 1
9

Eidswold
EST. POP. 40

2

ELKO
POP. 472

2

9

T
o
 
L
a
k
e
v
il
le2

To Eureka Center

80R.

6
.0

Vermillion

91
2

NEW

POP. 332

MARKET

27

N E W

M A R K E T

62
62 62

46

F
.A
.I
.

Rice
Lake

91

91

Sweetbrier
Lake

95 46

74A

5

35

To Farmington

T
o
 

M
in

n
e
a
p
o
li
s

F
.A
.I
.

81Cynthia
Lake 23 87

84
McMahon

Lake

Lydia

81

10
10

23

87

23

81

Buck
Lake

1.9

SpringLake

13 Rice
Lake

81

L.
Kane

87

CLEARY

LAKE

REGIONAL
PARK

87

P R I N G

L A K E

8

2

91

8

84
68

To Jct. I-35

To Fa
rming

ton

64

70

LAKEVILLE68

27

Credit River
EST. POP. 20

91
75

21
21

Cleary
Lake

Keatings
EST. POP. 30

C R E D I T

R I V E R

275TH E.

Z
A

N
E
 

A
V

E
.

I
R

V
I
N

G
 

A
V

E
.

280TH E.

270TH ST. E.

J
O

N
Q

U
I
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
V

E
.

D
A

K
O

T
A

A
V

E
.

250TH ST. E.

P
E

N
N

A
V

E
.

N
E

W
P

O
R

T

P
A

N
A

M
A

A
V

E
.

A
V

E
.

A
V

E
.

A
V

E
.

A
V

E
.

T
E

X
A

S

F
A
I
R

L
A

W
N

V
E

R
G

U
S

B
A

L
S

A
A

V
E
.

ST.  E.

ST.

ST.

230TH ST. E.

260TH ST. E.

TR.

V
A

L
E

E
N

E
D

V
A

L
L

E
Y

F
O

R
G

E
R

D
.

Z
I
N

N
A

V
E
.

217TH ST. E.

220TH ST. E.

60

EST. POP. 50

E.200TH ST.

190TH ST. E.

D
A

K
O

T
A

C
O
.

D
A

K

Fish
Lake

180TH ST.  E.

68

86

86

W
P

912

86 86

86

56

WB-62
AASHTO 2011 (US)

(c) 2018 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

W
B
-

6
2

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
1
 
(U

S
)

(c
) 

2
0
19
 

T
ra

n
so

ft 
S
o
lu
tio

n
s, 

In
c
. 

A
ll 

rig
h
ts 

re
se

rve
d
.

18°

18°

19°

26.5°

COUNTY

SCOTT

91

COUNTY

SCOTT

2

FEETSCALE

0 25 50

FEETSCALE

0 25 50

CONST INC.

JOHN MOHONEY

BONNIE RUNKE

W
A

Y
 

J
 R

O
B

E
R

T
S

CO INC

ON-SITE MARKETING 

M
A

R
IE
 D

R

T
H

E
R

E
S

A
 

TAMMY DR

D
O

R
O

T
H

Y
 L

N

D
O

R
O

T
H

Y
 L

N

AARON DRIVE

F
R

A
N

C
E
 A

V
E

P
L

A
C

E
 B

L
V

D

M
A

R
K

E
T
 

COUNTY

SCOTT

91

COUNTY

SCOTT

2

LAYOUT NOTES

LAYOUT LEGEND

EXISTING PROPERTY LINE

RAISED CONC. MEDIAN, CURB & GUTTER

PROPOSED ROADWAY

PAVED SHOULDERS

TEMPORARY EASEMENT

CONSTRUCTION LIMITS

TRAIL

LANDSCAPING/GREEN SPACE

EXISTING RIGHT-OF-WAY

PROPOSED RIGHT-OF-WAY

ACCESS CLOSURE

DELINEATED WETLANDS

SIDEWALK

TYPICAL SECTIONS

ALL SLOPES IN FT/FT

NOT TO SCALE

SCOTT COUNTY

PROJECT LOCATION

FEETSCALE

0 25 50

COUNTY

SCOTT

91

COUNTY

SCOTT

91

FEETSCALE

250 50

DESIGN VEHICLE: WB-62

NB TURNING MOVEMENTS

DESIGN VEHICLE: WB-62

SB TURNING MOVEMENTS

DESIGN VEHICLE: WB-62

WB TURNING MOVEMENTS

DESIGN VEHICLE: WB-62

EB TURNING MOVEMENTS

FEETSCALE

250 50

FEETSCALE

250 50

CSAH 2

CSAH 2

CSAH 2

CSAH 2

CSAH 2

CSAH 2

XXX (XXX) = AM PEAK (PM PEAK)

BY SPACK CONSULTING 2015

EXISTING TURNING MOVEMENTS COUNTS

XXX (XXX) = AM PEAK (PM PEAK)

BY BOLTON & MENK 2027

PROPOSED TURNING MOVEMENTS COUNTS

XXX (XXX) = AM PEAK (PM PEAK)

BY BOLTON & MENK 2037

PROPOSED TURNING MOVEMENTS COUNTS

1
9
 
(

2
4
)

6
 
(

6
)

3
 
(

2
5
)

55 (336)

126 (466)

13 (25)

5 (23)

380 (212)

17 (12)

3
6

8
 
(

1
0

8
)

1
6
 
(

8
)

1
5
 
(

1
0
)

C
S

A
H
 

9
1

C
S

A
H
 

9
1

15 (30)

465 (265)

25 (15)

6
1

0
 
(

1
8

5
)

3
0
 
(

1
5
)

3
5
 
(

4
0
)

125 (590)

145 (550)

40 (65)

C
S

A
H
 

9
1

C
S

A
H
 

9
1

5
0
 
(

7
0
)

1
0
 
(

1
0
)

5
 
(

3
0
)

160 (820)

170 (630)

80 (125)

15 (30)

530 (295)

30 (15)

8
4

5
 
(

2
5

5
)

5
0
 
(

2
0
)

4
0
 
(

4
0
)

8
5
 
(

1
3

5
)

1
5
 
(

1
5
)

5
 
(

3
5
)

C
S

A
H
 

9
1

C
S

A
H
 

9
1

DESIGN SPEED SUMMARY
C.S.A.H. 2 & C.S.A.H. 91 - SINGLE LANE ROUNDABOUT

C.S.A.H. 2

C
.S
.A
.H
. 
9
1

C.S.A.H. 2

C
.S
.A
.H
. 
9
1

C.S.A.H. 2

C
.S
.A
.H
. 
9
1

C.S.A.H. 2

C
.S
.A
.H
. 
9
1

PATH OVERLAP DIAGRAM
C.S.A.H. 91

FEETSCALE

250 50

MATCHLINE C

MATCHLINE C

(MAIN STREET)

C.S.A.H. 2
(MAIN STREET)

C.S.A.H. 2

PROJECT LOCATION

KL GROUP

PHI ANGLE DIAGRAM

FEETSCALE

250 50

H:\ELNM\T43115114\CAD\MS\layouts\115114_Lo1.dgn

2/5/2019

(MAIN STREET)

C.S.A.H. 2

(MAIN STREET)

C.S.A.H. 2
(MAIN STREET)

C.S.A.H. 2

(MAIN STREET)

C.S.A.H. 2

(MAIN STREET)

C.S.A.H. 2

(MAIN STREET)

C.S.A.H. 2

(MAIN STREET)

C.S.A.H. 2

(MAIN STREET)

C.S.A.H. 2

EXISTING BURIED FIBER OPTIC

EXISTING BURIED NATURAL GAS

EXISTING SEWER AND SANITATION

EXISTING STORM SEWER

EXISTING WATERMAIN

EXISTING BURIED COMMUNICATION

ICD 160'

(N
A

T
C

H
E

Z
 A

V
E
)

C
.S
.A
.H
. 
9
1

(N
A

T
C

H
E

Z
 A

V
E
)

C
.S
.A
.H
. 
9
1

ELKO, MN

C.S.A.H. 2 / C.S.A.H. 91 IMPROVEMENTS

(N
A

T
C

H
E

Z
 A

V
E
)

C
.S
.A
.H
. 
9
1

(N
A

T
C

H
E

Z
 A

V
E
)

C
.S
.A
.H
. 
9
1

(N
A

T
C

H
E

Z
 A

V
E
)

C
.S
.A
.H
. 
9
1

(N
A

T
C

H
E

Z
 A

V
E
)

C
.S
.A
.H
. 
9
1

(N
A

T
C

H
E

Z
 A

V
E
)

C
.S
.A
.H
. 
9
1

(N
A

T
C

H
E

Z
 A

V
E
)

C
.S
.A
.H
. 
9
1

(N
A

T
C

H
E

Z
 A

V
E
)

C
.S
.A
.H
. 
9
1

(N
A

T
C

H
E

Z
 A

V
E
)

C
.S
.A
.H
. 
9
1

(N
A

T
C

H
E

Z
 A

V
E
)

C
.S
.A
.H
. 
9
1

 CHART COMPARISON PATH DRIVABLEFASTEST

APPROACH CURVE  (FT)RADIUS  (FT/FT)e  (MPH)SPEED

 (MPH)(1)

DIFFERENCE

 SPEEDRELATIVE

 (PHI) ANGLEENTRY

NB

R1 179 0.02 26 10

°18

R2 155 -0.02 22 6

R3 203 NA NA NA

R4 63 -0.02 16 0

R5 172 0.02 25 9

SB

R1 138 0.02 23 7

°26.5

R2 204 -0.02 24 9

R3 608 NA NA NA

R4 63 -0.02 16 0

R5 169 0.02 25 9

EB

R1 164 0.02 25 9

°18

R2 155 -0.02 22 6

R3 682 NA NA NA

R4 63 -0.02 16 0

R5 129 0.02 22 7

WB

R1 175 0.02 25 9

°19

R2 150 -0.02 22 6

R3 1200 NA NA NA

R4 63 -0.02 16 0

R5 221 0.02 28 12

 ROUNDABOUT, IN SPEED MINIMUM THE FROM IS DIFFERENENCE SPEED RELATIVE(1)

 MPH 10 A IN RESULTING 50-FT, APPROXIMATELY EXIT, AT CROSSWALK TO R2 FROM ACCELERATION + R2 =    R3

 SPEED. IN    INCREASE

-CSAH 2/91 IS NOT AN OSOW / SUPER LOAD CORRIDOR

-PEDESTRIAN ACCOMMODATIONS WILL MEET ADA/PROWAG REQUIREMENTS

S
4
2
4

S424

S
424

22'

2
2
'

1:10

15' THRU LANE15' EXIST. THRU LANE

14' EXIST. THRU LANE

14' EXIST. THRU LANE

S
4
2
4

2
0
'

S
4
2
4

14'

14'

S424

S424

1
4
' 

E
X
IS

T
. 

T
H

R
U
 L

A
N

E

1
4
' 

E
X
IS

T
. 

T
H

R
U
 L

A
N

E

1
4
' 

T
H

R
U
 L

A
N

E

1
4
' 

T
H

R
U
 L

A
N

E

6
' 
S

H
L

D

6
' 
S

H
L

D

S
4
2
42
0
'

2
0
'

16'

16'

S424

S
4
2
4

1
:1

0

1
:5

S
4
2
4 S

4
2
4

1
4
'

1
4
'

6
' 
S

H
L

D

6
' 
S

H
L

D

S424

S
4
2
4

S4
24

S424

14'

14'

2
2
'

APRON

10' TRUCK 
R424

S
424

S
424

R424

20
'

20
'

B41
2

B
4
1
2

22'

1
8
'

S424

S
4
2
4

1
6
'

1
7
'

K
L

A
W

E
DI

S 

'
0

1

1
:5

1
2
' 

T
H

R
U
 L

A
N

E

1
2
' 

T
H

R
U
 L

A
N

E

6
' 
S

H
L

D

6
' 
S

H
L

D

S
4
2
4

S
4
2
4

S
4
2
4

S
4
2
4

S
4
2
4

1
4
' 

T
H

R
U
 L

A
N

E

1
8
' 

T
H

R
U
 L

A
N

E

6
' 
S

H
L

D

1
:5

6
' 
S

H
L

D

1:5

1:10

1:10

18' 14' THRU LANE

14' THRU LANE 14' EXIST. THRU LANE

14' EXIST. THRU LANE

S424

S424

14' EXIST. THRU LANE

14' EXIST. THRU LANE14' THRU LANE

14' THRU LANE

S424

S424

S
4
2
4

S
4
2
4

1
0
1
8
'

R

1
2
0
'

R

1
0
0
0
'

R

9
0
'

R

6
5
'

R

600'R

850'R

1016'R

998'R

1
6
0
'

R

75'
R

1
8
0
'

R

7
5
'

R

2
8
0
'

R 3
0
0
'

R 3
2
0
'

R

6
0
0
'

R

6
0
0
'

R

46
'

R

5
8
'

R

1
0
0
0
'

R

1
0
2
8
'

R

1
2
0
'

R

1
0
0
'

R

2
0
'

R

300
'

R

1000'R

100'
R

70'

R

6
0
0
'

R

CLOSED

6
' 
S

H
L

D

1
2
' 

T
H

R
U
 L

A
N

E

1
2
' 

T
H

R
U
 L

A
N

E

6
' 
S

H
L

D

S
4
2
4

1
:5

1
0
' 

T
R

A
IL

10' TRAIL 10' TRAIL 10' TRAIL 10' TRAIL 10' TRAIL

1
0
' 

T
R

A
IL

1
0
' 

T
R

A
IL

1
0
' 

T
R

A
IL

1
0
' 

T
R

A
IL

LI
A

R

T 
'

8

LI
A

RT '8

CURVE WB_CSAH_2_3

PI 4+85.42

X  494,195.717

Y  136,906.741

T  63.99'

L  127.49'

R  598.00'

PC 4+21.44

PT 5+48.93

CURVE WB_CSAH_2_4

PI 5+71.58

X  494,280.361

Y  136,925.254

T  22.66'

L  43.33'

R  60.00'

PC 5+48.93

PT 5+92.25

CURVE WB_CSAH_2_7

PI 7+09.33

X  494,402.529

Y  136,857.426

T  48.38'

L  91.83'

R  118.00'

PC 6+60.95

PT 7+52.78

CURVE WB_CSAH_2_8

PI 8+89.86

X  494,581.202

Y  136,907.146

T  137.08'

L  272.46'

R  1,002.00'

PC 7+52.78

PT 10+25.25

CURVE EB_CSAH_2_3

PI 3+14.81

X  494,025.061

Y  136,867.472

T  66.49'

L  132.79'

R  1,002.00'

PC 2+48.32

PT 3+81.11

CURVE EB_CSAH_2_4

PI 4+27.03

X  494,136.472

Y  136,882.450

T  45.92'

L  87.59'

R  118.00'

PC 3+81.11

PT 4+68.70

CURVE EB_CSAH_2_7

PI 5+79.84

X  494,265.330

Y  136,792.649

T  34.85'

L  63.14'

R  60.00'

PC 5+44.99

PT 6+08.13

CURVE EB_CSAH_2_8

PI 7+43.07

X  494,418.681

Y  136,865.535

T  134.94'

L  265.44'

R  598.00'

PC 6+08.13

PT 8+73.57

CURVE SB_CSAH_91_5

PI 9+83.63

X  494,261.428

Y  136,726.821

T  121.29'

L  239.34'

R  598.00'

PC 8+62.33

PT 11+01.67

CURVE SB_CSAH_91_6

PI 11+29.77

X  494,204.875

Y  136,865.091

T  28.10'

L  52.56'

R  60.00'

PC 11+01.67

PT 11+54.23

CURVE SB_CSAH_91_9

PI 12+74.71

X  494,274.499

Y  136,996.357

T  31.92'

L  61.72'

R  98.00'

PC 12+42.79

PT 13+04.51

CURVE NB_CSAH_91_3

PI 5+87.80

X  494,259.902

Y  135,898.045

T  170.91'

L  341.76'

R  7,639.00'

PC 4+16.89

PT 7+58.65

CURVE NB_CSAH_91_6

PI 11+95.41

X  494,295.662

Y  136,504.662

T  117.30'

L  233.53'

R  1,000.00'

PC 10+78.11

PT 13+11.65

CURVE NB_CSAH_91_9

PI 14+14.28

X  494,257.445

Y  136,721.247

T  36.33'

L  69.58'

R  98.00'

PC 13+77.95

PT 14+47.53

CURVE NB_CSAH_91_12

PI 15+75.41

X  494,341.213

Y  136,862.486

T  36.38'

L  65.41'

R  60.00'

PC 15+39.02

PT 16+04.44

CURVE NB_CSAH_91_13

PI 16+91.24

X  494,276.309

Y  136,967.189

T  86.80'

L  168.93'

R  298.00'

PC 16+04.44

PT 17+73.37

CURVE SB_CSAH_91_10

PI 14+07.36

X  494,255.411

Y  137,129.765

T  102.85'

L  204.97'

R  1,002.00'

PC 13+04.51

PT 15+09.49

CURVE DATA

C.S.A.H. 2 / C.S.A.H. 91

C.S.A.H. 2 EB STA. 0+00.00

BEGIN CONSTRUCTION

C.S.A.H. 2 EB STA. 9+53.93

END CONSTRUCTION
{ C.S.A.H. 2 E.B.

{ C.S.A.H. 2 W.B.

{ C.S.A.H. 91 S.B.

{ C.S.A.H. 91 N.B.

C.S.A.H. 91 NB STA. 20+79.11

END CONSTRUCTION

5
5

S
P

E
E

D

L
IM

IT

P
O

S
T

E
D

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
C
.S
.A
.H
. 2

5
5

S
P

E
E

D

L
IM

IT

5
5

S
P

E
E

D

L
IM

IT

P
O

S
T

E
D

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
C
.S
.A
.H
. 
2

5
5

S
P

E
E

D

L
IM

IT

55

SPEED

LIMIT

POSTEDDESIGNED
C.S.A.H. 91

55

SPEED

LIMIT
55

SPEED

LIMIT

POSTED DESIGNED
C.S.A.H. 91

55

SPEED

LIMIT

55

SPEED

LIMIT

POSTEDDESIGNED
C.S.A.H. 91

55

SPEED

LIMIT

55

SPEED

LIMIT

POSTED DESIGNED
C.S.A.H. 91

55

SPEED

LIMIT

8,800 ADT - 2037
7,700 ADT - 2027
6,400 ADT - EXISTING

8,800 ADT - 2037
7,700 ADT - 2027
6,400 ADT - EXISTING

9,200 ADT - 2037
6,500 ADT - 2027
4,050 ADT - EXISTING

3,700 ADT - 2037
2,200 ADT - 2027
1,050 ADT - EXISTING

18,000 ADT - 2037
13,500 ADT - 2027
9,200 ADT - EXISTING

1
2
' 

E
X
IS

T
. 

T
H

R
U
 L

A
N

E

1
2
' 

E
X
IS

T
. 

T
H

R
U
 L

A
N

E

CLOSED

10' EXIST. SHLD

8' EXIST. SHLD

4
'-
1
5
' 

M
E

D
IA

N

5' EXIST. SHLD

D
V

L
B 
'

5
1

1
0
' B

L
V

D

S
4
2
4

D
VL

B '5
424S

{ C.S.A.H. 91 N.B.

{ C.S.A.H. 91 S.B.

STA. 10+43.11

C.S.A.H. 91 NB

BEGIN CONSTRUCTION



 STAFF MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: CSAH 2 & 91 Roundabout Final Design 
MEETING DATE: May 22, 2019 
PREPARED BY: Renee Christianson, Community Development Specialist 
REQUESTED ACTION: Approve Bolton & Menk Proposal for CSAH 2 & 91 Roundabout, 

Trails & Continuous Lighting Final Design 
 
COMMUNITY VISION: 

 A mature growing freestanding suburb of the Twin Cities Metropolitan Area, preserving 
historic landmarks and small town character while providing suburban amenities and 
services, as well as full range of employment, housing, business, service, social, 
technology infrastructure and recreational opportunities for citizens and visitors 

 Promote a diverse commercial base including light industrial and facilitating planned 
redevelopment which will be aesthetically pleasing with architectural standards that 
promotes quality development 

 Provide a full range of municipal services to its residents. The City will allocate sufficient 
resources to meet the growing needs of the community 

 A comprehensive park and trails system that will have sufficient facilities, play fields and 
open space to meet the needs of residents 

 An effective and efficient transportation system, including access to the greater 
metropolitan area, transit opportunities, and improved connectivity to the interstate 

 Provide community oriented local government and be financially sound, engaging in 
long-term financial planning to provide municipal services without undue burden on tax 
payers 

5 YEAR GOALS: 
 Diverse tax base, employment opportunities, additional businesses and services, 

promote high quality broad spectrum of residential development 
 Advance “shovel ready” status of areas guided for commercial and industrial 

development 
 Acquisition of land for public purposes, position City to take advantage of land 

acquisition opportunities  
 Enhance quality of life through parks, trails, recreational programming and cultural 

events 
 The development of residential lots and an increase in residential building permit activity 

COMMUNITY ORIENTED LOCAL GOVERNMENT: 
 Community Involvement 
 Organizational Improvement 
 Problem Solving 
 Performance Measurement 
 Professionalism 

  



BACKGROUND 
Over the past two years the City has completed the initial phases of planning for the 
roundabout at the CSAH 2 & 91 intersection.  Detailed work that has been completed to date 
include: 
 
Concept Design Engineering – In October, 2017 the Council authorized the concept design 
stage of the project.  The purpose of this phase of the project was to: 
 

• Identify a preferred concept layout.  
• Develop updated cost estimates 
• Identify right-of-way and environmental impacts of the project 
• Coordinate public involvement and feedback regarding additional design elements to be 

incorporated into the project, such as monuments, landscaping, trails, lighting, etc.  
 

Preliminary Design Engineering – In June, 2018 the Council authorized the preliminary design 
stage of the project.  The purpose of this phase of the project was to: 
 

• Develop a geometric layout to move the project to a 30% design level 
• Make final decision on add-ons such as trails, lighting, landscaping 
• Detailed identification of right-of-way needs 
• Provide updated cost estimate based on geometric layout 
• Coordinate peer review report 
• Obtain County approval of final geometric design layout 

  
The next and final step in the process is to enter into the final engineering design which 
includes preparations of plans and specifications needed to bid the project for construction.  
Bolton and Menk has submitted the attached proposal dated May 15, 2019 for consideration.  
Key outcomes of this step will include: 
 

• Delivery of final design plans, specifications and engineer’s estimates 
• Construction phasing plan 
• Preparation of project bidding documents and staff support 
• Obtaining permits and agency approvals  
• Construction services 

 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
Bolton & Menk proposes to perform the tasks detailed in the attached proposal on an hourly 
basis for a Not-To-Exceed amount of $190,990. The cost of the work will be allocated to the 
roundabout project fund, but will for practical purposes be funded General Fund reserves until 
eligible cost may be reimbursed from project financing.  
  
REQUESTED ACTION: 
Staff has reviewed the proposal and detailed work plan, and is recommending that the City 
Council approve the attached proposal.  
 
 
Attachments: 
Proposal for CSAH 2 & 91 Roundabout, Trails, Downtown Lighting and Continuous Lighting Final 
Design, May 15, 2019 



 

 
  

 

May 15, 2019 
 
Mayor Julius and Members of the Elko New Market City Council 
City of Elko New Market 
601 Main Street, P.O. Box 99 
Elko New Market, MN 55020 
 
RE: Proposal for CSAH 2 and CSAH 91 Roundabout, Trails, Downtown Lighting and Continuous 
Lighting Final Design 

 
Dear Mayor and City Council, 
 
The 2020 funded roundabout project at CSAH 2 and CSAH 91 is a combination of past efforts including 
the Gateway and Access Study, Highway Safety Improvement Program Application, the Roundabout 

Concept Design and the Preliminary geometric design layout.  Each effort has brought the project closer 
to the City’s long-term goal of improving the safety along these important regional corridors.  The 
purpose of this proposal is to complete final design plans for the CSAH 2 and CSAH 91 roundabout to 
prepare the project for construction in 2020.  
 
Past Studies and Layouts 

CSAH 2 & CSAH 91 Roundabout Preliminary Geometric Layout 

Past studies and concept designs have resulted in a preferred design that satisfies the needs of the City of 
Elko New Market and Scott County, in addition to gaining public buy-in for the project.  The final 
geometric layout established permanent right-of-way and temporary easement needs for the project 
including additional grading and widening for a future access to the southeast quadrant. The geometric 
layout includes preliminary geometric design of the roundabout and both CSAH 2 and 91 connection 
trails that is ready to move to the final design stages. Stonebrooke Engineering has provided a peer review 
of the preliminary geometric layout. Stonebrook’s input will be incorporated into the final design plans. 
 
Scope of Services 

The following proposal details the proposed scope, schedule and fee to provide final design plans and 
bidding documents, as well as a cost estimate for the agreed upon improvements included in the 2020 
roundabout project. In an attempt to provide additional flexibility during the bidding process, a schedule 
is provided as a guide to completion if little to no resistance or hurdles are encountered during the design 
process. 
 
Bolton & Menk proposes to perform the tasks detailed in the following proposal on an hourly basis for a 
not-to-exceed amount of $190,990.  The scope includes project management, public and agency 
involvement, correlation of geotechnical studies, utility coordination, preparation of the final design 
plans, specifications and bid documents, permit approval and acquisition, right-of-way acquisition 
support, and construction services. The City Engineer will serve as an advocate for the City and extension 
of City Staff throughout the duration of the project. All fees incurred by the City Engineer will be billed 
outside the scope of this contract. 



Name:  City of Elko New Market 
Date: May 1, 2019 
Page: 2 
 

 

Bolton & Menk will continue the Public and Agency Involvement efforts initiated during past projects 
and studies. Keeping local stakeholders and the general public informed throughout the final design and 
construction phases will provide an expectation for the final outcome and what to expect during 
construction. An effective public involvement process contributes to a more successful project because it 
helps confront and contain risks.  
 
Key Outcomes 

• Final Design Plans, Specifications and Engineers Estimate 
• Construction Phasing Plan 
• Project Bidding Documents and Support 
• Permits and Approvals 
• Construction Services 

 
In continued service to the City of Elko New Market, we are excited for the opportunity to assist in the 
next phase of the CSAH 2 and CSAH 91 roundabout project. Jake Bongard will serve as the Project 
Manager, please contact Jake at 952.890.0509 or Jacob.Bongard@bolton-menk.com if you have any 
questions regarding our proposal. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Bolton and Menk, Inc. 

 
 
 

Aaron Warford, P.E. 
Principal Transportation Engineer 



Submitted by Bolton & Menk, Inc.  CSAH 2 and CSAH 91 Roundabout Final Design, City of Elko New Market 

Detailed Work Plan 
Task 1: Project Management 

1.1 Project Management Tools and Administration 

Below is a list of important project management tools that 
will be utilized on this project: 

• Monthly progress reports and updates to the City 
• Proactive discussions to stay on task and schedule 
• Presentation and meeting content shared one week 

prior to meetings 

1.2 General Coordination 

Jake’s management will proactively address the needs of 
the project, while consistently adjusting the project course 
at the direction of City staff and representatives.  Jake 
specializes in digging into project concerns, finding a 
sustainable solution, and explaining complex 
transportation projects to non-engineers. Our team is 
highly familiar with the project and project history and 
will use this knowledge to help streamline the process for 
the City.   

From start to finish, biweekly updates and communication 
will be provided through email and phone calls. Progress 
reports and project updates will be planned bimonthly 
(may be adjusted with project timeline) and integrated with 
the project management team meetings.  

Jake and the project team will continue to work closely 
with the City of Elko New Market engineer, Rich 
Revering. Rich’s primary role will be as city engineer, 
reviewing the work on behalf of the city, providing needed 
background information and/or coordination with staff.  
City engineer tasks and costs associated with this project 
are not included in this proposal and would be billed to the 
city separately as a general engineering service. Any time 
Rich might have on QA/QC or preparation of documents 
on behalf of Bolton & Menk, Inc. is included in the not-to-
exceed fee; however, it expected these roles will be filled 
by others in the firm.   

1.3 Quality Assurance/Quality Control Functions 

Bolton & Menk has developed and implemented a 
comprehensive Quality Assurance and Quality Control 
(QA/QC) Program that is designed to meet the particular 
needs of our firm and our clients. Our program 
systematically and dramatically reduces the potential for 
issues. Routine product reviews are an integral part of the 
quality control process, which effectively target 

conceptual, constructability, environmental impact, public 
impact, and economic engineering issues. 

Task 1 Deliverables: Biweekly Communications, Progress 
Reports and Invoicing, Cost and Schedule Updates, 
Meeting Scheduling, QA/QC 

Task 2: Public and Agency Involvement 

Our team will build on the current public involvement 
completed to date. Previous efforts have gained an 
understanding of values, expectations, and specific desired 
outcomes of the public, while incorporating those elements 
into the project. We will continue to effectively 
communicate to manage public expectations in alignment 
with agency responsibilities and actions. 

The purpose of the following meetings is to update 
stakeholders on project decisions made to date and gain 
input for the council’s use in making final decisions.  The 
number of meetings listed is felt to be a starting point; 
however, staff and/or council may feel additional meetings 
are indicated based on the outcome of planned meetings.  
We recommend this approach based on the limited (though 
earnest) participation in meetings observed during the 
previous phase.  Additional meetings can easily be added 
on request at the rates per meeting provided at the bottom 
of the Detailed Cost Estimate.   

2.1 Project Management Team (PMT) Meetings 

The primary meeting group for this project will be the 
Project Management Team (PMT). The PMT is comprised 
of the project representatives from the City of Elko New 
Market and Scott County. Bolton & Menk will facilitate bi-
monthly meetings with the PMT. The purpose is to 
understand individual agency perspectives to gain insight 
relative to key issues or perceived impacts, discuss potential 
mitigation strategies to minimize negative impacts, and 
identify considerations that could influence the project’s 
conclusion. Up to five PMT meetings are expected and 
included in the not-to-exceed fee.  

2.2 Property Owner Meetings 

Conceptual design efforts were sensitive to land use during 
and after construction. Bolton & Menk will continue 
communication with those that have direct impacts, access 
modifications, or perceived impacts to their property in 
order to keep the project progressing.  We’ve included time 
for one meeting with the property owner directly impacted 
by the proposed trail construction by our team along with 
City staff in the not-to-exceed fee.   



Submitted by Bolton & Menk, Inc.  CSAH 2 and CSAH 91 Roundabout Final Design, City of Elko New Market 

2.3 City Council Updates 

Our team will continue to build the relationships with 
downtown businesses group stakeholders and the City 
Council. We will continue to gain input on the potential 
construction and phasing plan by having direct discussions 
with individuals on potential issues and opportunities. 
We’ve included time for two City Council updates to inform 
the City council on the impacts of different construction 
phases and detour routes as well as other major design 
decisions. We will provide update to the City Council at 
regularly scheduled meetings when construction staging 
alternatives are identified and again when most of final 
design elements are completed. The City Council updates 
are included in the not-to-exceed fee. 

2.4 Project Outreach 

The project will be highlighted on the City’s Facebook 
page. Our team will provide all the necessary content to 
the City to serve as a clearing house for all the project 
information.  Content will be updated as needed through 
the project. 

Task 2 Deliverables: Meeting Agendas and Minutes, 
Presentations, and Online Content,  
 
Task 3: Geotechnical Studies 

Previous geotechnical work was completed for the 
preliminary roundabout design. At that point of the project, 
the proposed trails were not included in the design. Our 
team will coordinate with a geotechnical subconsultant, 
Braun Intertec, to complete a geotechnical evaluation of 
the proposed trail locations to design pavement sections, 
review earthwork requirements, and understand drainage 
opportunities specific to the trail locations. We will 
propose recommended drilling locations based on detailed 
examination of the site and anticipated design 
requirements. The subconsultant’s work will include 
traffic control, permitting, penetration test borings, 
borehole abandonment, sample review and laboratory 
testing, and reporting. 
 

Task 3 Deliverables: Maps, Boring Logs, Laboratory Tests 
and Results, Geotechnical Report 

Task 4: Utility Coordination 

4.1 Utility Coordination 

Our team will coordinate with utility owners within the 
project area to ensure a complete and accurate set of 
construction plans comply with MnDOT State/Federal Aid 

and State statutes in order to avoid unnecessary project 
delays and costs during construction.  
4.2 Utility Coordination Meetings 

Bolton & Menk will facilitate two Utility Coordination 
Meetings at the beginning of the final design process and 
at the 95% stage for final coordination efforts. The purpose 
of the meetings are to confirm the location of all utilities 
within the corridor, identify all future improvements 
planned by each utility, and develop a strategy to 
incorporate this work into construction phasing. A utility 
layout with all known existing utilities and possible 
proposed utilities will be supplied. Following these 
meetings, Bolton & Menk will make sure all Utility 
Relocation Certificates will be completed as needed per 
the Delegated Contract Process (DCP) process. 

Task 3 Deliverables: Private Utility Relocation Plans, 
Utility Layout, Utility Tabulations, Utility Meetings 
 
Task 5: Final Design 

Our team will complete the detailed design of the proposed 
improvements consistent with the latest Scott County and 
MnDOT design requirements, and in accordance with all 
Federal and State laws, rules, and regulations. 
 
5.1 Final Design Plans 

Comprehensive, detailed construction plans that are legible 
and constructible will be produced for the roundabout, 
trails, downtown lighting and continuous lighting projects. 
The Scott County sample plan will be referenced during 
the design process to ensure that design and documentation 
assumptions meet expectations. Construction plan details 
will comply with the DCP by preparing plans consistent 
with MnDOT Federal Aid checklists and State Aid 
requirements. This task includes preparation of applicable 
plan sections such as: 

• Title Sheet 
• General Layout 
• Statement of Estimated Quantities 
• Tabulations 
• Typical Sections/Construction Details 
• Existing Conditions and Utilities Plans 
• City Utilities Relocation 
• Right-of-Way Plans 
• Removal Plans 
• Construction and Grading Plans 
• Intersection Details 
• Drainage Plans 



Submitted by Bolton & Menk, Inc.  CSAH 2 and CSAH 91 Roundabout Final Design, City of Elko New Market 

• Traffic Control Plans 
• Turf Establishment and Erosion Control Plans 
• Signing and Striping Plans 
• Roundabout Lighting Plans 
• Cross Sections 

 
Forms as required in the DCP checklist for local agency 
federal aid projects will be completed. This task includes 
preparation of: 

• Right-of-Way Certificate (City provided) 
• DCP01 Form and DCP02 Form 
• Utility Relocation Certificate 
• Request for Lab Services Form 
• Federal Aid Plan Checklist 

 
5.2 Construction Staging Plan 

Construction staging and providing reasonable detour 
routes will be a critical aspect of this project. Stakeholders 
will insist on solid recommendations and team members 
capable of providing practical solutions with a full closure 
of the CSAH 2/91 intersection during construction.  
 
Our team will develop detour plans, including cost to 
implement and maintain, necessary for the project. A 
review of the I-35 ramp intersections will be completed to 
gain an understanding of whether additional traffic control 
measures are needed to accommodate changes in traffic 
patterns that accompany the potential roadway closures. 
 
The City Engineer will work separately with City staff to 
manage impacts as they relate to off-site concerns.  Our 
analysis will be used to establish the best possible detour 
route and staging for all stakeholders and residents.  
 
5.3 Decorative Downtown and Continuous Lighting 

Comprehensive, detailed lighting plans will be produced 
and included in the final design plans (Task 4.1).  We 
understand the past work completed in the downtown area 
and we will build on the existing infrastructure to complete 
the downtown lighting plan. Additionally, we will 
incorporate the preliminary continuous lighting design 
established during the preliminary design phase into the 
lighting plans. The result will be a continuous decorative 
lighting system from the roundabout through downtown.  
 
5.4 Plan Submittals (60%, 95%, 100%) 

Bolton & Menk will submit final design plans and other 
documents for review at the following stages of 
completion: 

• 60% Plan Review - submittal to include 
topography, utility plans, profiles, alignments, 
intersection layouts, drainage plans, typical cross 
sections, preliminary utility relocations, and 
engineer’s estimate 

• 95% Plan Review - submittal to include complete 
plan set, specifications, and engineer’s estimate 

• Final Plan Approval - submittal of final design 
plans, specifications, and engineer’s estimate for 
approval and signatures 

 
5.5 Cost Estimates (60%, 95%, 100%) 

A detailed engineer’s cost estimate will be prepared at 
each plan submittal. Quantities and costs will be split by 
project areas, storm sewer work, participating/non-
participating items, needs ineligible items, and funding 
sources.  
 
5.6 Specifications and Bidding Documentation 

Bolton & Menk will prepare and assemble bidding 
documents which will include project specifications, 
instructions to bidders, bid proposal form, labor/wage 
requirements, and MnDOT Federal Aid attachments. 
 
Task 5 Deliverables: Construction Staging and Detours, 
60% Plans, 95% Plans, 100% Plans, Specifications, Cost 
Estimates, DCP Checklist Forms, Stormwater Design 
Data, Advertisement for Bid, Responses to Contractor 
Questions, Issue Addenda 
 
Task 6: Permits 

6.1 Permit and Approval Identification 

Bolton & Menk will prepare and coordinate all necessary 
permits for the project. Based on our knowledge of the 
project, we anticipate the following permits may be 
necessary: NPDES, SWPPP, CWA, WCA and MDH.  
 
6.2 Permit Acquisition 

Bolton & Menk will acquire the permits listed above. Any 
meetings required during permit acquisition with 
respective agencies will have decisions documented as 
they are made.   
 
Task 6 Deliverables: Permits and Approvals 
 



Submitted by Bolton & Menk, Inc.  CSAH 2 and CSAH 91 Roundabout Final Design, City of Elko New Market 

Task 7: Right-of-Way (ROW) Acquisition 
Support 

Our team will provide support to the City of Elko New 
Market and Scott County Right-of-Way department as 
needed.   
 
7.1 Right-of-Way Exhibits 

It is assumed that two ROW exhibits and three easement 
exhibits will be needed during ROW acquisition. Our team 
will provide ROW exhibits for each parcel showing the 
area of permanent and temporary acquisition. Figures will 
be delivered in AutoCAD Civil 3D and PDFs unless 
requested otherwise. 
 
7.2 Legal Descriptions 

Legal descriptions will be provided with each ROW 
exhibit.  
 
7.3 Supplemental Layouts and Survey Information 

It is expected that supplemental layouts, staking 
information on proposed designs, and supporting 
attendance at property owner meetings will be needed. 
Bolton & Menk will be available to assist the City of Elko 
New Market and Scott County Right-of-Way department 
as needed. 
 
Task 7 Deliverables: Right-of-Way Figures, Supplemental 
Layouts, Staking Information 
 
Task 8: Construction Services 

8.1 Construction Services 

Bolton & Menk will provide on-call services during 
construction for any inspection needs, design 
modifications, or change orders that arise during 
construction. In addition, the proposed fee includes the 
cost for a subconsultant to provide quality assurance 
construction materials testing during construction.  
 
Bolton & Menk will provide inspection services for the 
decorative lighting, city utility infrastructure such as 
watermain and sanitary sewer, and all testing needs 
(through the subconsultant) as required by MnDOT.  
 
8.2 As-Builts 

Bolton & Menk will complete an as-built survey for the 
construction project. We will coordinate with Scott County 
to incorporate any/all comments noted during construction 

and provide detailed record plans to the City for all facets 
of construction.  
 
8.3 Construction Communications 

Website updates, email blasts, newsletters, and social 
media will all be used to convey project information to the 
public in a timely manner. Our team will create all content 
for these platforms on a weekly basis during construction. 
If the client prefers, Bolton & Menk can also create a 
project website that is managed by Bolton & Menk and 
linked on the city’s website.  

During construction, two (2) newsletters will be produced 
and distributed during construction provide a project status 
update. Weekly website updates will be posted on the 
project website and sent out to those subscribed to project 
email blasts. Email blasts may also be sent out during 
schedule changes or emergency situations. Bolton & Menk 
can also assist with any project maps and graphics, as well 
as construction notices to residents, as requested by Elko 
New Market. 
 
Task 9: Optional Tasks 

9.1 Public Open House 

Two open house meetings have been held regarding the 
CSAH 2 and 91 Roundabout project. The first open house 
during the intersection study phase presented the findings 
including preliminary roadway geometry, current and 
project traffic volumes, and the funding breakdown for the 
project. Input was solicited on additional improvements 
attendees would like to prioritize with the project. The 
second open house presented the preliminary roundabout 
design with updated cost and funding breakdowns, 
additional details on potential trail and lighting additions 
and preliminary construction alternatives.  

Based upon the attendance observed at the previously-held 
two public open houses, we believe there are more cost-
effective ways to engage the public. If requested or 
deemed necessary as the final design work progresses, a 
third open house meeting can be held if needed.  

 



Project Schedule

J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D

Final Design Ready for Construction

2019 2020

7.0

7.1 Right-of-Way Exhibits

8.2 As-builts

7.2 Legal Descriptions

8.0

ROW Acquisition Support

5.1

2.3 City Council Updates (2 mtgs)

6.1 Permit and Approval Identification

5.4

5.5

5.6

Permits6.0

Specifications and Bidding Documentation

Plan Submittals (60%, 95%, 100%)

Cost Estimates (60%, 95%, 100%)

6.2 Permit Acquisition

Other

7.3 Supplemental Layouts and Survey Information

Tasks

1.0 Project Management

2.0

2.1

2.2

Project Management/Agency Involvement

Public and Agency Involvement

Property Owner Meetings (1 mtgs)

PMT Meetings (5 mtgs)

5.2 Construction Staging Plan
5.3 Decorative Downtown and Continuous Lighting

Utility Coordination Meetings (2 mtgs)

Final Design

Final Design

Final Design Plans

Geotechnical Studies

Utility Coordination

Utility Coordination4.1

4.2

5.0

3.0

4.0

2.4

X

Project Outreach

Construction Services

8.1 Construction Services

X
X X

Project Coordination

X

X X X XX

60
%

 P
la

ns

95
%

 P
la

ns

R
O

W
 A

cq
ui

re
d

Le
tti

ng
 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n

Fi
na

l D
es

ig
n 

Pl
an

s



Client: Elko New Market, Scott County
Project: CSAH 2/CSAH 91 Roundabout

Task 

No. Work Task Description

P
ro

je
ct

 

M
an

ag
er

P
ri

n
ci

p
al

/

Q
A

-Q
C

 M
an

ag
er

Se
n

io
r 

En
gi

n
ee

r

P
ro

je
ct

 

En
gi

n
ee

r

Te
ch

n
ic

ia
n

P
la

n
n

er
/G

IS
 

Sp
ec

ia
lis

t

P
u

b
lic

 

En
ga

ge
m

en
t 

Le
ad

Su
rv

e
y 

Te
ch

n
ic

ia
n

C
le

ri
ca

l

Totals

1.0 Project Management
1.1 Project Management and Administration 8 8 8 24
1.2 General Coordination 16 4 20
1.3 Quality Assurance/Quality Control Functions 4 8 12

SUBTOTAL HOURS - TASK 1 28 20 0 0 0 0 8 56

2.0 Public and Agency Involvement
2.1 PMT Meetings (5 mtgs) 16 12 28
2.2 Property Owner Meetings (1 mtgs) 2 4 6
2.3 City Council Updates (2 mtgs) 6 2 2 10
2.4 Project Outreach 2 8 10

SUBTOTAL HOURS - TASK 2 26 18 2 0 0 8 0 54

3.0 Geotechnical Studies

3.1 Soil Borings 1 2 2 5

3.2 Engineering Analysis and Reports 1 2 2 5

SUBTOTAL HOURS - TASK 3 2 0 4 4 0 0 0 10

4.0 Utility Coordination
4.1 Utility Coordination 4 4 16 4 2 30
4.2 Utility Coordination Meetings (2 mtgs) 4 4 8 2 18

SUBTOTAL HOURS - TASK 4 4 0 4 16 4 0 2 30

5.0 Final Design
5.1 Final Design Plans 16 12 40 100 120 288
5.2 Construction Staging Plan 8 2 20 40 28 98
5.3 Decorative Downtown and Continuous Lighting 4 2 24 32 62
5.4 Plan Submittals (60%, 95%, 100%) 16 2 20 100 120 8 266
5.5 Cost Estimates (60%, 95%, 100%) 8 2 20 60 70 160
5.6 Specifications and Bidding Documentation 8 2 40 60 110

SUBTOTAL HOURS - TASK 5 60 22 140 384 370 0 8 984

6.0 Permits

6.1 Permit and Approval Identification 2 2 4 8 2 18
6.2 Permit Acquisition 2 6 8 12 2 30

SUBTOTAL HOURS - TASK 6 4 0 8 12 0 20 4 48

7.0 ROW Acquisition Support

7.1 Right-of-Way Exhibits 4 2 6 8 2 22

7.2 Legal Descriptions 2 1 4 2 9

7.3 Supplemental Layouts and Survey Information 4 2 6 6 2 20

SUBTOTAL HOURS - TASK 7 10 5 0 16 14 0 6 51

8.0 Construction Services

8.1 Construction Services 8 60 32 100

8.2 As-builts 8 60 68

8.3 Construction Communications 20 20

SUBTOTAL HOURS - TASK 8 8 0 68 32 0 0 20 60 0 188

9.0 Optional Tasks

9.1 Public Open House (1 mtg) 4 1 4 4 13

P
ro

je
ct

 

M
an

ag
em

e
n

t/
A

ge
n

cy
 

In
vo

lv
em

e
n

t

DETAILED COST ESTIMATE

BOLTON & MENK, INC.

Fi
n

al
 D

e
si

gn
R

ig
h

t-
o

f-
W

ay
/

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

P
ro

je
ct

 C
o

o
rd

in
at

io
n

CSAH 2/CSAH 91 Roundabout

Elko New Market, Minnesota



Elko New Market, Scott County

CSAH 2/CSAH 91 Roundabout

Task 

No.
Work Task Description

P
ro

je
ct

 

M
an

ag
er

P
ri

n
ci

p
al

/

Q
A

-Q
C

 M
an

ag
er

Se
n

io
r 

En
gi

n
ee

r

P
ro

je
ct

 

En
gi

n
ee

r

Te
ch

n
ic

ia
n

P
la

n
n

er
/G

IS
 

Sp
e

ci
al

is
t

P
u

b
lic

 

En
ga

ge
m

en
t 

Le
ad

Su
rv

ey
 

Te
ch

n
ic

ia
n

C
le

ri
ca

l

Total 

Hours

Total 

Cost

Project Management/Agency Involvement
1.0 Project Management 28 20 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 56 $8,020

2.0 Public and Agency Involvement 26 18 2 0 0 8 0 0 0 54 $7,924

Project Management Subtotal: $15,944

Project Coordination
3.0 Geotechnical Studies 2 0 4 4 0 0 0 0 0 10 $1,250

4.0 Utility Coordination 4 0 4 16 4 0 0 0 2 30 $3,380

Project Coordination Subtotal: $4,630

Final Design
5.0 Final Design 60 22 140 384 370 0 0 0 8 984 $116,636

6.0 Permits 4 0 8 12 0 20 0 0 4 48 $4,820

Final Design Subtotal: $121,456

Other
7.0 ROW Acquisition Support 10 5 0 16 14 0 0 0 6 51 $6,000

8.0 Construction Services 8 0 68 32 0 0 20 60 0 188 $24,060

Other Tasks Subtotal: $30,060

Total Hours 142 65 226 464 388 28 20 60 28 1421

AVERAGE HOURLY RATE $145.00 $178.00 $135.00 $105.00 $120.00 $85.00 $98.00 $140.00 $50.00

SUBTOTAL $20,590 $11,570 $30,510 $48,720 $46,560 $2,380 $1,960 $8,400 $1,400

Bolton & Menk Subtotal: $172,090

SUBCONSULTANT (Braun Intertech) (Geotechnical Evaluation) $3,900

SUBCONSULTANT (TBD) (Material Testing) $15,000

COST PER MEETING:  To be used to determine final compensation for the following meeting types:

 - Project Management Team Meeting - $800 to $900  - Property and Business Owner Meeting - $900 to $1000

 - Stakeholder Meetings - $900 to $1,000  - Public Open House Meeting - $1,300 to $1,500

 - City Council Update - $600 to $800

$190,990

DETAILED COST ESTIMATE

TOTAL FEE

BOLTON & MENK, INC.

CSAH 2/CSAH 91 Roundabout

Elko New Market, Minnesota



 STAFF MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: Mobile Food Units 
MEETING DATE: May 22, 2019 
PREPARED BY: Haley Sevening, Community Development/Administrative Intern 
REQUESTED ACTION: Discuss Draft Mobile Food Unit Ordinance 
 
COMMUNITY VISION: 

 A mature growing freestanding suburb of the Twin Cities Metropolitan Area, preserving 
historic landmarks and small town character while providing suburban amenities and 
services, as well as full range of employment, housing, business, service, social, 
technology infrastructure and recreational opportunities for citizens and visitors 

 Promote a diverse commercial base including light industrial and facilitating planned 
redevelopment which will be aesthetically pleasing with architectural standards that 
promotes quality development 

 Provide a full range of municipal services to its residents. The City will allocate sufficient 
resources to meet the growing needs of the community 

 A comprehensive park and trails system that will have sufficient facilities, play fields and 
open space to meet the needs of residents 

 An effective and efficient transportation system, including access to the greater 
metropolitan area, transit opportunities, and improved connectivity to the interstate 

 Provide community oriented local government and be financially sound, engaging in 
long-term financial planning to provide municipal services without undue burden on tax 
payers 

5 YEAR GOALS: 
 Diverse tax base, employment opportunities, additional businesses and services, 

promote high quality broad spectrum of residential development 
 Advance “shovel ready” status of areas guided for commercial and industrial 

development 
 Acquisition of land for public purposes, position City to take advantage of land 

acquisition opportunities  
 Enhance quality of life through parks, trails, recreational programming and cultural 

events 
 The development of residential lots and an increase in residential building permit activity 

COMMUNITY ORIENTED LOCAL GOVERNMENT: 
 Community Involvement 
 Organizational Improvement 
 Problem Solving 
 Performance Measurement 
 Professionalism 

  



BACKGROUND: 
Mobile Food Units (MFUs), or food trucks, are growing in popularity throughout the region and 
have begun operating on occasion in Elko New Market. Regulations specific to MFUs are 
commonly considered by cities in order to reduce potential negative impacts such as 
competition with brick and mortar restaurant establishments and to mitigate public nuisances. 
MFUs are commonly viewed as a means to promote economic activity within a community and 
provide culinary diversity at community events. However, some fear that they may also prevent 
fair competition with existing brick and mortar establishments since MFUs are not subject to 
property taxes or certain zoning and building regulations. MFUs also have the potential to 
become a public nuisance through the noise, smell, and/or light they emit and the fire, traffic, 
and/or safety hazards they may create.  
 
Currently, MFUs are regulated by both the state and the City. Specifically, MFUs operating in 
Scott County are licensed and regulated by the Minnesota Department of Health (MDH). 
MFUs are subject to the Minnesota Food Code and must undergo a plan review and 
preoperational inspection by the MDH prior to being licensed by the State. Minnesota Statute 
also restricts MFUs from using or serving food that was stored or prepared in a private home 
and conducting catering operations, unless the catering operations are approved by the local 
jurisdiction. 
 
Apart from State Statue the City of Elko New Market currently regulates MFUs as a Transient 
Merchant, which is defined as: 
 

“A person who temporarily sets up business out of a vehicle, trailer, boxcar, tent, 
other portable shelter, or empty storefront for the purpose of exposing or displaying 
for sale, selling or attempting to sell and delivering goods, wares, products, 
merchandise or other personal property and who does not remain or intend to remain 
in any one location for more than fourteen (14) consecutive days.” 

 
The City Code requires that a Transient Merchant obtain an annual license. The current fee is 
$65 per person. Transient Merchants must provide written permission from the property owner 
or property owner’s agent for any property they will be operating on and can only operate 
between the hours of 7:00 A.M. and 9:00 P.M. 
 
PREVIOUS COUNCIL DISCUSSION: 
On March 28, 2019, the Council directed staff to draft a Mobile Food Unit Ordinance that 
requires a business license. The consensus seemed to be that the ordinance should not be 
overly burdensome, but should regulate aspects of MFUs associated with public nuisances 
and require proof of state license to minimize potential public health issues. Any regulations 
would be contained in the Business and License Regulations section of the City Code (Title 4). 
A draft Mobile Food Unit Ordinance and the accompanying draft 2019 Fee Schedule 
Amendment are attached for review. 
 
On May 9, 2019, the Council reviewed the draft Mobile Food Unit Ordinance. Discussion 
primarily revolved around whether or not MFUs should be allowed to operate in public streets 
and rights-of-way and how MFUs should be regulated in association with events. The Council 
seemed to find consensus on the topic of allowing MFUs to operate in public streets and 
rights-of-way, but was split on how to regulate them during events. Ultimately, the Council 
directed staff to research how other cities regulate MFUs in conjunction with events.  



RESEARCH: 
Table 1 briefly highlights how cities regulate MFUs in regards to events and operation in public 
streets and rights-of-way. A full summary of each city’s regulations are included as an 
attachment. 
 

Table 1: Summary of MFU Regulations 
Public Streets and Rights-of-Way 

Prohibited Not Prohibited (Conditions) 
Albertville Arden Hills (requires permission from City) 

Baxter Brainerd (MFU Districts) 
Delano Elk River (parking spaces only) 

Eden Prairie Jordan (parking spaces only) 
Belle Plaine Lakeville (specific streets only) 

 New Prague* 
 Prior Lake* 

Events 
Prohibited Unless Authorized by Event 

Coordinator (Conditions) Not Prohibited 
Arden Hills (300’ from event) Albertville 
Brainerd (300’ from event) Baxter 

Eden Prairie (special event permit) Delano 
Elk River (500’ from event) Lakeville 
Jordan (within city limits) New Prague* 

 Prior Lake* 
 Shakopee 

*Indicates cities in which MFUs are not regulated 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Based on previous Council discussion, areas of emphasis seem to include:  
 

• Licensing of MFUs and the associated fee 
• Operation of MFUs on public streets and rights-of-way 
• Regulation of MFUs during events 

 
As written, the draft Mobile Food Unit Ordinance requires a MFU to obtain an annual license 
and pay the associated $25 fee. If a license is required, staff recommends a small license fee 
in order to cover staff time associated with application review and administration of the 
ordinance.  
 
In addition, the draft ordinance prohibits MFUs from operating in public streets or rights-of-way. 
When operating in the a public street or right-of-way MFUs have the potential to obstruct 
vehicle traffic, block sight lines, and increase pedestrian traffic. Staff recommends prohibiting 
MFUs from operating in public streets or rights-of-way in order to ensure safety and prevent 
some of these potential public nuisances. 
 
Finally, the draft ordinance prevents MFUs from operating in close proximity to Wagner Park 
and downtown Elko New Market during the Friday, Saturday, and Sunday of Fire Rescue Days 
unless authorized to participate in the event by the event organizer (i.e. entity filing for the 
event permit). The overall coordinator for Fire Rescue Days is the Community and Civic 
Events Committee (CCEC). Different organizations and businesses may hold permits for 



events during Fire Rescue Days. The permit holder is the event organizer. Rather than dictate 
a certain distance from events, like many cities do, Staff recommends the geographic based 
regulation because the event covers a large geographic area and it makes it easier for the 
vender to interpret and staff to enforce. 
 
The draft Mobile Food Unit Ordinance and draft Ordinance amending the fee schedule are 
included for your review. Due to lack of explicit direction, the majority of the draft has remained 
the same and regulates based on the staff recommendations outlined above. However, a few 
minor changes in regards to the issuance of a license have been made based on Council 
discussion. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
At this time, staff is seeking Council feedback on the draft Mobile Food Unit Ordinance. Should 
the Council decide to proceed with the draft Mobile Food Unit Ordinance, Staff will incorporate 
feedback and prepare materials for the consideration of approval at the next Council meeting. 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
The budget impact for this item to date is the cost of staff time and City Attorney review time. 
Future budget implications will depend on how the Council decides to proceed. 
 
Attachments: 
Summary Regulations for Area Cities 
Draft Ordinance regarding Mobile Food Units 
Draft Ordinance amending the 2019 Fee Schedule 



Summary Regulations for Area Cities 
 Events Public Streets/ROW Conversations with City Staff 
Albertville Silent – no language. “…ice cream trucks are allowed to 

operate within the public right-of-way in 
residential districts.” 

 

Arden 
Hills 

“Mobile food units cannot locate within 
three hundred (300’) feet from the 
perimeter of any pre-approved festival, 
sporting event or civic event unless a 
license is issued to be part of the festival 
or event.” 

“A mobile food unit may only operate in 
a City park or on City property and rights 
of way with the prior written approval by 
the City and as specified in the permit, 
and additional park or other permits may 
be required for such operations.” 
 

 

Baxter Silent – no language. “Mobile vending units are prohibited 
within the public right of way.” 

License only four MFUs per year. Each is allowed to 
operate at 10 pre-approved sites and cannot be parked 
in public ROW. MFUs are exempt from licensing when 
operating in conjunction with a special event. Haven’t 
had any issues or complaints associated with MFUs, but 
also haven’t had very many applicants because there 
isn’t enough people to support operation. Generally 
operate in association with the local brewery. 

Belle 
Plaine 

Regulated as Peddlers.  Prohibited MFUs have to be invited to operate anywhere within 
the City limits. Can operate in parking lots/on private 
property only, not on public ROW. 

Brainerd “Units cannot locate within 300’ from the 
property perimeter of any festival 
(including the Crow Wing County 
Fairgrounds), sporting event and civic 
event unless a license is issued to be a part 
of the festival or event.” 

Transient Food Unit Overlay Districts  

Delano Silent – no language. “…ice cream trucks are allowed to 
operate within the public right-of-way in 
residential districts.” 

 

Eden 
Prairie 

Operations during events requires a 
special event permit approved by the 
Parks Department. 

“Food stands and special event food 
stands shall not operate on public streets 
or public right-of-ways.” 

Primarily worried about competition with brick and 
mortar businesses so prohibited MFUs from operating 
on streets or public ROW. Also worried about 
obstructing automobile traffic as there is no good 
location for MFUs to park on the street. 



Elk River “Mobile Food Units are prohibited from 
vending activities within 500 feet of an event 
for which the city has issued a special event 
permit, unless they are specifically authorized 
by the event organizer to participate in the 
event.” 

“A mobile food unit may not operate in a 
traffic lane, on a sidewalk, or in any location 
which causes an obstruction of traffic, such as 
queuing of patrons or advancement of 
vehicles. A mobile food unit may operate on 
eligible public streets and occupy no more 
than two parking spaces. No parking or sales 
shall take place within 60 feet of an 
intersection of two or more streets or within 
30 feet of a driveway that enters a public 
street.” 

MFUs prohibited during events because they didn’t want to 
take away from the work the event organizer did or the 
potential proceeds they may be getting. Not allowed in the 
downtown district to prevent competition with brick and 
mortar businesses, but allowed in on streets and public ROW 
in other districts. 

Jordan “For-profit mobile food units shall be 
prohibited from operating within city limits 
during city festivals and events without written 
permission from the city festival or event 
coordinator”  

“A mobile food unit may only operate along a 
public street when the mobile unit is parked 
in a dedicated parking stall.” 

Prohibited during events because MFUs were trying to get 
out of the rental fee associated with being a vendor at an 
event. Jordan has had some issues with unauthorized MFUs 
operating during events so they actively enforce during 
events. MFUs can operate in public right-of-way as long as in 
a dedicated parking spot. Commonly operate on Highway 21. 
No complaints from residents about taking available parking 
away. 

Prior Lake Does not regulate MFUs. Does not regulate MFUs.  

Savage Not allowed in City limits. Not allowed in City limits.  
Shakopee Silent – no language. “A mobile food unit may only operate along a 

public or private street when the street is 
closed to all non-emergency vehicles.” 

 

Lakeville “Unless otherwise allowed in conjunction with 
community events such as Pan-O-Prog and 
Block Bash, no person shall operate a mobile 
food unit in the C-CBD District or in a City park 
without a valid license required under this 
chapter.” 

Mobile food units shall be allowed… “on 
Upper 208th Street and 209th Street 
between Holyoke and Howland Avenues 
provided the service window is facing the 
sidewalk and provided the food truck is 
located at least thirty feet (30') from any 
street intersection.” 

MFUs operating in conjunction with an event don’t require a 
license. Licensed MFUs can operate near events. MFUs only 
allowed in the Central Business District on roads outlined by 
ordinance in order to ensure public safety. 

New 
Prague 

Does not regulate MFUs. Does not regulate MFUs.  

 
 



1 
 

CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET 
SCOTT COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

 
ORDINANCE NO. ____ 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 4 

OF THE ELKO NEW MARKET CITY CODE ADDING A NEW CHAPTER 10 
CONCERNING MOBILE FOOD UNITS 

 
 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET, MINNESOTA 
ORDAINS: 
 
SECTION 1. Title 4 of the Elko New Market City Code is hereby amended to add a new 
chapter 10 to read as follows: 
 

Chapter 10 
MOBILE FOOD UNITS 

 
4-10-1:  DEFINITIONS: 
4-10-2:  EXEMPTIONS: 
4-10-3:  LICENSE REQUIRED: 
4-10-4:  INELIGIBILITY FOR LICENSE: 
4-10-5:  APPLICATION FOR LICENSE: 
4-10-6:  LICENSE FEE: 
4-10-7:  ISSUANCE OF LICENSE; CONDITIONS: 
4-10-8:  PERFORMANCE STANDARDS: 
4-10-9:  PROHIBITED ACTIVITIES: 
 
4-10-1: DEFINITIONS: 
 
For the purpose of this chapter, the following definitions shall apply unless the context clearly 
indicates or requires a different meaning: 
 
ICE CREAM TRUCK: a motor vehicle utilized as the point of retail sales of pre-wrapped or 
prepackaged ice cream, frozen yogurt, frozen custard, flavored frozen water, or similar frozen 
dessert products. 
 
MOBILE FOOD UNIT: A food and beverage service establishment that is: a) a vehicle mounted 
unit, either motorized or trailered; b) readily movable without disassembling for transport to 
another location; or c) a nonmotorized vehicle self-propelled by the operator. 
 
4-10-2: EXEMPTIONS: Ice Cream Trucks are exempt from this Chapter and shall be regulated 
as peddlers pursuant to chapter 4 of this title. 
 



2 
 

4-10-3: LICENSE REQUIRED: Except as otherwise provided by this chapter, no entity shall 
conduct business as a mobile food unit without first having obtained a license from the city as 
required under this chapter. 
 
4-10-4: INELIGIBILITY FOR LICENSE: 
  
The following shall be grounds for denying a license under this chapter: 
 
A. The failure of the applicant to obtain and show proof of having obtained any required state 

license. 
 
B. The revocation, within the past five (5) years, of any license issued under this chapter. 
 
4-10-5: APPLICATION FOR LICENSE: 
 
Application for a city license to conduct business as a mobile food unit shall be made at least two 
(2) regular business days before the applicant desires to begin conducting business, unless 
otherwise approved by the city clerk or their designee. Application for a license shall be made on 
a form approved by the city council and available from the office of the city clerk. All 
applications shall be signed by the applicant, who must be the owner of the mobile food unit. All 
applications shall include the following information: 
 
A. Applicant's full legal name, other names the applicant uses or is known by, date of birth, 

driver’s license number or other acceptable identification of the person or entity applying for 
a license. 
 

B. Applicant’s permanent and any temporary home and business address, phone number and 
email address of the applicant. 

 
C. Any and all telephone numbers where the applicant can be reached while conducting 

business within the city. 
 

D. Name and contact information of primary mobile food unit operator, if different from 
applicant. 

 
E. Truck/trailer size to be used within the city, including: the license plate number, registration 

information and vehicle identification number for any vehicle to be used in conjunction with 
the licensed business and a description of the vehicle (make, model and color). 

 
F. Proof of any required state license for operation of a mobile food unit. 
 
G. All additional information deemed necessary by the city. 
 
4-10-6: LICENSE FEE: 
 



3 
 

All applications for a license under this chapter shall be accompanied by the fee set forth in the 
city fee schedule, as it may be amended from time to time. 
 
4-10-7: ISSUANCE OF LICENSE; CONDITIONS: 
 
A.  Issuance: If the city determines that the applicant has satisfied all of the requirements of this 

chapter, the city clerk or the clerk’s designee shall issue a license. 
 
B.  Conditions: The city clerk may impose any reasonable conditions upon the issuance of a 

license and the performance of the applicant thereunder in order to protect the public health, 
safety and welfare.  

 
B.C. Mobile Food Unit Conditions: In addition to subsection B, mMobile food units shall be 

subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. Locations. All mobile food units shall operate only in the following locations: 

 
a. Mobile food units may operate only on private commercial or industrial lot and on 

private residential property, with the written consent of the private property 
owner. When operations occur on private residential property, sales may only be 
for catering purposes (such as a private graduation party or wedding) and not 
open for sales to the general public. 
 

b. Mobile food units may only operate in a City park or on City property with 
written consent by the City. 

 
c. Mobile food units may only operate along public streets or public right-of-ways 

when authorized by the City as part of an outdoor concert or event pursuant to 
Chapter 5 of this title. 
 

4-10-8: PERFORMANCE STANDARDS: All mobile food units are subject to the following 
performance standards: 
 
A. Mobile food units shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, 
ordinances, regulations, parking zones, and posted signs. 

 
B. Proof of state and city licensing must be posted on the mobile food unit. 
 
C. Written permission from the property owner must be kept with the mobile food unit and 
made immediately available upon request. 
 
D. A mobile food unit may not operate on the same property more than seven (7) 
consecutive days or twenty-one (21) total days during any calendar year. 
 
E. Mobile food units shall not operate between 10 p.m. and 7 a.m. in commercial or 
industrial districts and between 9 p.m. and 9 a.m. in residential districts. 



4 
 

 
F. Mobile food units shall provide and maintain at least one clearly designated waste 
container for customer use and locate it within 5 feet of the stand. All waste, garbage, litter and 
refuse shall be contained in leak proof, nonabsorbent containers which shall be kept covered with 
tight-fitting lids and properly disposed of. No waste, garbage, litter or refuse shall be dumped or 
drained onto sidewalks, streets, gutters, storm drains, or public trash receptacles. Licensee is 
responsible for daily removal of trash, litter, recycling and refuse. 
 
G. Mobile food units must dispose of its gray water. Gray water may not be drained into 
City storm water drains or disposed of in public trash cans. 
 
H. Mobile food units must provide an independent power supply that is screened from 
public view and that complies with City’s noise regulations. 
 
I. Mobile food units shall secure all propane tanks and provide adequate ventilation. 
 
J. A mobile food unit is not required to obtain a sign permit from the city. However, no 
additional signage is permitted beyond that which is on the mobile food unit unless it meets the 
following requirements: 
 

i. One single sandwich board style sign is permitted per mobile food unit; 
 

ii. The maximum sign size is 8 square feet; 
 

iii. The sign must be placed on the ground and within 10 feet of the mobile 
food unit; 

 
iv. The sign must not be placed within the public right-of-way except with the 

express written permission of the city; and 
 

v. The sign cannot project from the mobile food unit or be mounted to the 
roof of the mobile food unit. 

 
K. A mobile food unit may have a maximum bumper to bumper length of no more than 
thirty (30) feet. 
 
L. Mobile food units may not operate within the geographic area outlined below during the 
Friday, Saturday, and Sunday of Fire Rescue Days unless authorized by the event organizer to 
participate in the event. 
 



5 
 

 
 
4-10-9: PROHIBITED ACTIVITIES: 
 
No mobile food unit shall conduct business in any of the following manners: 
 
A. Calling attention to his or her business or items to be sold by means of blowing any horn or 

whistle, ringing any bell, crying out, or by any other noise, so as to be unreasonably audible 
within an enclosed structure. 
 

B. Obstructing the free flow of either vehicular or pedestrian traffic on any street, alley, 
sidewalk or other public right of way. 

 
C. Conducting business in a way as to create a threat to the health, safety and welfare of any 

individual or the general public. 
 
D. Failing to provide proof of license and identification, when requested; or using the license of 

another entity. 
 

E. Making any false or misleading statements about the product or service being sold, including 
untrue statements of endorsement. No mobile food unit shall claim to have the endorsement 
of the city solely based on the city having issued a license to that entity. 

 



6 
 

F. Remaining on the property of another when requested to leave, or to otherwise conduct 
business in a manner a reasonable person would find obscene, threatening, intimidating or 
abusive. 

 
SECTION 2. This ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its passage and publication. 
 



7 
 

ADOPTED this ____ day of _____, 2019 by the City Council for the City of Elko New 
Market. 

 
       CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET 
 
       BY: ________________________________ 
               Joe Julius, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________ 
Thomas Terry, Acting City Clerk 
         
 



ORDINANCE NO. ____ 
 

CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET 
 SCOTT COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET FEE SCHEDULE,  
ORDINANCE NO. 183, CONCERNING MOBILE FOOD UNITS 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City’s fee schedule for 2019 is set forth under City of Elko New Market 
Ordinance No. 183; and,  
 
 WHEREAS, the City has adopted Ordinance No. ___ Amending Title 4 of the Elko New 
Market City Code concerning mobile food units; and, 
  
 WHEREAS, the City desires to adopt a required fee for Mobile Food Unit Licenses;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ELKO NEW 
MARKET ORDAINS: 
 
Section 1.   City of Elko New Market Ordinance No. 183 is hereby amended to add the following 
fees under Business Related Fees: 
 

BUILDING PERMIT FEES 
Mobile Food Unit      $25 
     

Section 2.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be effective upon its passage and publication 
by the City Council.  
 
ADOPTED this ____ day of ____, 2019 by the City Council of the City of Elko New Market. 

 
                                                 

CITY OF ELKO NEW MARKET 
  
                                                  BY:__________________________ 
                                                       Joe Julius, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Thomas Terry, Acting City Clerk  



 

h:\elnm\t15102632\1_corres\b_to others\options for response to fritz request.docx 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

Date: May 22, 2019 

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council of Elko New Market, Minnesota 

From: Rich Revering, PE – City Engineer 

Subject: Woodcrest Sanitary Sewer – Options for Response to Moore Request for Sewer  

 Elko New Market 

 Project No.: T15.102632 

 

 

BACKGROUND   

 

The Council is being asked to direct staff how to respond to a request for sewerage at 26616 Woodcrest 

Circle.  Sewer is not currently available at this property. 

 

The Council at its August 11, 2016 regular meeting adopted the attached policy related to sewer in the  

Woodcrest neighborhood.  The pilot project mentioned therein was successfully completed that same 

summer.  A third property was connected in 2017.  Staff is aware of no problems associated with the 

pressure sewer option implemented.   

 

DISCUSSION 

 

Staff has identified the following options for responding to the request in conformance to the adopted 

policy for Woodcrest: 

 

1. Take no immediate action 

2. Design and extend sewer to serve the subject property 

3. Design and extend sewer to serve all of Woodcrest 

 

Variations to options 2 and 3 in terms of timing and scope are also possible. 

 

The options are explored in further detail in the following subsections: 

 

1. Take No Immediate Action 

 

Donavan Moore purchased the home earlier this year, knowing the SSTS was inadequate and with the 

intention of hooking up to City sewer, if the City was agreeable.  The Moore request is essentially to 

install a sub-branch prior to the generally intended timing of Phase 2 as described in the policy (with other 

work or in or before 2021).  The policy language allows for this; however, earlier implementation is at the 

discretion of the City. 

 

Taking no action would mean that Mr. Moore would continue to use the existing system under restricted 

sewer use and pumping conditions.  Extending City sewer would alleviate these conditions. 

 



 

Date: May 22, 2019 

  

 

 

Replacing the SSTS would be allowed by the City’s policy.  Scott Co. believes soils and space on this site 

would make replacement of the existing system challenging for this replacement cycle.   The previous 

owner had a plan drawn that required encroachment into City easements.  This is not allowed per policy. 

 

It is the opinion of the City Engineer that City sewer would be preferable to an SSTS replacement on any 

lot in the Woodcrest neighborhood.  New systems will make it more difficult to implement the City’s 

policy despite the determination by City and County staff that for many lots the SSTS is not a viable long-

term solution and that City sewer will be needed. 

 

2. Design and Extend Sewer to Serve the Subject Property 

 

We’ve prepared an estimate to run a branch to serve 26616 Woodcrest Circle. This branch would make 

sewer available to several other properties.  Per the policy, none would be required to hook up but any or 

all could choose to.  Parcels where sewer is made available would be offered the option to be assessed for 

their share of the forcemain in exchange for valuable credit when hooking up.   

 

The estimated cost of extending forcemain is $18,800.  Tracking and projecting this cost to remaining lots 

to serve results in an estimated forcemain charge of $3,766.50.  We estimate the grinder station and 

connections at the Moore parcel would be $23,200.  Total estimated construction would be $42,000.  

These figures include a total of $3,100 for engineering, assuming no layout changes and a simple quote 

request to bidders already familiar with this program. 

 

A portion of this would be recovered by assessments.  If no parcels agreed to be assessed for forcemain 

and only Mr. Moore was assessed the cost of onsite work plus the MCES fee and a share of the 

forcemain, his assessment would be $31,830.50.  Just under $27,000 would be applied to the project cost 

after the MCES fee is paid.  This would increase if other parcels agreed to be assessed for a share of 

forcemain.  The remainder of the cost would be recovered over time as other parcels connect; however, 

the City’s carrying cost could be as much as $15,000 until then. 

 

The cost and amount recovered would increase if more parcels chose to hook up; however, there would 

likely be a lag between the expenditure and the recovery due to assessment terms. 

 

The project cost is too small to justify financing.  The 2019 Sewer Budget contains $80,000 for capital 

improvements.  This project could be allocated to that line item, provided there are no other capital sewer 

projects this year. 

 

3. Design and Extend Sewer to Serve all Woodcrest Parcels 

 

We’ve prepared an estimate to extend the remaining forcemain branches as shown in orange on the 

attached figure.  This would make sewer available to all lots in Woodcrest and avoid the need for future 

stages of forcemain construction.  All lot owners would then have at least one viable option for sewer 

when replacement of SSTS becomes necessary or desired at their parcel. 

 

We did not update the cost estimate to extend remaining branches, however, if there is interest from the 

Council we could do so. 

 

The project cost and expected amount to carry likely exceeds the capital improvement budget line item 

and this amount is also too small to justify financing on its own.  At the same time, sewer fund reserves 

are below policy minimums and expected to take a few years to recover.  Choosing this option is possible, 

but would increase the potential for and duration of deficits in the fund.   



 

Date: May 22, 2019 

  

 

 

 

Variation on Options 2 and 3 

 

The Council could proceed with either option up to the point of receiving bids.  The project could be 

awarded or delayed, depending upon bid results.  This approach may provide a response to the request 

commensurate with the City’s Community Oriented Government philosophy while preserving 

opportunities for better value if bids are high due to a potentially unfavorable bidding climate this 

summer. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

We recommend the Council pursue Option 2 if its priority is addressing the request for service.  We 

recommend Option 3 if the Council wishes to pursue lowest long-term cost and make sewer available to 

all parcels. 

 

 

 

End of Memo 

 

 



 

 
ELKO NEW MARKET PARKS COMMISSION 

TUESDAY, MAY 14, 2019 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

 
 
 
PRESENT: 
 
Present at Roll Call were Chair Sutton, Commissioner Miller, Commissioner 
Melgaard, Commissioner Zahratka and Commissioner Dornseif.  Also present was 
Assistant City Administrator Mark Nagel 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 
 
The meeting was called to order at 4:03 PM in Conference Room B at Elko New 
Market City Hall, 601 Main Street. 
 
APPROVE AGENDA: 
 
Mr. Nagel said that there were no additional items for the Agenda for the May 
meeting.  Upon motion by Commissioner Melgaard, seconded by Commissioner 
Dornseif, the May Meeting Agenda was approved, as printed. 
 
CITIZEN COMMENTS: 
 
There were no citizens present at the May Parks Commission Meeting to make 
comments to the Parks Commission.  
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF APRIL 9, 2019 AND APRIL 16, 
2019 PARKS COMMISSION MEETINGS: 
 
Upon motion by Chair Sutton, seconded by Commissioner Zahratka, the Parks 
Commission unanimously approved the April 9, 2019 and April 16, 2019 Parks 
Commission Minutes, as printed. 
 
 



 

 
 
PETITIONS, REQUESTS, AND COMMUNICATIONS 
 
Mr. Nagel called Commissioners’ attention to the article on volunteerism, which 
shows that the monetary value of a volunteer is $25.43/Hr.  He thanked 
Commissioners for their contributions to the community 
 
Mr. Nagel passed out the Summer edition of the program brochures for both the 
Lakeville and New Prague Community Education. 
 
UPDATES: 
 
Mr. Nagel reviewed the April 30, 2019 ENM Parks Commission Update, which 
contained 16 items, with the Commissioners.  Mr. Nagel commented that he would 
be focusing on the “lineup” for the Summer events for Thursday evenings.  He also 
said that he had met with the Contractor for the Disc Golf Course and that there 
were a couple of changes to the layout that he would provide in the May Parks 
Commission Update.  He also noted that the repairs to the Wagner Park Shelter 
were now complete. 
 
Chair Sutton reported that the CCEC would be discussing the 2019 Fire Rescue 
Days plans at their May 21, 2019 meeting. 
 
Commissioner Zahratka updated the Parks commission on the results of the New 
Prague Community Advisory Board Meeting. 
 
OLD/NEW BUSINESS: 
 
Mr. Nagel provided a copy of the February Budget Report for the information of 
Commissioners.  He said that the budget expenditures should be at 25%,  but were 
under budget at 22.41%. With addition of the new Accountant, Kellie Stewart, 
Monthly Budget Reports would become part of the Agenda. 
 
Mr. Nagel provided an update on the SMSC Trail Grant to Commissioners.  He 
noted that the funding would pave the trail link between the Woodcrest Addition 
and the Windrose 8th Addition.  The total cost was estimated at $22,120 with 80 % 
being paid by the grant.  He was pleased to report that the grant application was 
approved by the SMSC Business Council.  He was now waiting for the Grant 



 

Agreement from the SMSC for approval by the Parks Commission and the City 
Council before work could begin on the project. No further action was taken on 
this item. 
 
Mr. Nagel presented a list of Parks Capital Projects for 2019 to the Commissioners 
noting that there 8 scheduled for the remainder of this year.  He said it would be a 
busy year for the Parks Commission implementing these projects.  No further 
action was taken on this item. 
 
Mr. Nagel provided an email from New Prague Community Ed regarding changes 
to the upcoming Youth Soccer Program beginning on July 30th this year. Long time 
coordinator, Melissa Sulich, will be moving prior to the start of the season, so a 
new Soccer Coordinator will be named in June.  The Parks Commission thanked 
Ms. Sulich for her service to area youth and wished her well.  No further action 
was taken on this item. 
 
Mr. Nagel called Commissioners’ attention to his email Memo on the status of the 
Christmas Pines Addition.  The Developer has informed the City that they will be 
paying the Park Dedication Fee of $40,000, rather than doing the land exchange 
with the City for the piece of property along Dakota Avenue.  While the Parks 
Commission would have preferred the land exchange, the Developer has the option 
of paying cash to cover the Park Dedication Fee, so no further action is needed by 
the Parks Commission. 
 
Mr. Nagel said that the Global Properties Project, a 70-unit apartment complex to 
built along James Parkway in Dakota Acres, was requesting confirmation that the 
Parks Commission still wanted cash for the Park Dedication Fee, instead of land, 
for this project.  Consensus of the Parks Commission was that the preference 
remains for the cash option. 
 
Mr. Nagel presented the Bill List to the Commissioners – Schlomka’s Portable 
Restrooms for services for April, 2019 for $420.00 and Morton Buildings, Inc for 
$913.00 for the final installment for the Wagner Park Shelter repairs. Upon motion 
by Commissioner Dornseif, seconded by Chair Sutton, the Parks Commission 
unanimously approved the Bill List for the May meeting. 
 
 
 
 



 

OTHER BUSINESS: 
 
Mr. Nagel reported that he had forwarded the applications of Commissioners 
Melgaard and Miller to be reappointed to a 3-year term.  He said that the Council 
accepted them and was in the process of setting a date for interviews for the 
candidates. The candidates said that it had been almost 2 months since their term 
had officially ended and asked when they’d be interviewed for reappointment.  Mr. 
Nagel said that he’d email them on the subject. 
 
There were no additional business items to come before Commissioners at the May 
14, 2019 Parks Commission meeting. 
 
NEXT MEETING: 
 
Upon motion by Commissioner Melgaard, seconded by Miller, the next Regular 
meeting of the Parks Commission was set for Tuesday, June 11, 2019 at 4:00 PM 
in conference Room B of Elko New Market City Hall. 
 
PARK COMMISSIONER COMMENTS: 
 
There were no additional comments from Commissioners at the May 14, 2019 
Parks Commission meeting. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
There being no further business to come before the Parks Commission, upon 
motion by Commissioner Miller, seconded by Commissioner Melgaard, the 
meeting was adjourned by voice vote at 5:18 PM. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Mark Nagel, Assistant City Administrator 


	Work Session Agenda
	4a.  General Discussion  -  City Vision, Priority Goals, and Identification of Policy discussion Topics
	Vision Goals and Policy Topics
	Vision Statement Adopted July 2011
	2018 Priority Goals
	COG Statement wLogo_03 25 11
	2018_Elko_New_Market_Summary

	Business Meeting Revised Agenda
	6a.  Consent Agenda - Approve May 9, 2019 Minutes of the City Council Meeting
	6b. Consent Agenda - Approve Payment of Claims and Electronic Transfer of Funds
	6c.  Consent Agenda - Adopt Resolution 19-23 Approving Outdoor Concerts and Events Permit for Fire Rescue Days Parade and Other Events 
	6d.  Consent Agenda - Adopt Resolution 19-24 Outdoor Concerts and Events Permit for Windmill Animal Rescue
	6e.  Consent Agenda - Outdoor Concert and Event and Expansion of Liquor for Doublewide
	6f.  Consent Agenda - Adopt Resolution 19-27 Approving Outdoor Concerts and Events for Tapestry Church
	6g.  Consent Agenda - Approve Agreement For Minicipal Facilities Garbage and Recycling Collection and Disposal Services
	6h.  Consent Agenda - Approve Revised Job Description – Public Works Maintenance Worker I
	6i.  Consent Agenda - Authorization to Purchase Fire Apparatus
	6j.  Consent Agenda - Adopt Resolution 19-29 Relating to Financing of Certain Proposed Projects to be Undertaken by The City of Elko New Market
	8a.  General Business - Sewer Trunk Fee Credit Policy
	8b.  General Business - Approve Plans Spec  and Order Bids
	8ci.  General Business - Accept Preliminary Roundabout Design
	8cii.  General Business - Proposal for Final Design
	8d.  General Business - Mobile Food Units
	8e. General Business - Options for Response to Moore Request
	9gi.  Reports  - CCEC Meeting Minutes of 5-09-19

